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ROLLS-ROYCE IS A PRE-EMINENT
ENGINEERING COMPANY FOCUSED
ON WORLD-CLASS POWER AND
PROPULSION SYSTEMS.




Financal highlights

£76,399m £l166m

2014: £73,674m 2014: £437m

—
£13354m £13,725m

2014: £13,864m 2014: £13,736m

Undenrlying* profit before tax Reported** profit before tax
£1,432m £160m

2014: £1,620m 2014: £146m

£(111)m

2014: £666m

Underlying explanation i1s in note 2 on page 80
** From continuing operations

All figures in the narrative of the Strateqic Report are underlying unless otherwise stated

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward looking statements Any statements that express
forecasts, expectations and projections are not quarantees of future performance and
guidance may be updated from time to time This report 15 intended to provide information to
shareholders and 15 not designed to be rehed upan by any other party or for any other purpose
and the Company and 1ts Directots accept no habihity to any other person other than that
required under Enghsh law Latest information will be made available on the Group s website
By their nature, these statements involve nisk and uncertainty and a number of factors could
cause matenal differences to the actual results or developments
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Strategic Report / Group at aglance

GROUP Al
A GLANCE

Group

The Group 15 organised into five
customer-facing businesses

Cw1l Aerospace, Defence Aerospace,
Power Systems, Marine and Nuclear

Underlyng revenue

£13,354m

£1,432m

Underlying revenue mix

@ Cwil Aerospace 52%
@ Defence Aerospace 15%
B Power Systems 18%
@ Mmanine 10%
B Nuclear 5%
Order book Imvested in R&D
£76.4bn £1.2bn
Patents apphed for Countmes

626 46

Engmeers (year end) Employees (year average)

15690 50,500

2 Rolls Royce plc Annual Report 2015




Civil Aerospace

Underlymmg revenue Underlymg revenue mix
£6,933m
Underlying profit*
W OE revenue 47%
e ’ PAGES 20 T0 25 FOR
MORE INFORMATION M Services revenue 53%
Power Systerns
Underlymg revenue Undertlying revenue mix
£2,385m
Underlymng profit*
W OF revenue 68%
e PAGES 30 T0 33 FOR
MORE INFORMATION W Services Tevenue 32%

Nuclear

Underlying revenue

£687m

Underlying profit®

£70m

e PAGES 33 70 39 FOR
MORE INFORMATION

Underlying revenue tmx

8 OE revenue 37%
W Services revenue 63%

Defence Aerospace

Group at a glance

Underlying revenue

£2,035m

Underlymg profit*

£393m

e PAGES 26 TO 29 FOR
MORE INFORMATION

Marine

Underlyng revenue mix
W OE revenue 3%
W Senaces Tevenue 61%

Underlying revenue

£1,324m

Underlymg profit*

£15m

e PAGES 34 TO 37 FOR
MORE INFORMATION

Undetlying revenue mix

B OE revenue 58%
W Services revenue 42%

* Underlying profit before financing and taxation

Rolls-Reyce ple AnnualReport2015 3
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review

TRANSFORM
1

In the context of challenging trading
conditions our overall performance
for the year was in ine with the
expectations we set out n July 2015
It was a year of considerable change
for Rolls-Royce m our management,
m some market conditions and in our
nearterm outlook At the same time,
there were some important
constants the underlying growth

of our long-term markets, the quahty
of our mission-critical technology and
services, and strength of customer
demand for these, which are reflected
n our growing order book While we
have some nearterm challenges,
these constants provide us with
confidence in a strong, profitable,
cash-generative future”

Warren East
Chef Executive

4 Rolls-Royce plc Annual Repart 2015




Welcome to my first Chief Executive’s
Treview for Rolls-Royce My intention
15 that this report will share with
you all, in a clear and open way,
how we performed last year,

the opportumties ahead of us

and the clzar goals and prionties
we are setting ourselves to
maxirmise value creation

We are now taking great steps to
transform the business adding pace
and simphaoity to what we do, a process
we started in November 2015 This will
be covered extensively in next year's
report In the meantime, we have
sigmificantly enhanced the disclosure
n this year s repott to present our
performance In a more transparent
and understandable way | hope you
find it mformative

Chief Executive's review

In this Strategic Report, | will describe
the busmess m depth and we will provide
further information on our financial position

and business performance.

06 | Review of 2015

How the Group performed
n a year of significant

14 ' Business model

o
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How we dehver value from
mission-critical systerns
and serwvices

20  Businessreview

Reviewmng each of our five
customer-facing businesses,
with analysis of therr markets

46  Sustaimability

Setting out the approach we
take and the targets we set for
a more sustammable business

52 Principal risks

Quthning our main risks
together with our nsk
management process

13  Strategic priorities

Qur clear focus and
priorities for developing
the business

16 . Engineering and innovation

Creating engineering
excellence with world-dass
knowledge and technology

40 " Financial review

Explaining our financial
performance 1n 2015
n detal

50 Key performance indicators

How finanoal and
non-fimancial mdicators are
used to measure the CGroup

Rolls-Royce plc AnnualReport 2015 S




Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Review of 2015

REVIEW OF 2015
AND BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

Performance in 2015

Our performance n 2015 was broadly in ine
wth our early expectations, with Marine
markets causing most of the weakness

At the same time we have continued to
invest i products and services to support
our customers and reinforce the long-term
strength of our order book, valued at

£76 4bn at the year end, up 4% on 2014

Group revenue was broadly unchanged on

a constant currency basis with good growth
n Qwl Aerospace offsetting weaknesses

m Marme The cormbination of some difficult
market conditions, sustamed engmeering
mvestment and igh fixed costs led to
underlying profit before finance charges
and tax 11% bemg lower at £1,492m

Cvil Aerospace delivered an underlying
profit before finance charges and tax of
£812m (2014 £942m) Defence Aerospace
delivered £393m (2014 £366m) Power
Systems £194m (2014 £253m) and Marmne
£15m (2014 £138m} Nuclear delivered £70m
{2014 £50m) More detail on each business

1s included i the Business review

After underlying financing costs of £60m
(2014 £61m), undetlying profit before tax
was £1,432m (2014 £1 620m) Excluding the
benefit of a one-off intellectual property
settlement of £58m, tnggered by the
third-party acquisition of a former business
partner, and a favourable £19m R&D credit
benefiting our Nuclear business, underlying
profit before tax would have been £1,355m,
m hine wath the lower half of the 2015
gwdance range set out in July 2015

After an underlymng tax charge of £351m
(2014 £388m) and adjusting for non-
controlling nterests, underlying profit
for the year was £1,080m (2014 £1 226m)

Reported profit before tax was £160m

(2014 £67m), compared to an underlymng
profit before tax of £1,432m (2014 £1 620m)
Afull reconaihation of headlme to underlying
profit can be found in note 2 to the
Consolidated Fimancial Statements

Free cash flow of £179m was materially
higher than our third quarter expectations
reflecting strong cash collections at the end
of the year from a number of key customers,
a better than expected overall working
capital perfermance and the non-recurring
cash settlement ansing from the intellectual
property agreement mentioned above
Some of this positive vanance is hkely to
reverse early m 2016

A more detailed review of financial
performance 1s mcluded in the
Fimancial review

@) | FivanciaLrEVIEW Pas
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QOur strategic priorities in 2015

Customer Innovation

Placing the customer at the heart of our This is ouwr lifeblood. We continually innovate

arganisation is key, We listen to our to rermam competitive, To drive imnovation,

customers, share ideas, really undersiand  we create the nght enviromment — cunious,

their needs and then relentlessly focus on  challenging, unafraid of fallwe, disciphmed,

delivering our promises. open-ininded and able to change with pace.
Most impor tantly, we ensure our innovation
is relevant to our customers’ needs.

Performance in 2015

Tient XWR completes exemplary first year - Testing of Trent 1000 TEN and Trent XWB-97
inservice with Qatar Airways, deveiopment engines is progressing well.

Culfstream G650 cor porate jet with MTU signs agreement with Daimler to jointly
BR725 engines enters service. develop EU Stage 5, emissions compliant

F-35B Lightning Il with Rolls-Royce diesel engimes for of {-highway apphcations.

LiftSysten® declared operational by wWe produce the world’s largest 3D
US Marine Corps. component for the aeiospace industry.

LS Aar Force, Boeing and Embiaer allname  We are leading an international research
Rolls-Royce in their lop supplier categories.  programme inloremote and autonomous
ship contral.

Chef Executive’s review / Review of 2015

Profitable growth

By focusing on our customers and effering
thern a competitive portiolio of products
and services, we create the opportumtyic
grow our market share. We have to make
sure that we are not just growing, but
growing profitably, That means ensuring
our costs are competitive. We took after our
cash and we win righl.

Ourlargest ever order secuted. US$9.2bn
from Eminates for Trent 900s.

we expand TotalCare® service offerimg
range and our maintenance. repair ancl
ovethaul {MRC) network.

€100m order for MTU engines to powe! rail
locomotives for Dalian of China.

US$600m mvestment announced
for re-developing our preduction facilities
in Indianapolis, US.

Underlying revenue {Em)
Cwil Aerospace Defence Aerospate Power Systems Marine Nuclear
8000 8000 8000 8000 8000
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Review of 2015

Posttive market developments
contmue to dnive long-term growth

The long-term positive market trends for our
leading power systems remam unchanged
despite some near-term uncertainties that
are expected to impact small aerospace
engme production volumes and service
actity on older widebody engines over the
next couple of years The trends driving
demand for growth 1n large passenger
aircraft, corporate jets and mantime activity
remain strong n particular a growing
aspirational and mobile rmddle-class,
particularly in Asia, and globahsation in
busmess, trade and tourisrn In addition,
capacity constrants at the awrframe
manufacturers and a strong underlying
demand for newer, more fuel efficient
awrcraft, should provide resilience to
manufacturning schedules over the next few
years as the industry transitions to new
arframes during a strong replacement cycle

The maost sigmficant short-term challenge
that has emerged n 2015 relates to the
changing demand for our Trent 700 engine
as Awrbus transitions production fromold to

new airframes This has had a knock on
effect on both demand for and pricing of the
remanmg engnes to be dehvered Once
completed, we wall benefit from an exclusive
position wath the new Trent 7000 on the
A330neo In the near-term the profit impact
of this transition1s negative, the impact of
lower pricing and gross margin 1s
exacerbated by the accounting effects of
changes within our large engine aerospace
product rmx as we transition te a portfoho
ncreasingly compnising “unhnked’ platform
positions However, the 1oll-out of new
engines will significantly grow our market
share and the installed base of new engmes
will delwer strong aftermarket revenues for
decades to come

We recogmise that these changes have been
exacerbated by market uncertamty as to the
impact of TotalCare accounting on our
financal statements As a result, we are
ncreasing our fimancial disclosure to present
a simpler narrative that will more clearly
descnbe how the key drivers of performance
translate mto our financial results and aid
transparency and understanding These are
mcluded in the Business review

© | Business Rewiew P20

Announced mitial findings of a
detailed operational review

Our strateqic priorihes for 2015 remained
largely consistent throughout the year, with
a ctear focus on the customer mnovation
and on driving long-term profitable growth
However, with short-term market conditions
around us changing, 1t has been appropriate
toreview these prionties as we look to the
next three or four years

Since July 2015, we have been conducting
areview of operations and presented the
mital conclusions in November 2015

As part of this we shared our views on the
strengths and weaknesses of our business
portfoho and updated management s
future focus and priorities around dehvery
and transformation

Strong growth expected in installed widebody fleet

10,000
8,000
6,000

4000

Number of arcraft

B Company estimates

205

2034

B Rolls-Royce plc Annual Report 2015




Chief Executive’s review / Review of 2015

Clear areas for busmess
improvement

The review of operations also lighhghted

a number of opportumties to drive further
performance improvements over and above
the extensive restructuring programmes
already underway As we grew as an
orgamsation we embedded costs and
complexity 1in the busimess wihich, in peniods
of sigmficant mvestment and product
transition hike now, are impactmg our
performance But the mgher costs also
present a sigmficant opportunity to simplhify
what we do and sustainably reduce the cost of
management, creating a mare streamlined
reslient and sustamable busmess

Portfolic analysis

“We have a strong portfolio of products
and services with strong compehitive
positions and many in sustamably
attractive markets We have the
opportunity to strengthen products,
Troutes to market or to reduce the costs
so they can be more competitive

n the future”

Warren East
24 November 2015

Strategic focus going forward

The review has led us to recast our prionities
for 2016 onwards As before, the overarching
theme continues to be developing our
products services and order book to drive
long-term profitable growth We willdo this
by focusing on three common themes across
all our businesses

« 1mwesting 1 and developing engineering
excellence,

+ drving a manufactunng and supply
chain transformation which wall embed
operational excellence in lean, lower-cost
facilities and processes, and

+ leveraging our imnstalled base, product
knowledge and engineering capabilities
to provide customers with outstandimg
service through which we can capture
aftermarket value long into the future

Our ability to deliver these prionties will be
enhanced by a major transformation of our
orgamisation, to simphfy our processes and
management structure to add pace toour
decision making and execution, and to
provide space to develop our people and
create a stronger high performance culture

These themes will become the cornerstones
of our operational prionties going forward

S —

Group portfolio 2015
High

A T

Low Market attractiveness High

Rolis-Royce 15 1n

growing markets We are
strongly positioned and
growing market share”

Warren East
24 November 2015

Group portfoho 2020

High

[
1
1
I
I
1
|

Low Market attractiveness High
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Review of 2015

Major new transformation
programme creating meamngful
cost savings

Restructuning imtiatives started
pror to November continue to make
good progress

The objective of our new transformation
programme s to simphfy the orgamsation,
streamhine sentor management, reduce
fixed costs and add greater pace and
accountabrhty to decision making Our
target is to dehver incremental gross cost
savings of between £150m and £200m per
annum with the full benefits accruing from
the end of 2017 onwards

In the 1ast two months, we have already
announced a 20% reduction m the top two
layers of semor management with further
reductions planned for 2016 and onwards
This has included removal of the divistonal
structure To date we have already dentified
arpund 50%, or £75-100m, of targeted cost
savings with a related exceptional
restructurng charge of £75-100m Around
£30-50m of the inibal savings should be
achieved m 2016 with the full run rate
benefiting 2017 Further actions are
underway to quantify the additional savings
needed to reach our goals, together with the
related costs wiich we expect to take m 2017

To ensure we remain focused, we have set
up a transformation team which will drive
change to simphfy processes and activities
across the Group to deliver sustamable
performance ymprovements The new team
will ensure other restructuring programmes
mamtain progress They will also heip
develop the comprehensive range of key
performance dicators needed to support
the changes we are looking to make inside
the business Several measures around site
level productmity and aerospace engme unit
costs have already been adopted within the
business These and other measures wilt be
important indicators of the changing
culture around productivity, cost reduction,
mvestment efficiency and process waste
Details on new measures will be set out m
further announcements

Dunng 2014 and 2015 restructunng imihatives
were started, largely focused on our operaticnal
footprnint within Aerospace and Manne

In 2015, we consohidated our Cwil Aerospace
reparr and overhaul actities, enabhing the
closure of sites 1 Brazil and the UK, along
with further rationahsation of our UK
manufacturing footprint To date, nearly
80% of the targeted 2,600 Civ1l and Defence
Aergspace headcount reductions have been
completed, with an 11% reduction in our
2013 operational footprint

In May 2015, we announced a Marme
restructuring programme to make sigruficant
reductions in both manufacturimg footprint
and headcount (by 600) and generate £25m
m annual savings frem 2016 onwards This
mcluded work to consahdate our footprint
and increase lower-cost country sourcing

At the start of October 2015 we announced
an addiional programme of restructuring,
focused largely on back-office admmistrative
functions This will lead to a further 400
reduction i headcount

Good progress has been made overall
with related headcount reductions across
Aerospace and Marme totalling 2,500

by the end of 2015

We have significant
opportuntties to improve
our operating performance
and our pace, customer
delivery, programme dehvery,
project delery, lean
manufacturing, as well

as reducing our footprint”

David Smith
Chief Fimancial Officer
24 November 2015

10 Rolls-Royce plc Annual Report 2015




Chief Executive’s teview / Review of 2015

HOW WE ARE 7.
TRANSFORMING Bk
THE BUSINESS

and mject pace into our
decision making”
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Warren East

24 November 2015
RESTRUCTURING PROGRAMMES
ANNOUNCED PRIOR TO NOVEMBER 2015
Incremental changes 2015 2020
(as previously announced)* 2015 2016 2017
Footprint l4milhonsgm 1 1mlhonsgm o 20%
Net improvement fom £80m £0m
Headcount reduction 2,200 400 - Cutput-— ~330 ~600 €Y 80%
number of
engines
Net improvement £{10)m £35m £40m
Headcount reduction 600 400 -

* Overalt benefits expected to be broadly im lime with previcusly announced estimates
Includes 545 who left the business in 2014

NOVEMBER 2015: NEW TRANSFORMATION
PROGRAMME TO CREATE SIGNIFICANT
INCREMENTAL SAVINGS

Focus and deplo - m
resources to ey Engineering excellence £150 200
maximise value initial saving targeted with
to customers and Operational excellence maximum 1-2 year payback
add pace and

%mm‘g;y tothe Capturing aftermarket value Primarily senior level, corporate

and divisional fixed costs

Rolls-Royce plc AnnualReport 2015 11




Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review

Review of 2015

Transforming our US operations
In Cctober 2015, we confirmed the
decision to mvest nearly US$600m in
modermsing our manufactuning base
m Indianapolis, US

This investment 1s the largest by
Rolls-Royce in the US since we purchased
the Alhson Engime Company in 1995

The new facility1s part of a five-year
modermsation plan and the mvestment
1511 hine wath the Group's ongomg
comrmitment to consehidate operations
and sigmficantly reduce operational costs
The new facility will be a state-of-the-art
manufacturing eentre that combines
modern production systems and machinery
together with a nghly-skilled workforce

We currently employ around 4,000
people n Indianapolis, where engines
are designed, assembled and tested for
US defence amcraft, cival helicopters,
regional and busmess Jets and power
systems for US naval vessels

QOutlook for 2016

Looking further ahead

Our outlook for 2016 1s unchanged from that
set out m November 2015 On a constant
currency basis, Group revenue for 201615
expected to be marginally lower than that
achieved m 2015, partially reflecting the
pricmg and volume effects in Owil AeTospace
and the continued weakness n offshore
marine markets Overall, the net profit
trading headwinds discussed 1n previous
announcements are unchanged at around
£650m compared to our underlying profit
before fimancing, excluding £58m intellectual
property settlement included in ‘Other’

and £19m research and development (R&D}
credit which benefited Nuclear

Individual outiooks are provided for each
business in the Busmess review

© | susiness review P20

The successful roll-out of new engines,

led in particular by the Trent XW8, Trent 1000
and Trent 7000, together with a growing
aftermarket, 1s expected to dnve sigmficant
revenue growth over the next ten years

as we bunld toward a 50% plus share of the
mstalled widebody passenger market

While the impact of the transition to the
Trent 7000 has reduced Trent 700 deliveries
and will hold back Ciwvil Aerospace profit
nthe near term we are confident that the
important investments we are making

to transition our production will create

a strong platform to drive customer service,
improved margins and strong cash flows

Our 2014 and 2015 mitratves to reduce
manufacturing and back office costs within
Aetospace and Marine are on track to reduce
costs by £145m by the end of 2017

In addition, we have made a goed start to
the transformation programme that will add
pace and ssimphfy our busimess, and create
mcremental enduring cost savings of between
£150m and £200m per annum from the end
of 2017 onwards These imbatives will make
us a more efficient and resikent business

At the same time, we will continue to mvest
appropriately to strengthen our engimeenng
and operational excellence and aftermarket
products and services We have started the
journey that will return the Company tots
long-term trend of profitable growth

12 Ralls-Royte ple Annual Report 2015




OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
GOING FORWARD

Cinef Executive's review / Strateqic priorities

neday n6aeils

VISION — BETTER POWER  “_to be the market leader in high-performance power systems

FOR A CHANGING where our engineering expertise, global reach and deep

WORLD industry knowledge deliver outstanding customer
relationships and sustainable solutions.

STRATEGIC FOCUS — "..focus on differentiated, mission-critical power systems which
OUR PRIORITIES FOR create high barriers to entry in our chosen markets. Leverage
DEVELOPING THE world-leading engineering, operational and customer service

BUSINESS

excellence to drive growing market shares, capture long-term

aftermarket value and deliver profitable growth!

1 2

Engineering Operational
excellence excellence

Investing in and developing the Transforming cur manufacturing
excellence of our engineering and supply chain to embed a lean
to produce high-performance approach across our facilities anc
power systems processes

Capturing
aftermarket value
Leveraging our instalied base, product

knowledge and capabiiities to provide
outstanding services to customers

Underpinned by a commitment to developing our people
and our culture in a safe and ethical environment.

Rofls-Royce ple AnnualReport 2015 13




Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Business model

Invest in R&D and skilled people
Developing and protecting
leading-edge technology and

deploying 1t across our businesses

allows us to compete on a global
basis and creates high barriers
toentry

Our business model 1s to capture value from
markets for high-performance power We do
this by developing advanced, integrated power
and propulsion systermns and providing long-term
aftermarket support and delivery of outstanding

customer services En 9]n eer]n g

Our long-hfe products operate m challenging

environments where they are expected to dehver excen en Ce

sustamed levels of differentiated performance They

deliver value to customers through outstanding power Develop technology that
o1 other performance capabihties, together with greater anticipates customer needs
fuel efficiency and rmssion-cribical rehability This1s Our deep understanding
often combmed with a flexible service offering to best of custormer needs drives

the development of new

t each i t ds
SUIt €ach customer s operating nee technologies and products = Industry-leading R&D

we make significant investments sn advanced
technology and engineerng programmes to dehver
market-leading products We seek to recoup our - Exceptionallong-Irfe products
wmvestment through developing supenor products,
many of which are selected for use on major multi-year - Differentated product performance
programmes We benefit from increasingly cost-efficient
manufacturnng as praduction levels nise, and by
securing strong aftermarket revenues In certam
markets we strengthen our customer relationships
typically through long-term service agreements where
we commit to deliver exceptional standards of service,
mcluding lgh levels of product operational availabiity
This provides sigmficant value to customers and m
return we achieve long-term predictable revenues

- Proven mission-critical rehahty

Disaplined capital allocabon

By growing our installed base of power systems over We allocate our capital to achieve
time and Jeveraging our aftermarket service actwities, a balance of financial strength

we enhance revenue, profit and cash flow Cash flow s and hquidity to dehver commeraial
then invested to support future product development advantage and sustainable

and technology programmes to drive growth while long-term shareholder returns
providing good shareholder returns

14 Ralls-Royce plc Annual Report 2015




Design and make world-class products

We differentiate on performance
We win and retain customers by
developing and delivering products

that provide more capabiity and offer

better through-hife value than those
of our competitors

Operational
excellence

Chief Executive’s review / Business model

Manufactunng capability

We manufacture cost-efficiently

through a co

mbination of econormies

of scale, developing alean enterpnse

supply chain

Capturing
aftermarket
value

= Strong supply chan partnerships

- Sustained cost reduction

- Transforming to world-class
production capabiity

= Long-term relationships with
cwvil and defence customers

-» Decades of in-service experience

- Flexible range of service offerings

- Cost-focused lean enterpnse

=» High performance culture

Investment in future

programme development

We make significant investment

i development programmes which
we beheve will deliver cost-efficient
and competitive next-generation
products

- Growing installed base and global
service footprint

and integrated management of our

Grow market share
and wnstalled base
Our substantial order book
for both orngmal equipment
and services provides good
visibiity of future revenues
and provides a firm
foundation to invest
with confidence

Secure and maximise

service opportumty

Our equipment 15 1n service for decades
Our deep design knowledge and
n-service expenence ensures that

we are best
performanc

placed to optimise product
e and availabiity

Rolls-Royce plc Annual Report 2015 15
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review

ENGINEERING
OUR FUTURE

CREATING WORLD-
CLASS TECHNOLOGY

In 2015, we invested £1 2bn in gross R&D,
which includes funding from governments
and other bodies £831m was from our
own funds As a result, we applied for

626 patents dunng the year {15 this
mvestment that creates the mtellectual
property we then develop and embed

m our products

We leverage our own scientificand
engneermg talent globally to create
world-dass technology and also partner
with leading acadermc institutions This
ensures we benefit from the knowledge
of renowned experts in their fields, and
get the best value from our investment

© | reap more aTROLLS ROVEE COM

INVESTING IN
PEOPLE AND SKILLS “

Our mvestment in
technology and skilled
people 1s vital for a
company that has
advanced engineering

at its core Ultimately it
dehvers the differentiated,
high-technology products

Cohn Smuth

Group President

Director — Engineering & Technology
throughout 2015

that attract our customers”

We seek to attract and retain the best
and brightest engineers We then create
a culture of innovation that allows them
to develop their skills We encourage

all employees to contribute to our
Innovation Portal via the Company
ntranet In 2015, this generated well over
1,000 1deas from which we conducted
dozens of challenges

Graduates recruited in 2015

228

Apprentices recruited in 2015

277

16 Rolls-Royce plc Annual Report 2015




Chief Executive’s review / Engineening and innovation

£1.2bn

Gross R&D investment in 2015

RESEARCH AND
TECHNOLOGY
CENTRES

We have a network of 31 University
Technology Centres (UTCs} dedicated to
advancing our understandingm
specialist science and technologies that
are core to our business 2015 marked the
25th anmversary of our UTC network

University Technology Centres

31

EXPERT
KNOWLEDGE

within our engineening community,

we have some of the world’s most
knowledgeable people in specialist
disciphnes There are over 100 members
of the Rolls-Royce Fellowship {fellows
and associate fellows) —each recogmsed
as an expert in a particular field

of soience and technotogy

STEM SUPPORT

We are actively engaged in supporting the
study and teaching of science, technalogy,
engineering and mathematics (STEM)
subjects The Rolls-Royce Science Prize 1s

a prime example This1s an annual award
programme that rewards excellence in
science teaching —this year, we receved
2,000 entnes

OTHER ENGINEERS

(SAFETY/TEST/
TRANSFORMATION]

2,108

1614

TOTAL
ENGINEERS

MANUFACTURING
ENGINEERS

3,204

15,690

YEAR-END

SERVICES
ENGINEERS

1,554

DESIGN
ENCGINEERS

7210

Rolls-Royce plc AnnuaiReport2015 17




Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Engimeenng and mnovation

...THROUGH DESIGN

ENGINEERING
EXCELLENCE

Structured development

Lean thinking

Our latest Product Development System,
troduced in 2015, provides an even more
rigorous and structured method for
developing game-changing capabilities
and embedding these across the Group

It allows us to substantially improve

our performance

LATEST MARINE
THRUSTERS

Permanent magnet tunnel
thrusters are now entering
service. These improve efficiency
and response, while reducing

vibration, noise and emissions,

Wwe further increased focus on lean thinking
and behaviours during 2015, with the aim
of transforming cur business into a true
lean enterpnise By atelentless pursuit

of efficiency and continuous improvement
we are seeking to empower our people to
reduce waste 1n altits forms and delwer
products and services efficiently

Our Vision 20 approach to research
and development of technology over
a 20-year honzon

VISION

Near-term technologies ready
to embed into new products

—

VISION

10

Leading edge and
vahdated technologies

—_— ——

VISION

20

Emerging and as yet
unproven technclogies

18 Rolls-Royce plc AnnualReport 2015
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FUTURE MAKING

..THROUGH
MANUFACTURING

Anmportant part of the design
process 15 to consider the most
effective way of manufactuning
the often complex components
that go nto our products These
considerations are an mtrinsic part
of design engineering for any
Rolls-Royce product Teams of design
and manufacturing engimeers
work closely on the development
of future products

Advanced Manufacturn
Research Centres (AMRCS?

Qur growing network of seven AMRCs forms
a umque resource to bridge the gap
between early research and industnial
apphcation, delivering step-change
improvements in product competitiveness
and business performance The network
supports all our key manufacturing process
technalogies including additwve layer
manufactunng (30 prmting) and advanced
campaosites

These lighly collaborative public/private
partnerships are a national asset, supported
by long-term government commtment and
dehivering benefits through the entire
supply chain for both ongmal equipment
and aftermarket actwities

Advanced Manufacturing Research Centres

7

e | READ MORE AT ROLLS ROYCE COM
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Summary

The Civil Aerospace business is a major manufacturer of aero engines
for the commercial large aircraft and corporate jet markets. We power
35 types of commercial aircraft and have mare than 13,000 engines

in service around the world.

Key highlights

=>» Underlying revenue up 3%, solid growth
in aftermarket revenues offset lower
new engine sales.

Undetlying profit before financing 14%
lower than 2014, largely reflecting lower
gross rmargins, due to adverse mix
effects and higher R&D charges, partially
offset by the impact of hife-cycle cost
mpravements, retrospective long-term
contract accounting benefits, areversal
of imparrment of contractual
aftermarket rights and lower
restrucluring costs.

£3.8bn order book growth, led by Trent 900
and Trent XWB orders — Trent XWB now
nearly 50% of order book.

New Trent engines, 1000 TEN, XWB-57
and 7000, on track {or entry into service
i 2017 and 2018

Good progress moder msing supply chain
to reduce costs and mcrease capacity for
Trent XWEB ramp up over next four years.

- Underlying revenue mix

W OF revenue
W Services Tevenue

Underlying revenue by sector

B Laige éngines
B Small & medium

CIVIL
AEROSPACE

OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

Overall underlymng revenue for Cwil Aerospace
grew 3% on a constant currency basis (up 1%
at actual rates) with steady growth in services
{up 9% at constant rates, ncluding 2 £189m
one-off benefit discussed below) which more
than offset the reduction wn ongimal
equpment {down 3% at constant rates)
Second-half growth was particularly strong
as the business improved engimal equipment
delvery performance on a number of
programmes, notablyn corporate jets

Onginal equipment revenues from
widebody engmes Tinked and other reduced
11% reflecting a slow-down in linked Trent
700 dehveries for the Airbus A330 ahead of
the introduction of the Trent 7000 for the
A330neo, together with reduced sales of
Tinked Trent 900 engines for the Airbus A380,
partly offset by increased hnked Trent 1000
engine sales for the Boeing 787 Dreamlmer
n addition, sales of spare engmes to jomt
ventures generated revenue of £189m
(2014 £138m)

Ongmal equipment revenues from untmked
widebody engines mcreased by 29%, largely
a result of an mcrease 1n unhnked Trent XWB
and other Trent engme dehveries

The 17% mcrease in widebody services
revenue was mainly driven by increased
flying hours from our growing fleet of
mstalled Trent 700, Trent 900 and Trent 1000
engmes and a £189m one-off benefit
resulting from refiming the basis for taking
account of risk in our forecasts of future
revenue on long-term contracts This was
partially offset by lower utihsation of some
of our more mature engime types, notably
the Trent 500 and Trent 800
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withm our corporate engme business we had
good revenue growth from our BR725 engime
which powers the Guifstream G650 and
G650ER This was offset by lower volumes

for our other products due to weaker demand
from Chinese, Russian and Brazihan customers
As atesult, corporate onginal equipment
revenues dechined 1% Despite a reductionn
new corporate engine dehvenes, our nstalled
base of corporate jet engines continued to
grow, contnbuting toa 13% mcrease n
services revenues from these products

Services revenues from our regional jet
engmes declined 14%, reflecting
retirements and reduced utihsation of
relevant fleets by North Amencan operators

On the V2500 programme, onignal
equipment revenues declined 9% due to
reduced demand from Internattonal Aero
Engmes (IAE) for V2500 modules to power the
Airbus A320ceo, reflecting a mix change n
engine types powering the aircraft ahead

of the mntroduction of the A320neo Despite
continued growth in the installed base of
engines, setvices revenues on the V2500 were
down 1% overall reflecting a combination

of fewer overhauls, lower spare parts sales
and reduced engine flyng hours

Cverall gross margins for Civil Aetospace were
220% (2014 24 5%) The year-on-year reduction
mmargin of £139m reflected the lower

proportion of inked Trent 700 engine sales,
weaker corporate jet engine volumes and a
dechning regronal aftermarket, partially offset
by £16m hgher gross margim contnbution
from sales of spare engines to jomnt ventures
{(E67m1n 2015 compared to £51m 1n 2014)

In addition, these factors were partially
offset by a number of contract accounting
adjustments and reversals of impairments
and provisions

The in-year benefit of retrospective long-term
contract accounting adjustments as expected
was a net positive of £222m (2014 total benefit
of £150m) Of this, £189m was a one-off benefit
resutting from refimng the basis for taking
account of risk im our ferecasts of future
revenue In 20121t was agreed with the Group
Audit Committee that a comprehensive review
would be completed durng 2015 The new
enhanced methodology should better reflect
nisk, current expenence and expected
long-term performance Other long-term
contract accountng adjustments totalled a net
benefitof £33m (2014 total benefit of £150m)
This compnsed a retrospectve charge of £107m
(2014 benefit of £90m), reflecting reduced
customer fleet utiisation manly n respect of
the Trent 500 and Trent 800, other commercial
changes and techmical nisks, offset by the
benefit of £140m {2014 benefit of £60m)

from hie-cycle cost improvements

Full-year performance also benefited
from the reversal of previously recogmsed
impawments on contractual aftermarket
nights {CARs) and release of a related
provision with a profit of £65m being
recognised (2014 impairment charge of
£19m) This Teflected a sigmificantly more
positive outlook for future maintenance
costs for a Trent 1000 launch customer
which enabled the reversal of a previcus
impairment This also resulted in the
capitahsation of £22m of 2015 CARs that
would otherwise have been impaired

Costs below gross margin were £5m lower
than the previous year Within this, R&D
charges were £64m higher, reflecting
mcreased spend on key programmes,
particularly in respect of the Trent 1000 TEN,
the Trent 7000 and the Trent XWB-97

These engines, now n thewr final stages

of preparation before fight testmg, are

due to enter service in 2017 and 2018 They
represent a sigmificant advance on previous
Trent designs, providing substantial fuel
burnimprovements The Trent 7000 and
Trent XW8-97 programmes have yet toreach
a pomt at which ther costs can be capitahsed
in addrtion, following its successful entry
mto service, contimuing imvestment n the
Trent XWB 84 engine can no longet be
capitabsed Investment also increased to
develop future corporate jet engine technology

CIVIL AEROSPACE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

Underlying Acquisitions Foreign

2014 change & disposals exchange 2015
Order book 63,229 3,800 - - 67,029
Engme dehveries 739 (27) - - 712
Undertying revenue 6,837 201 - {105) 6,933
Change +3% - 2% +1%
Underlying OE revenue® 3463 117) - {88) 3,258
Change -3% = -3% -6%
Underlying services revenue’ 3374 318 - (18] 3,675
Change +9% - +1% +9%
Undertying gross margm 1,675 (139} - (10) 1,526
Gross margm % 24 5% -270 bps - - 220%
Commercial and admmstrative costs (283) {14} - 1 (296}
Restructuring costs (82) 75 - - 6]
Research and development costs {461} (65) - 11 (515}
Jomt ventures and associates 93 - 3 104
Underlying profit before fimancaing 942 {135) — 5 812
Change -14% - — -14%
Underlying operating margin 13 8% -230 bps — — 117%

* The methodology kasis for the allocation of Cwil Aerospace revenuss on inked TotalCare contracts between onginal equipment and aftermarket has been reviewed and
amendments made to reflect better the commeraal substance of the combined contracts Histonically the allocation has resulted in onginal equipment revenue and
aftermarket revenue reflecting the contractual terms rather than the commeroal substance of the contracts The 2014 figures have been restated on the same basis

the impact was an increase in original equipment revenue of £198m and an equal decrease sn aftermarket revenue
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The R&D charge was reduced by £94m

(2014 £71m) by the recogmition of entry fees
recewable from risk and revenue sharmg
arrangements (RRSA)

Underlyng corperate, admmstration and
other costs were £14m higher Restructunng
costs were £75m lower reflecting the
sigmficant charges taken in 2014

As aresult, profit before fimancing and tax
was 14% down, reflecting a combination of
lower overall gross margns, ncreased R&D
and reduced restructuring costs Taking
account of foreign exchange effects,
underlying profit before financing and tax
was £812m (2014 £942m)

Trading cash flow before working caprtal
movements improved year-on-year by £48m,
despite the headhine drop i underlymg
profit before financing of £130m and the
higher level of CARs additions This 1s largely
due to a reduced level of property, plant and

equipment additions and a lower spend on
certification costs and participation fees
The £286m year-on-year difference n
working capital movements was largely due
to differences 1n the timing of payments

to supphers and increased draw down

of deposits i 2015

Investment and business
development

Orderntake of £12 8bn in 2015 for Cwil
Aerospace was £1 1bn up on the previous
year As aresult, the order book closed at
£670bn, up £3 8bn or 6% on the previous year

Signmificant orders during the year included
our largest ever order by value to provide
Trent 900 engines and TotalCare service
support for 50 Airbus A380s for Ermirates
worth $9 2bn of which $6 1bn s recognised
within the order book Other major orders
induded Trent 1000 engines to power 21

Boeng 787 Dreamliner aimcraft and

long-term TotalCare support for Air China
and Ethiopian Airhmes, and a $2 dbn order
for engines and services with HNA Group

Engineering excellence remams
the comerstone of our value to
Civil Aerospace customers

Several important engimeering milestones
were achieved during 2015 For widebody
engines, the focus has been on completing
the development and testing of the new
Trent 1000 TEN and the Trent XWB-97

The results of imtial tests on both engines
are broadly in line with expectations

In December 2015, the Trent XWB-97 flew
for the first time and has since undergone
ngorous testing 1n a number of conchtions
The Trent 1000 TEN has also completed
several major rilestones In addition,

a hybnd Trent 7000, produced to de-tisk the
development programme, ran for the first

CIVILAEROSPACE / NEW DISCLOSURE ON REVENUE SEGMENTATION

Underlying Foreign
change exchange

Underlying revenue 100% 6,837 201 (105) 100% 6,933
Underlying OE revenue 51% 3,463 (117} (88) 48% 3,258
Widebody engmes hnked and other 26% 1,766 (191} {5) 23% 1,570
Widebody engmes unhnked installed 6% 392 114 {2 7% 504
Corporate (and other small engines) 14% 974 {9} (62) 14% 903
V2500 5% 331 (31) (19) 4% 281
Underlymg services revenue 49% 3,374 318 (27) 52% 3,675
Widebody engines 30% 2029 336 6 34% 2,371
Corporate 6% 383 50 {8 6% 425
Regional 6% 427 {61} {6) 5% 360
V2500 7% 535 (7} {9) 7% 519
CIVIL AEROSPACE / NEW DISCLOSURE ON TRADING CASH FLOW

£m 2015 2014 Change
Underlymg profit before finanang 812 942 {130)
Depreciation and amortisation 410 381 29
Sub-total 1,222 1,323 (101)
CARs additions {161) {86) {75)
Property, plant, equipment and other intangibles (502) (748) 246
Other timing drfferences® {75) 53) 2
Trading cash flow pre-working capital movements 484 436 48
Net long-term contract debtor movements {406) (463) 57
Other working capital movernents {78) 208 (226)
Trading cash flow™ 0 181 (181)

* Includes timing differences between underlying profit before financing and cash associated with jomt venture profits less dividends recewved provision charges higher/
{lower) than cash payments, non underlying cash and profit timing differences (including restructuring) and financial assets and habilities movements

** Trading cash flow 1s cash flow before defioit contnibutions to the pension fund taxes payments to shareholders foreign exchange on cash balances and acquisitions

and dispesals
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time and 1s now being put through its paces
with a senes of ngorous tests

For corporate Jets, developments 1n the year
were more modest Strong orders for the
BR72S have sustaned steady onginal
equipment volumes as the new Gulfstream
GB50ER entered service, despite a
weakening market Failure m past years

to secure new positions on some important
new corporate jet platforms contnbuted

to a weak order imtake m the year which
will impact future volumes and revenues
adversely As part of our technology
strategy, investments are being made

to secure future opportumties and regain
1ts position as the leading prowider to the
important market of large cabmn
long-range corporate jets

nvesting in new aerospace supply
chain capabihthes to help drive
operational excellence

As part of the supply chain transformation
underway in the business, several
important new facilities were completed
during the year These included the opening
of our Advanced Blade Casting Facility in
Rotherham, UK, which wall halve the time

it takes to manufacture turbine blades, and
an expansion of our Trent XWB production
centre in Derby We also announced plans
to invest in our facility in Inchinnan to
create a new Centre of Competence for
manufactuning aerofells and established

a joint venture with Liebherr to develop
manufacturing capability and capacity

for the power gearbox for our UltraFan™
demonstrator programme

Strengthening our aerospace
aftermarket service offering

During 2015, we broadened our service
offering and strengthened our support
network to provide customers with greater
choice, flexibihty and capability at all
stages of the engine lifecycle, supporting

a growing mnstalled base

This included making improvements to our
Trent setvice network which will resultn
ncreased competition among our Approved
Maimntenance Centres (AMCs) and the
announcement of our first mdependent
AMC, Delta TechOps We have also setup a
global network of Customer Service Centres,

bringing us closer to our customers,
working 1n thewr time-zones

We launched a new service, SelectCare™,
which fits between our comprehensive
TotalCare and general maintenance repair
and overhaul services, where customers
contract for indwidual shop visit support

At the same time, we announced American
Arrlines as the launch customer We also
announced our first customers for TotalCare
Hex®, a new service targeting owners and
operators of mare mature engines Cathay
Pacific, AerCap, South Afnican Airways and
BMI Regional chose the service for Trent 800,
Trent 500 and AE 3007 engines

Gl Aerospace outlook

As we set out in November 2015, we believe
the long-term outlook for Cwil Aerospace
remams very good, led by a strong widebody
order book for fuel efficient engmes Key to
the long-term success of the busmess s
converting this exceptional order book mto

a large installed base of engmes that meet
customer demands for safe, rehable, efficient
operation while driving profitable engine
flying hour revenues The next few years wilt
be very )important as we ramp up production
of new engines —m new, efficient faciities -
and investn the development of future
engine platforms that will benefit the order
book from 2020 onwards As a result, until we
gain additional aftermarket scale, or complete
our industnal transformation and improve
umit costs and cash margins, the business will
continue to be a net investor of cash

Over the next few years the transition
from inked to "unlinked contracts creates
a headwimnd to reported profit but no
change to cash flows

In the future, an increasing proportion

of our new engines will be sold to the
arrframer on a sole-source basis,

n particular the new Trent XWB and

Trent 7000 for use on the Airbus A350

and A330neo respectively As aresult,

a sigmficantly larger proportion of our sales
n the future will be accounted for on an
‘unlinked’ basis Whle this does not change
cash flows, 1t does change the timing of
when profit1s recogmsed across the OE and
aftermarket contracts Under ‘unlinked’
accounting the engine sale and aftermarket
contracts are accounted for separately

Chief Executive’s review / Business review

Engines delivered in 2015

>700

This typically results i lower upfront

profit recognition on engine delivery

with sigmficantly ligher preportion of
profit in the aftermarket penod This1s1n
comparnisen to ‘linked’ accounting, where a
blended margm 1s apphed across the engine
sale and aftermarket contracts

Near-term conditions in some segments
remaim challenging We continue to expect
our Civil Aerospace business to underperform
2015 underlying profit before finance and
tax by around £550m The sigmficant
headwnds related ta Trent 700 volume
reductions and the non-recurrence of a
numbert of one-off benefits seen In 2015
reman broadly unchanged In addition,

we still expect to see weaker demand for
new corporate jets and dechines m dermand
within our regional jet aftermarket The
aftermarket benefit of higher levels of
engime deliveries and mcreased mstalled
thrust 1s expected to be largely offset by
the underutihsation of older large engines
However, the business wall benefit from
reduced costs from the restructunng
mitiatives started in 2014

We now expect the TotalCare net asset to grow
from £2 2bn and peak at around £2 Sbn
allowing far a more positive demand outlook
for our ‘hnked’ accounted engmes and the
benefit of further ife-cycle cost improvements
now being seen m engine performance
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MARKET REVIEW

Rolls-Royce 15 one of the world's leading
avil aero-engme manufacturers with
particular strengths 1n engines for civil
widebody aircraft and large busmess jets,
underpmned by our strength and
continued investment in technology

We are market leaders i the large business
jet fleet market powening arcraft from most
of the man arrframers We have a strong
market posihon on widebedy aircraft
produced by the world’s two major
arrframers Boemng and Arrbus, who are
broadly consistent in forecasting traffic
growth (Revenue Passenger Kilometres)

of approximately 5% CAGR over the

next 20 years In the engine market for
narrowbody aircraft, we contimue to supply
some parts and services for the IAE V2500
engmne farmly

Potential for OF and services
over the next 20 years

$1,720bn
$1,110bn

$610bn

Market dynamics

+ Overall there has been a slowdown in all major
geographical markets for new aircraft orders
reflecting a penod of igher than normal order
placement for new airframe products in recent
years (principally Airbus A350 and A330neo,
and Boeing 787 and 777X)

Long term growth in the number of widebody
arcraft in the global fleet has historically been
strongly correlated to global GDP growth

.

Asta and the Middle East are strong drivers of
growth, correlating to their regionat GOP grewth

Historically, growth has recovered quickly
following major economic shocks

Our current share in the widebody engine
market 1s at 31% of the instalied widebody
passenger fleet and 1s expected to reach
50% early in the next decade

Older widebody aircraft are experniencing
reduced utiisation by certain awhnes, i
particular Boeing 7775 and Aitbus A340s

The re engiming of the A330, announced In
summer 2014, reduced Trent 700 sales ahead
of the new Trent 7000 entering service 1n 2017
as the scle source engime for A330neo

- Over 90% of Rolls-Royce large engine fleet 1s
covered by our TotalCare service agreements

We are the market leader in large busmess jet
aircraft engines, with 55% market share of the
large/very large business Jet market in 2015

Over 65% of Rolls-Royce business jet engines
are covered by our CorporateCare® service
agreements

Demand for large business jets 1s related

to giobal econcmic growth and imcreases

1n the number of lugh net-worth indiwiduals
the sector has historically been farrly resihent
to financial shocks

.

The current business jet market 1s slowly
recovering in the US {our largest market), but s
currently going through a slowdown elsewhere
due to pohtical tensions and customer
anticipation of new models about to enter into
service Overall, this sectoris expected to grow
faster than global GDP in the long term

In the regional sector, aftermarket dermand
for engines an 50-70 seat aircraft 1s reducing
as ancraft approach the end of their lives

Busmess risks

Competition

if we experience a major product failure in
service, then this could result in loss of ife and
critical damage to our reputation

if an external event or severe economic
downturn sigmificantly reduces air travel, then
our financial performance may be impacted

.

If our arrframer custamers significantly delay
therr production rates then our finangal
performance may be impacted

If we fall to achieve cost reductions at the

necessary pace then our abiltyto mvest in future
programmes and technology may be reduced

.

If we expenience significant pricing pressure
from increased competitor challenge in our
key markets, then our financial performance
may be umpacted

If we suffer a major disruption in our supply
chain, then our dehivery schedules may be
delayed, damaging our financial performance
and reputation

+ If there are significant changes to the
regulatory environment for the arline industry
then our market position may be impacted

GE 15 the main competitor suppiying engines
in the widebody sector tn 2015 delivenies of
engmes for widebody passenger aircraft were
sphit Rolls-Royce 38%, GE 54% Pratt & Whitney
2% and Engine Alliance 6%

Rolls Royce 15 well pasitioned on all Airbus
widebody arliner programmes and competes
with GE on the Boeing 787 famly

Rolls-Royce 15 the sole engine provider on the
Arbus A350 XWB family where 775 awrcraft
have been ordered so far

GE 15 the sole engine provider on the

Boemg 777X awrcraft, scheduled to enter nto
service In 2020 where 306 have been ordered
sofar

In large business jets the main competition

15 GE, Pratt & Whitney and Safran, in 2015 the
GE-Honda jont venture entered the market
n very low thrust engines

Rolis-Rayce has 3,100 powered business jets
flying representing 55% market share of the
large/very large business jet fleet
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Opportuntties

Cur position and long-term prospects inthe
widebody sector are strong across our Trent family

The Trent XWB has successfully completed rts
first year 1n sevvice and the new Trent Xwg 97
engine made 1ts first test fhight in Novernber
2015 and 1s on schedule to enter into service
mn 2017

The new Trent 700015 scheduled to enter

nto service in 2017 on the A330neoc We have
sole source on this platform which will replace
the A330, on which we are ane of three

engne providers

We will be sntroducing the new Trent 1000 TEN
1 2017 for the Boeing 787 On the 787 Rolls Royce
engines have been selected for 42% of the
current order bock

A potential significant new entrant into the

ol sector1s Chinas COMAC which 1s developing
a narrowbody aircraft for entry into service
towards the end of the decade COMAC 1s also
planming a jomt programme with Russias UAC to
develop a widebody aircraft targeting entry mto
service around 2025 We remain in close dialogue
with COMAC and UAC to understand ther plans
and whether their widebody programme
presents an opportunity for Rolls-Royce

Cur business Jet market share 1s likely to fall
inthe medwm term with the success of new
entrants into the large/very latge sector,

but the market remains attractive and we

will continue to invest to improve cur position
and retam leadership

Key Rolls-Royce differentiators

Barrers toentry are extremely huigh in the civil
sector We nvest heavily to maintain market
leading technologies and system level
wtegration capabilities to delver the best
engine performance for our customers

we offer a wide range of aftermarket services
which provide flexible and cost effective
options to our customers and build long term
customer relationships

Exemplary year for Trent XW8

On 15 January 2016, the world's
most efficient aero engine
completed its first year in service.
The Trent XWB on the A350 XWB
airliner achieved the milestone

in style having delivered
outstanding performance over its

first 12 months of aperation, with
launch customer Qatar Airways.

Chief Executive's review / Business review

The engine hved up to its credenhals in
terms of being the most efficient engine
ever and the Trent XWB also managed to
clanm the crown of being the inest rehable
engme with a dispalch rate of 99.83%.

Designed as the nexi generation of
mediurn-Aong-haul airliners, the A3501s
an all-new fanmly of aircraft from arbus,

The Trenl XWB engine represents the
largest single element of our £76.4bn
order book by some margm. Over 1,500
of the engines have been ordered by more
than 40 aurlines, tom important existing
customers and from new Rolls-Royce
customers all over the world.

©)  rEaD MaRE AT ROLLS-ROYCE COM
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Summary

We are a leading engine maker for the military transport
market and the second largest provider of defence aero-engine
products and services globally. Defence has 16,000 engines

in service with 160 customers in over 100 countries.

Key highlights Underlying revenue mix

=» Undetlying revenue 5% lower; tevenues
impacted by weaker helicopter and
Lrainer volumes, partially offset by
higher combat original equipment sales.

Underlying profit before financing

up 4%, steady gross margin and lower

iestiuciunng costs of fset nghe:

R&D charges. W OE revenue

- . W Services revenue
Strong positions in transpert and patrol,

and combat under pin owllook for a
steady performance 1in 2016. D —————————————————

Major five-year $600m investment in Underlying revenue by sector

Indianapolhs, US, to improve cost base
and benefit long-term growth.

W Combat
W Transport and patrol
| Other

DEFENCE
AEROSPACE

OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

Underlymg revenue at £2,035m was 5% lower
on a constant currency basis (down 2% at
actual exchange rates) Lower original
equipment volumes for hehcopters and
tramers were partially offset by growth

n LiftSystem™ volumes Aftermarket
revenues reflected lower volumes on
helicopter spares partally offset by higher
revenues related to long-term service
agreements for UK combat aircraft

Despite the reduced revenues, gross margin
mproved to 28 5% Lower hehcopter volumes
and lower margins on some transport
coritract extensions wete offset by higher
LiftSystem volumes and increased
retrospective margin improvements of
£101m (2014 £53m) on existing long-term
contracts These relate to vanious combat
platforms, where overall profitability has
been improved by changed flying patterns
and lower setvice costs, includmg
approximately £40m (2014 £ril) due to
one-off contract and scope vanations

Overall R&D costs were £20m higher n 2015
reflecting increased investmentn new
programmes Restructuning costs were
Tower due to reduced level of severance costs
and lower costs related to changing our
operational footprint

Underlying profit before financing of £393m
was 4% up on the prior year on a constant
currency basis, reflecting the lower volumes,
the one-off margin improvements increased
R&D charges and lower restructuring
charges As atesult operating margm
improved by 170 basis points to 19 3%
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Investments and busmess
development

Overall, the Defence order book dechined 5%,

m large part reflecting the 2014 benefit of the
sigmficant multi-year order for engines to
power C-130] aeraft With a major focus
within defence budgets on cost control, 2015
saw significant interest m availabihty-based
service contracts and also on offering efficiency
upgrades New contracts included an extension
of the UK's Hercules Integrated Operatonal
Support contract and commitment to the UKs
Future Combat Air System (FCAS) programme
After successful first fhights on US ‘Hurncane
Hunter’ P-3 aircraft m May we recewved strong
mternational interest including an mtial USAAF
order for the 756 3 5 technalogy msertion kit
upgrade delivering both fuel saving and
performance benefits for an engine
programme which has been m existence for
over 50 years

Outside the UK and US markets, our
particular focus has been on posihioning
ourselves 1o be competitive for forthcoming
combat programmes We had success n
South Korea in conjunction with Airbus,
with the contract being awarded to power
the A330 tanker fleet wath Trent 700
engnes, as well as agreeing an order for our
largest ever number of engmes — a ten-year
order with Robinson to supply at least 1,000
RR300 engines

Long term 1t remains essential that we have
a cost-efficient supply chain to support the
profitable growth of our businessina
competitive market To support future
busmess compethitiveness we imbated

a major $600m investment in the upgrading
of our Indianapohs facility which wall bring
a combination of cost reductions,
operational efficiencies and greater
development capabihties for defence
technologies This investment recogmses
the y/mportance of the US market and our
strong position there

Defence Aerospace outlook

The long-term outlook for Defence Aerospace
remains positive with good opportumties to
capitalise onits strong positions in transport
and patrol and combat Investment m
developing new advanced technologies

will be a feature of R&D for the next few
years as the business ensures 1t can compete
for new opportunities

The outlook for revenues m 2016 remams
steady Operating profit will be adversely
impacted by the lower level of expected
long-term contract benefits in 2016,
together with higher R&D and operatonal
restructuring costs

Free cash flow from Defence Aerospace 1s
expected to remain strong m the longer
term reflecting the mgh proportion of
aftermarket revenues However, in the
coming year free cash flow is expected to be
lower reflecting the wncreased cost of
nvestment and the run out of costs on key
UK programmes where deposits have been
received 1n advance of dehvery

Investment in U facilities

$600m

DEFENCE AEROSPACE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

Underlying Acquisitions Fareign

im 2014 change & disposals axchange 2015
Order book 4,564 (248) - - 4,316
Engine dehiveries 744 (95) - - 649
Underlying revenue 2,069 (101) - &7 2,035
Change -5% - +3% 2%
Underlying OE revenue 816 (45) - 30 801
Change -6% - +4% -2%
Underlyng services revenue 1,253 (56) - 37 1,234
Change -5% = +3% -2%
Underlying gross margin 567 £)] - 21 579
Gross margin % 274% +90bps - - 28 5%
Commeraial and admimistrative costs (112 (7) - (s} (124}
Restructuring costs (55) 48 - (1) (8)
Research and development costs (50) (20) - (3) (73}
Jomt ventures and associates 16 3 - - 19
Underlying profit before fimanang 366 15 - 12 393
Change +4% - - +7%
Underlyimg operating margm 177% +170bps — - 19 3%
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Business review

MARKET REVIEW

Rolls-Royce 15 a market leader in defence
aero engines for mihtary transport arcraft
and has strong poesitions 1 other sectors,
ncluding combat, tramer aircraft and
hehcopters We are purswing new
opportumties emerging n Asia and the
Middle East to mitigate flat defence
budgets in the established North Amenican
and European markets

Potential for OE and services
over the next 20 years

Defence Aetospace —all sectors

Original equipment

$125bn

Aftermarket

$275bn

Market dynanmics

Competition

« Defence budgets are expected to show modest
growth, flat in real terms in the US and UK
partially offset by growth in other emerging
markets

Western customers are seeking to reduce and
minimise costs by delaying or deferning
purchases, improving asset avarlability and
extending lifecycles of aircraft/engines

Increasing levels of econermic affluence and
pohtical tension in the Asia Pacific and

Middle East regions are leading to increases

n both onginal equipment and services spend

Revenue has historically been broadly balanced
between original equipment sales and
aftermarket services, biased towards the latter

- GE Pratt & whitney Honeywell and Safran
are the main competition in our sectors

In Europe, large defence programmes tend
to be addressed by consortia of two or more
compamies due to the pehtical environment
Examples include our collaboration with ITP
MTU and Safran on the TP400 engine for the
Arrbus A400M and with GE Avio, ITP and
MTU on the EJ200 engine for the

Eurofighter Typhoon

We support/lead sales campaigns glabally on
behalf of Eurojet for export sales opportumties
of Eurofighter Typhoon

Barriers to entry are igh and we do not
envisage the competitive landscape changing
stgnificantly i the near future

Business nsks

Opportunities

If we experience a major product faslure

m service then this could result in loss of life
and critical damage to our reputation

If global defence spending expenences

a further downturn then our fmancial
performance may be impacted

If we do not continue to invest to improve
the performance and cost of our products
then we may lose market share

If we suffer a major disruption in gur supply
chain then our delivery schedules may be
delayed damaging our financial performance
and reputation

If we do not secure new applications then our
capabilities may be eroded in the long term

+ Tha UK s FCAS potentially a joint programme
with France presents a longer-term combat
opportunity to Rolls-Royce
Our LiftFan™ system for the F-35B 1s only just
entering service and we expect to deliver over
400 systems 1n the next 20 years

.

Emergmg markets, such as Indra, Turkey
and South Korea are inviting bids on new
combat aircraft We estimate a potential
of aver 300 awrcraft for these programmes

In transport we believe the Airbus A400M
transport aircraft and V-22 Osprey have
overseas sales opportumties

We see strong growth potential for increased
service provision to the mihtary and we

are well positroned with programmes such
as MissionCare®

Key Ralls-Royce differenhators

We are mvesting heavily in technology
ntegration capabihities and facinty
modermsation to dehver capable, affordable
engines for our custorners Additionally,

we leverage our large installed base and strong
services capabilities to provide superior and
affordable service solutions
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World leader in transport engines

T'he Lockheed Martim CG-1300s one of the most
reliable and versatile transport aireraft in the
wotld (the KC-130) being the tanker version).

Powered by the Rolls-Royce AE 2100 engine,
the C-130) family of aircraft follows on from
the onginal, venerable, C-130, whichis still
giving sterling service all over the world
with its Rolis-Royce T56 powerplants

Infact, Rolls-Royce has breathed further life
nto the T56 by developing a new version
of the engme which 1s delivering sigmficant

fuel savings and which the Group believes
will see the TS6 continue in service for many
years to come. In December 2015, we
announced that Rells-Royce was one of three
compares {o benefit fiom a £369m contract
to support the RAF's C-130 fleet.

The C-1301 has also seen developments
beyond its transport and refuelling 1ole.

One of the lessons learned m Afghamstan
was the constant demand for anrborne video
swvelllance and the requirement for a

Chief Executive's review / Busmess review

quick strike” weapan Lo help protect trioops
on the ground. The Us Marnme Corps turned
Lo the KC-130). The aiicraft canloiler in the air
for over ten hours thanks to the perforinance
of s AE 2100 engines and so they armed it
with a quick strike weapon that would not
affect the core rmssion of aenal refuelling.

In its tanker role, the aircraft has the ability
te refuel both Jow-speed helicopters and
high-speed jet aircraft by changing the
basket on the drogue system. The aenal
refuellmg pods can deliver more than
12,000 US gallons of fuel and can refue
two arrcraft sunultaneously,

i addibon to the V22 and C130) fanmbes,
Rolls-Royce also powers the Anbus

A330 Voyager tanker/transport with

Trent 700 engines and we are a inajor partner
n the Buroprop International consortium
responisible for the design and build of the
TP400 engine for the new AA00M military
transport aircraft. The first A400M began
active service with the RAF duning 2015,
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Summary

Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Business review

Power Systems is a leading provider of high- and medium-speed
reciprocating engines, complete propulsion and drive systems, distributed
energy solutions and fuel injection systems. The business serves the
marine, naval, land defence, rail, mining, oil & gas, construction &
agriculture and power generation markets through its core brands MTU,
MTU Onsite Energy, Bergen and LOrange.

Key highlights

=> Underlying revenue 3% lower, weaker
original equipment partially offsel
by good growlh in services.

Undeilying profit before financing
15% lower; led by lower gross margin.

Positive outlook for 2016; healthy closing
order book with good positions in key
market segments.

Long-term R&D mvestments to increase
cost competitiveness in higher volurme
engine apphcations.

Underlying revenue mix

W OF revenue
B Services revenue

e —————
Underlying revenue by sector

B Marnne
B Industrial
Energy
W Defence and other

POWER
SYSTEMS

OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

Underlying revenue of £2,385m was 3% lower
on a constant currency basis (12% lower at
actual rates) Oniginal equipment revenue
was 5% lower reflecting weaker o1l & gas
markets and weaker governmental demand
which peaked m 2014 This was partially
offset by an improved luxury yacht demand
and some recovery 1n our sections of the
construction and agniculture market where
new emissions regulations mcreased
demand Underlying serice revenues were
up 3% despite some weakness 1 spare parts
sales in North Amernica and Europe

Gross margins were shghtly lower at 26 6%
(2014 273%) reflecting a change in product
mix and lower overall volumes as expected

Underlying profit dechned 15% as a result
of the lower gross margins On a constant
currency basis costs below gross margin
were unchanged
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Investment and busmess
development

Our Power Systems business serves a vanety
of markets ranging from marine, industnal,
construction & agnculture to defence and
power generation This diversity enabled

the business to mitigate some of the weak
environment, particularly that inked to o1l
and commodities

2015 order intake was £2 Sbn (2014 £2 6bn)
with the closing order book broadly unchanged
at £1 9bn Within this, the defence sector
demonstrated greater resthence witha
combmation of a higher proportion of
long-term service contracts together with the
winmng of the first order worth approximately
€80m from the British Army for 589 MTU diesel
engmes for the new Scout Specialist vehicle

Within the broad range of industnal
apphcations, while a number of markets
detenorated through the year, there was
positive news Thisincluded contract wins
from a Chinese company for 232 MTU Senes
4000 engmnes for freight locomotives bound
for South Africa, and further orders for
luxury yacht engines An extension to our
longstanding co-operation with Daimler
was also agreed for the development

of a new range of industnal engines,

which comply with new EU off-lmghway
regulations for reduced soot emissions

The energy segment generated an increased
order intake 1n 2015 reflecting good growth
m gas gensets, particularly n Asia In
addition, the easing of the trading embargo
with Iran s enabling the business to secure
a good foothold inthe country As aresuit,
we en|oy a strong market position within
back-up power, particularly for larger
rmssion-critical apphcations, which is

a growing market Recent notable orders
came from Kuwait, Turkey and Bangladesh
for the provision of back-up power

for hospital modernisations and contmuous
power for a steel mill

Power Systems outlook

The outlook for Power Systems remains
steady The business fimshed the year

with a healthy order book for many of 1its
key markets As a result, while some markets
remain difficult, we continue to expect

the business to deliver modest growth

1 revenue and profit in 2016

Chief Executive’s review / Business review

Closing order book

£1.9bn

POWER SYSTEMS / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

Underlying Acquisitions Foreign
change & disposals exchange
Order bock 1,971 (43) - - 1,928
Underlying revenue 2,720 {72) - {263) 2,385
Change -3% - -10% -12%
Underlying OF revenue 1,893 (97) - (178) 1,618
Change -5% - -9% -15%
Underlying services revenue 827 25 - (85} 767
Change +3% - -10% 7%
Underlying gross margin 742 (37) - (70) 635
Gross margmn % 273% -70bps - - 26 6%
Commercial and adrmmstrative costs (296) 9) — 30 (275}
Restructuring costs (7) 3 - - (4)
Research and development costs (183) 3 - 18 162)
Joint ventures and associates {3) 3 - -
Underlying profit before finanang 253 (37) - 22) 194
Change -15% - - -23%
Underlying operating margm 9 3% -110bps — — B1%
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Business review

MARKET REVIEW

The markets served by Power Systemns
are driven by global megatrends such
as mcreasing population growth, rising
energy, resource and food demand,

ncreasing and stmicter ermssions legislation

and government defence budgets Despite
the current market downturn in sorne of
our markets, most noticeably n o1l & gas

and offshore, we expect long-term recovery

m these and contimuous growth m all

of our markets We estimate that

Power Systems ‘off-lighway’ reciprocating
engme markets offer an opportumty

of £650bn

Potential for OF and services
over the next 20 years

Power Systems = all sectors

£650bn

Market dynamics

Competition

Population growth and increasing urbanisation
are driving rising demands for energy

resources and food and continuous
infrastructure developments

Global GDP development with particular
growthn Asia

Increasing glabal and regional trade
and transport of goods

» Geopolitics and an increasing muttipolar
world are driving modest defence budget
growth {1-2%) 1n NATO countries with more
growth in emerging markets

Increasing focus on renewable energy sources
requires decentrabised and clean energy
solutions (eg continuous gas and back-up
power generation solutions)

Increasing environmental legislation and
effiiency requitements drive emission
and efficiency technologies

Current weak environment in certain markets
{eg ol & gas and miming}, due to current
low a1l and commodity price levels

Fragmented competitor landscape in

‘off lnghway’ engme markets which varies
depending on specific market segments —
many players althougha few dominate

+

Continung industry consoldation results
mstrong, large scale and mtegrated players

Expansion of western competitors in our
specific core engne markets

Competition from Asia increasingly focusing
on higher power tanges where MTU operates

.

While traditional competition has been hrmited
to engine supphers, solution providers are
becoming more relevant

Busmess risks

Opportuntties

Econormic sorme markets are eurvently
affected by low o1l and commodity prices
(o1 & gas miming) while some regional
markets show challenges dug to the current
econommic situation

Political incteasing pohtical tensions and
sanctions might it levels of global trade and
customer access

Competitive upcoming competitors frem Asia
and new entrants into our existing markets
can potentially put pressure on volumes

and margins

Technological complementary technologies
right replace existing solutions eg energy
storage for back up power

- Regwonal growth, eg Asia, through leveraging
partner companies

Continuous development into clean propulsion
and energy solutions which are comphant with
fiew emissions regulations

Development of efficiency sofutions, eg e drive/
hybrd drives and fuel diversification towards
gas/dual-fuel

Enhancement of system competence and
solutions to create customer value through
optimised total system functionality and
performance

Expansion of service portfolio, custormised

offerings and intelligent apphcations
and services

Key Rolls-Royce differentiators

- Technolegy leadership and reputation with
market-leading performance and system
approach especially in missien-critical
apphcations, new product innovation
{eg hybnid/e-drive), and high level
of customisation
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Hybrid rail technology is the
energy-saving combination of a
conventional diesel engine and
an electric drive system.

During 2015, Rells-Royce completed further
Luials onits hybud drve power system, the
result of five years of pioneering work.

A conventional MTU railway PowerPack
combines all the individual elements needed
for power and efficiency into a single
functronal umt mounted on a supporting
frame. MTU has delivered more than 6,000
of these PowerPacks to the 1a1l industry.

The MTU hybrid PowerPack combines the
benefits of a conventional diesel system
with an electric propulsion medule, energy
storage and propuision control system.

The basic idea of hybrid rail technology is
that the kinetic energy mitially generated by
the diesel engine is recovered via an electric
motor operating as an electric brake. Thig
energy is stored chemically in a powerful
battery for later use.

Chief Executive’s review / Business review

The recovery of the kinetic energy in braking
mede 1s extremely energy- and cost-efficient,
particularly in stop-and-go situatiens on
local public transport mes where there are
alarge number of stops and on inclined rail
sections on hilly terrams.

In 2015, far the first time, MTU perfarmed
its own tests an a hybrd tramn, Dunng the
tests. fuel consumption was shown o be
reduced by more than 23% compared

to straight forwaid chesel mode. Under
oplimum conditions, MTU believes fuel
savings of 25% or more are possible.

©  READ MORE AT ROLLS-ROYCE.COM
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Summary

Marine is a leading provider of complex and integrated propulsion and
handling systems to the maritime offshore, merchant and naval markets.
The product offering ranges from individual items of equipment

to integrated systerns and flexible mission-criticat solutions, including
complete vessel designs. The business has more than 4,000 customers.
Seventy naval forces and over 30,000 commercial vessels use our equipment.

Key highlights Underlying revenue mix

=» Underlying revenue down 16%; weak
offshore markets impacting both OE
and aftermarket revenues.

Underlying profit before financing down
94%:; significant reduction in gross
margin, led by lower vohuines, and higher
restructuring costs only partially offset
by reduced commercial and
adrinistration costs. B Of revenue

. B Services revenue
Challenging outlook for 2016; led

by reduced demand in offshore
oil & gas markets.

Underlying revenue by sector

Launched two restructuring programimes
in 2015 focused on manufacturing

foot print and back-office functions,
expected benefils tostart to accrue

from 2016 onwards.

W sderchant
W Offshore
W Maval

MARINE

OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

Underlying revenue of £1,324m was 16% lower
on a constant currency basis (down 23% at
actual rates) Withm this, ongmal equipment
reverues werte 19% down at £773m Service
revenues were more robust, although still
dechned 10% This reflected weaknesses

n offshore and merchant, as ship owners
deferred overhaul and mamtenance on the
back of reduced utihsation of their vessels

As atesult of the revenue weaknesses, price
pressure and cost under-recovery gross
margins dechned 500 basis points to 19 6%
and overall gross margin was £260m, £139m
lower thann 2014 As a result, with only
modest reducthions to date being achieved

n corporate, adrmistration and other costs,
underlymg profit was £15m, 94% down

on a constant currency basis

Around £15m of restructuring charges
werte incurred in 2015 and excluding these,
underlying profit dechned 83% In the first
half we took a non-underlying charge

of £69m for the impairment of goodwill

on two of our businesses owing to a less
favourable business outlook, partly driven
by the impact of market deteriorations

on our offshore businesses
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Investment and busmmess
development

The focus m 2015 has been an repositiomng
the Manne business to reflect the very
challenging market environment and outlook
During the year, we also announced a number
of restructunng programmes that will in total
lead to the loss of around 1,000 employees

n operations and back-office functions as

we shrmk our Northern European footprint,
reduce indirect headcount, and consohdate
manufacturing activity This will dehver
projected cost savings of £65m per annum
from 2017 onwards and cTeate a business
better able to compete 1n anincreasingly
cost-conscrous market place which s
geographically shiftmg towards Asia

QOverall, the Marne order book declned 26%
dunng the year, mainly reflecting a very weak
offshore market, particularly in Northern
Europe Orders for new vessels, projects

and services were all sharply lower than 2014
and as a result order mtake was only £997m,
45% down on the previous year

The offshore market was extremely weak
reflecting a low ol pnice and reduced capital
expenditure within the upstream ol
exploration and related services sectors
Targeted mvestment m R&D and rmproving
our Asian position saw progress later m the
year with two major orders from China These
compnised an equipment contract for mine
tug supply vessels and a package of advanced

ship equipment for a dive support vessel
We also saw demand from nen-oil related
sectors such as wind farm support and
fishing trawlers

Activity within our target merchant sectors
was subdued, but we made progress n our
strategy of developing markets for offshore
dernwved technologies withn speciahist areas
such as azmuth propulsion systems for
double-ended fernes We aiso delivered Asia's
first LNG-powered tug and the first of two
all-gas powered cargo vessels for a Norwegian
transport company

The naval busimess was focused on further
development work and delivenies against
contracts n both the UK and US These
mcluded the first DDG 1000 multi-mission
destroyer class for the US Navy and the world's
largest, gas turbine engines, the MT30 for the
UK's two new arcraft carners We also signed
a contract to supply MT30s for operation

on the first three of the Royal Navy's new

Type 26 Global Combat Ship

Product development work within the
business included expanding the range
of permanent magnet-based propulsion
systems, as well as spearheading research
nto our praneerning ship intelhgence
technology focused on data-dnven value-
added services

Chief Executive’s review / Business review

Closing ordetbook

v26%

Marne outlook

Overall the outlook for Manne remams
cautious We expect that the market will
continue to be hit by lTow o1l prices which
willimpact on demand for our products
and services As a result we wll sustam our
cost reduction programmes, focusing on
manufactunng facilities supply chain

and overhead costs, m order to drive a more
competitive business while also adapting
to velume nisks

As set out in Novenber 2015, we expect the
net impact of weak trading conditions and
cost saving mihatives to result in 2016 profits
beng between £75m and £100m lower

than those achieved in 2015 As aresult,

the business 1s expected to be significantly
loss making m 2016

MARINE / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

underlying Acquisitions Fareign

£m 2014 change & disposals exchange 2015
Order book 1,567 (403) - - 1,164
Underlying revenue 1,709 (269} - (116) 1,324
Change -16% - 7% -23%
Underlying OE revenue 1,070 (204) - {93) 773
Change -19% - 9% -28%
Underlying services revenue 639 (65) - (23) 551
Change -10% - -4% -14%
Underlying gross margm 425 {139) - (26) 260
Gross margin % 249% -500bps - - 196%
Commercial and admimistrative costs (254) 27 - 26 (201)
Restructuring costs (4) (16) - 4 (16}
Research and development costs {29) (2) - 3 (28}
Underlying profit before financing 138 (130) - 7 15
Change -94% - - -89%
Underlymg operating margm B1% -750bps — — 11%
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Business review

MARKET REVIEW

In Marme, where we offer integrated ship
solutions {including design, propulsion,
deck machmery, automation and control,
and power electnics), we forecast the
market opportumty across the offshore,
merchant and naval market segments

to be £250bn

Potential for OE and services
ovet the next 20 years

Marine - all sectors

£250bn

Market dynamics

Competrtion

.

Increasing emarenmental legislation
and system efficiency requirements

Population growth 15 teading to an sncreasing
energy and resources demand for cargo and
passenger transportation in the long term

Increasing global and regional trade and
transport of goods with effects on short-
sea shipping

Strong shift from traditional markets towards
Asia both in shipbuilding and operation

Geopohtics and an increasing multipolar world
results i increasing defence expenditures
espeaally in emerging markets which
stimulates demand for naval vessels

Increased technology requirements for harsher
environments, eq deepwater

Currently sigmificant challenges in offshore
markets due to low otl prices and weak
investment signals

+ Major competitors fall inte two groups
—focus on strengthening systems capability
or focus on product and technology

Industry consghdation within recent years
has resuited in the establishment of large
market players

Increasing competition from Asia
especially China

Increasing competition from industnal and

electnc companies driven by more focus on
efficiency and electnfication

Busmess risks

Opportunities

Markets sigrficant reduction in oil price
creates pressure in the offshore market with
all customer groups seeking to reduce costs
and capital commitments

Order delays and cancellations impact our
revenue cash and profit but also put our supply
chain under financial stress

Competition competitors react to a depressed
market by cutting costs, pricing aggressively
and partnering with other players

Business continuaty the main nisk 1s our key
suppliers remaining solvent We monitor and
manage this to ensure no supplier has critical
mass and mamntam busmess continuity plans for
these nisks and other aperational nisks such as (T

Technology fatlure toinvestin the right
technologies to meet custamer demand
n the future

Risk of product failure 1n the field resulting

inthe need for intervention to rectify the 1ssue
with fimangial consequences

- Capture value on more advanced vessels
n offshore

Grow1ntugs ferries and workboats and
short sea shipping in merchant segments

Continue to leverage the joint value propeosition
n naval markets together with MTU

Continue to develop clean propulsion solutions
which are emission compliant to new regulations,
including alternatwve fuels (eg gas/dual-fuel)

Grow 1n integrated propulsion and
electric systems

Establish a leading position in ship intelhigence

Leverage local partnerships to generate
regional growth in Asia especially China
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Key Rolls-Royce drfferentiators

Unique domain knowledge, umque system
portfolio including vessel design, jomt value
proposition within naval together with MTU,
cantimuous innovation and technelogy
leadership, and leadershp in ship mtelligence

Chief Executive’s review / Busimess review

Waterjets for fast cats

Watercat M18 mulii-purpose
vessels use Rolls-Royce Steel Series
Kamewa waterijets to propel them
at speeds of over 40 knots.

These lightweight, agile boats
from Marine Alutech of Finland

are ideal for fast patrol and troop
transportation roles.

©  resomorEaTROLS-ROYCE COM
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Busmess review

Summary

Nuclear is a leader in propulsion system design and development for the
Royal Navy's nuclear submarine fleet and is the sole provider and technical
authority, managing all aspects of plant design, safety, manufacture,
performance and through-life support.

In civil nuclear we provide nuclear reactor vendors and utility operators
with integrated, long-term support services and solutions spanning the
whole reactor lifecycle, from concept design through to obsolescence
management and plant-life extension. Safety-critical systems have been
supptied to around 50% of the global nuclear power plants in service.

We have been a key player in the nuclear industry for more than 50 years.

e
Key high]ights Underlying revenue mix
=>» Underlying revenue 9% higher, strong
service revenues led by increased
subrnatine work.

Underlying profit before financing
unchanged, excluding the benefit froma
£19m R&D credit; voluine benefit of fset
by lower margins.

2016 outlook stzady, focus onunproving W OF revenue
delwery performance and developing B Services revenue
civil nuclear opportunities.
S —

Investing in the business to extend Underlying revenue by sector

systerns offering and increase
Service scope.

Potential for OF and services
in civil nuclear over the next 20 years

£360bn

B Submannes
| Cwl

NUCLEAR

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Underlying revenue increased 9% on a
constant currency basis, led by growth

n both onginal equipment and services

In particular, growth 1n submarine actiities
was strong Revenue growth for our
nstrumentation and controls businesses
was also good, particularly \n Europe

Despite the growthn revenue, gross margin
declimed by 240 basis pomts to 16 2% or
£111m This was largely due to increased
costs on a number of projects with lower
margin Gross marqin was also impacted bya
teclassification of site costs from commeraal,
adrmimstration and other of around £7m
This favourably benefited costs below gross
margm which also benefited from lower

R&D charges as a result of an R&D credit

of £19m which covered the current and the
two previous years Excludmg this, underlying
profit before tax was £50m i hne with the
prioT year After the release, underlying profit
of £70m 15 40% up on the prior year

Investment and business
developments

The order book fell around 13%, reflecting
dehvery of our long-term contracts across
both submarines and cwvil nuclear busimesses
New orders were nased to the second half

of the year, benefiting from the expansion

of our busmess reach and capabihties

Our cvil nuclear busingss focuses on
multiyear projects and speciahst services

for what 1s a growmg global mdustry

We were selected as preferred bidder by

EDF to work on heat exchangers and waste
treatment for the Himkley Point C project in
the UK and we were selected by Hitachi to be
part of the Wylfa power station dehvery team,
the second nuclear power station scheduled
m the UK's new-build programme We also
won a contract to supply safety measurement
systems for the entire French fleet of 9500MwW
reactors These mandates help to further
consohdate our sigmficant pasition in the
European marketplace and position us well

to seek further opportumities for partnerships
n growing nuclear markets
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In the US aur acquisition of R OV Technologies
Inc 1 March 2015 expanded our nuclear
services portfolio, bringing complementary
Boiling Water Reactor expertise and
broadening our existing Pressunised Water
Reactor remote inspection capabihty

Cur submarnine activities have concentrated
on delivenng aganst long-term contracts for
the Royal Navy's nuclear submarme fleet,
meluding delivery of the nuclear propulsion
system to power HMS Artful the third
Astute-class submanine, which was launched
m August 2015 Qur work on the Vanguard
class mcluded work on a refuellimg
programme and also the first successful
upgrade to the reactor control and
instrumentation update for HMS Vengeance
At the Naval Reactor Test Establishment,
HMS Vulcan the PWR2 test facility reactor
was safely shut down having completedits
prototyping role Development work on the
new PWR3 power plant for the Successor
submarnme fleet continues with contract
extensions agreed mn preparation ahead of
the government final investment decision

MARKET REVIEW

All respected global energy forecasts predict
that nuclear power will continue to play

a sigmficant role 1n provndmg low-carbon,
contimuous and secure power The demand
for rssion-cntical equipment, systems and
engmeenng services and the associated
reactor support services for the cwvil nuclear
markets forecast to be £360bn over the next
20 years

Market dynamics

Population growth and improved living
standards in emerging markets are driving
a nse in demand for electriaty

within the future energy mix, low-carbon
energy 1s expected to increase, with nuclear
energy accounting for a sigmficant share

Growth in nuclear power generation 1s
predominantly driven by non-QECD countries
straong growth 1s expected especally in China

Sohd growth in mature markets based
an current operations and plant hfe extensions

Nuclear outlook

The outlook for Nuclear rernarns steady Both
submarines and civil nuclear enjoy long-term
secure aftermarket revenues While business
development opportumties remam modest
n the near-term new power plants for the
Successor together with long-term
opportumties to develop relevant products
for cwvil nuclear applications should provide
meremental growth

Competition

+ In avil nuctear the competitor landscape 15
fragmented and comprises reactor vendors
ongnal equipment manufacturers multy skilled
compantes and nuclear operators in service

Plant operators increasingly outsource
service activities

Busmess nsks

Dehvery fallure to meet customer expectations
or regulatory requirements

Markets 1f nuclear markets do not grow as
anticipated due to external or other pohitical
events then business will be diminished
Customer strategy 1f programmes are cancelled
as a result of strategic decisions such as
abandonment of the UK nuclear deterrent

or vertical integration by reactor vendors,

then future revenues will be dyminished

If we expenence a major product fatlure

n service then this could result 1n loss of hife
and cnitical damage to our reputation

If we suffer a major disruption in our supply
chain then our delivery schedules may be
delayed damaging our fimancial performance
and reputation

Opportumties

Increasing the pace of growth of the vl
nuclear busingss

Focusmg on growth regions beyond current
core markets

Strengthening our position with the rapidly
growing importance of China in the avil
nuclear market

Captunng a ligher share of the nuclear service
market through extension of our geographic reach

Key Rolls-Royce differentiators

- Umique key technology capability in defence
and avil nudear with substantial credibility
(more than 50 years’ experience), broad mix
of offermgs over the whole ifecycle, reactor
mdependent portfolio, capable of global reach

NUCLEAR / KEY FINANCIAL DATA

Underlying Acquisitions Foreign
change & digposals exchange
Order book 2,499 (331) — 2,168
Underlyng revenue 638 56 - ) 687
Change +9% - -1% +8%
Underlymg OE revenue 230 27 - (6) 251
Change +12% - 3% +9%
Underlying services revenue 408 29 - (1} 436
Change +7% - - +7%
Underlymg gross margin 119 (6) - (2) 111
Gross margin % 187% -240bps - - 16 2%
Commeraal and admimistrative costs {61) 6 - 2 (53)
Restructunng costs (1) (1) - - {2)
Research and development costs {7 21 - - 14
Underlymng profit before finanong 50 20 - - 70
Change +40% - - +40%
Underlymng operating margin 78% +230bps - — 10 2%
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DELIVER

Consistent with the plans we laid out in

Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Financial review

November 2015, we have enhanced

the financial disclosures for all cur reporting segments to nclude gross margim,
R&D and other costs below gross margm, as well as restructuring charges
In addition, within Civil Aerospace we have provided addrtional revenue
segmentation and a trading cash flow breakdown These disclosures apply
to both 2014 and 2015 and should help further analysis of trading performance

Order book and order imtake

Underlymng trading

During the year our order book increased by
£2 7bn to £76 4bn Key orders included our
record single order from Emirates for 200
Trent 900 engines which contrnibuted $6 1bn
to the order book Throughout the year new
order intake m our Marine business was
very weak, driven by sigmficant market
detersoration in offshore Overall, orders
were lower 1n Defence and Nuclear,
although we view the prospects for these
businesses as unchanged, reflecting
long-term orders won i previous years

Underlying Group revenue declimed 1%

M 2015 compared to 2014 on a constant
currency basis This reflects a 5% declime

n Tevenue from ongmal equipment, parbally
offset by a 4% ncrease i services revenue,
led by Civil Aerospace By businessona
constant currency basis Civi) Aerospace
Tevenue Increased 3%, Defence Aerospace
revenue decreased 5%, Power Systems revenue
decreased 3%, Marne revenue decreased 16%
and Nuclear revenue increased 9%

Underlymg profit before financing of £1 492m
{2014 £1,681m) was 11% lower on a constant
currency basis, led by a sigmificant reduction m
Marne profit, driven by weak offshore markets
n particular Cwvil Aetospace was down

year-on year, although performance was
helped by around £222m of retrospective
benefits (2014 £150m) led by refimng the basis
for taking account of nisk in our forecasts of

We have signficantly enhanced
this year’s Annual Report with
additional disclosures to
Imcrease transparency and
understanding”

Dawvid Smith
Chief Financial Officer

GROUP TRADING SUMMARY

underlying Acquisitions Foreign
change 2 disposals exchange
Order book 73,674 2725 = - 76,399
Underlying revenue 13,864 (96) - (414) 13,354
Change 1% - -3% -4%
Underlying OE revenue 7418 (363) - (331) 6,724
Change -5% - -5% -9%
Underlying services revenue 64456 267 - (83) 6630
Change +4% - -1% +3%
Underlying gross margin 3,523 (251) - (90) 3,182
Gross margin % 254% -260bps - - 23 8%
Corporate and admmstrative costs {1.0639) 11 - 54 (1,004)
Restructunng costs (149) 107 - 3 (39)
Research and developrment costs (730) (64) - 29 (765)
Jommt ventures and associates 106 10 = 2 118
Underlying profit before financing 1,681 (187) - (2) 1,492
Change -11% - - -11%
Underlying operating margmn 12 1% -130bps - = 11 2%
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Underlying revenue

£13,354m

Underlymng operatmg margm

11.2%

Underlyng profit before financing

£1,492m

2014 exc £13,864m 2014 exc 12 1% 2014 exc £1,68lm

2014 nc £14,588m 2014inc 115% 2014 nc_£1,678m &

2013 £15,505m 2013 118% 013 £183m g

2012 £12,209m 012 12% 2012 £1,450m 2

2011 £12,277m 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 | 2011 107% 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 [ 2011 £1,206m 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015
future revenue on long-term contracts, and the | into service of the Trent XWB B4 1n January Net debt

reversal of previously recogmsed impairment
on contractual aftermarket nghts (CARs) and
release of a related provision Defence
Aetospace delwered an improved year on-year
profit which inctuded one-time contract
benefits, led by contract extensions and
reduced long-term costs Power Systems was
down year-on year m me with our
expectations on a constant currency basis

as the business managed well within a
number of weaker markets Marine, as
expected was sharply lower, reflecting the
weak o1l & gas offshore sector and Nuclear was
m hne, after excluding the positive R&D credit

The R&D charge ncreased 11% over 2014 on

a constant currency basis, largely reflecting
ongoing mvestments in Civil Aerospace for
the Trent 1000 TEN and Trent XWB-97, together
with higher spending on the Trent 7000

and corporate jet programmes In addition,
we mcreased investment m future technology
demonstrator programmes and ymproved
ermssions solutions for Power Systems
apphcations In addition, capitalisation of R&D
dechined significantly largely due to the entry

2015 and increased recogmtion of entry fees

Underlying financing charges were £60m
(2014 £61m) Underlying profit before tax
was £1,432m (2014 £1,620m) The underlying
tax charge was £351m, with an effectwe tax
rate of 24 5% (2014 24 0%)

Free cash flow

Cash capital expenditure in 2015 reduced
to £479m (2014 £616m)}, largely reflecting
lower spend on new aerospace faclities
Cash taxes were £160m (2014 £265m
excluding Energy) The cash cost of defined
benefit pension schemes n excess of the
earnigs charge was £46m (2014 £154m
excluding Energy)

Overall, the free cash inflow for the year

was £166m (2014 mflow of £437m, adjusted
for Energy) The sigmficant dechne from 2014
pnmarnily reflects lower trading margins

and adverse working capital movements
The TotalCare net asset movernent year-on-
year was shghtly higher than expectations

Debt retirement {(Em}

2000

¥ I
. l__

£ Undrawn
BB Drawn

- Im

2016 2017 X018 1019 2020 2020 2022 2023 2024 205 2026 2017

The Group 1s committed to mamtaning
arobust balance sheet and a strong
investment-grade credit rating, which 1t
beheves are important when selling products
which wall be 1n service for decades Standard
& Poor’s updated the rating of Ralls-Royce
Holdings plc i January 2016 to A/negative
outiock and Moody's maintamed a rating of
A3/stable

At the end of 2015, the Group's net cash
balance reduced from £666m to a net debt
position of £111m, reflecting the £166m
positive free cash inflow, movements on
balances with Rolls-Royce Holdings plc as a
result of 1ts share repurchases totalling
£414m and shareholder payments of £421m
Other iterns include residual payments
telated to the divestment of the Energy
business and non-cash foreign exchange
movements Dunng the year we refinanced
our revolving credit facibty, ncreasing it to
£1 5bn, and1ssued two new US bonds,
totalling US51 5bn
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Results broadly in line with the expectations set outin July 2015

UNDERLYING INCOME STATEMENT

£m 2015 2014 Change

Revenue 13,354 13,864 -510
Gross profit 3,182 3,523 -341
Commercial and administrative costs {1,004} (1.069) +65
Restructuning (39} (149) +110
Research and development costs (765) (730) -35
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 118 106 +12
Profit before financing 1,492 1681 -189
Net financing {60) (61} +1
Profit before tax 1,432 1620 -188
Tax (351) (388) +37
Profit for the year 1,081 1232 -151
Gross R&D mvestment {1,240) (1,249) +9
Net R&D charge (765) (730) -35
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Revenue Gross profit Profi; before financing

2014 Change 2014 Change Change

Civil 6,933 6837 +96 1,526 1,675 -149 812 942 -130
Defence 2,035 2069 -34 579 567 +12 393 366 +27
Aerospace Division 8,968 8,906 +62 2,105 2242 -137 1,205 1308 -103
Power Systems 2,385 2720 -335 635 742 -107 194 253 -59
Marine 1,324 1709 -185 260 425 -165 15 138 -123
Nuclear 587 638 +45 111 119 B 70 50 +20
Other 96 46 +50 64 8 +56 52 (2) +54
Intra-segment (106) (155} +49 7 {13) +20 7 (13) +20
Land & Sea Division 4,386 4958 -572 1,077 1281 204 333 426 -88
Central costs (51) (53) +2
Group 13,354 13,864 -510 3,182 3,523 -341 1,492 1681 -189

Reported revenue Reported profit before taxation Net R&D as a proportion of underlying revenue

£13,725m £160m 6.2%

2014 exc
£13,736m £146m 20141nc
£15,513m £2,019m 2013
£12,161m £2,705m 2012
£11,124m £1,106m 2011
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Underlying mcome statement

The ‘Other categoryn the segmental analysis
mcludes residual retained assets relating to
the Energy busmess which were not mcluded
n the sale to Siemens in 2014 and a one-of f
ntellectual property settlement of £58m

The value of these 1s not matenal to the Group

Undertlying profit before financing and
taxation 1s discussed in the Business review
on pages 20to 39

Underlying financmg costs were stable
versus 2014 Anncrease in net interest

of £13m was offset by changes in other
underlying financing costs An undertlying
foreign exchange gan of £34m)15 included,
ansmg from realised gamns on foreign
exchange contracts settled to translate
overseas dividends into sterling

Underlying taxation was £351m, an
underlying tax rate of 24 5% compared with
24 0%1n 2014

Reported results

Consistent with past practice and IFRS
accounting standards, the Group pravides
both reported and underlying figures

We believe underlying figures are more
Tepresentatwe of the trading performance,
by excludmg the impact of year-end mark-to-
market adjustments, principally the

GBP USD hedge book In addition, financing
of post-retirement benefits, effects of
acquisitien accounting and impairment

of goodwll are also excluded Adjustments
between underlying profit and reported
profit in the iIncome statement are set out
n more detail n note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements Tins basis of
presentation has been apphed consistently

Mark-to-market adjustments are pnncipally
driven by movements in the GBP USD
exchange rate which moved from 1 56 to
148 duning 2015

Movements in other financal instruments
relate entirely to fimanoal nsk and revenue
shaning arrangements The put optionon
the non-controlling interest in Power
Systems was exeraised in 2014, so this had
noimpact n 2015

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

£m 2015 2012
Underlywng profit before tax 1,432 1617
Mark-to-market of dervatives and related adjustments {1,065) (1,254)
Movements on other financiah nstruments 8 (8)
Effects of acquisition accounting (124} (142)
Exceptional restructuring (49) (39)
Acquisitions and disposals 2 8
Imparrment of goodwlk (75) -
Post-retirement scheme financing 32 {29)
Other {1) {7)
Reported profit before tax from continuing operations 160 146

The effects of acguisition accounting

n accordance with IFRS 3 are excluded

from underlying profit so that all businesses
are measured on an equivalent basis
Impairment of goodwll principally relates
to the Marine busmness

Costs associated with the substantial
closure or exit from, a site, facihty or activity
are classified as exceptional restructuring
and excluded

Profits and losses ansing on acquisitions
and disposals during the year are excluded

Net financing on post-retirement schemes
15 excluded from underlying profit

Appropriate tax rates are appled to these
adjustments, the net effect of which was an
mcrease of £275m1n the reported tax charge
{2014 £239m mcrease, including a £64m
reduction in the amount of recoverable
advance corporation tax recogmsed})

The 2014 reported results also included
£142m relating to discontmued operations

Balance sheet

intangible assets (note 8) represent
long-term assets of the Group These assets
decreased by £159m 1n the year, with
additions of £408m being more than offset
by amortisation of £407m, impairments to
goodwill of £75m {including £69m Marine
impairment reported n the first half} and
exchange losses of £134m (largely relating
to euro-denominated intangible assets
ansing from the acquisition of Rolls-Royce
Power Systems AG)

The CARs balance imncreased by £156m to
£405m The increase included £50m ansing
from the reversal of previously recogmsed
mpairments During the year, followimng
analysis of the first major overhauls of

Trent 1000 engines the recoverable amount
aof certain CARs has been reassessed This
demonstrated that aftermarket cash flows
from these engines are better than ongmnally
assumed arising from both operational and
contractual performance improvements
Accordingly, cumulative impawrments prior
to 2015 of £50m have been reversed

This has resulted n the capitahsation of
£22m of CARs 1n 2015 that would otherwise
have been ympaired, mcluding £16m
recognised in the interm results
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET
fm 2015 2014

Intangible assets 4,645 4 804
Property, plant and equipment 3,490 3446
Jomnt ventures and assocates 576 539
Net working capital {743) {712)
Net funds (111) 666
Provisions {640) {807)
Net post-retirement scheme (deficits)/surpluses (77) 555
Net financial assets and habihbes (1,854) {833}
Other net assets and habilities (483) (827)
Net assets 6,289 6,831
Otheriterns
US$ hedge book {US$bn) 288 256
TotalCare assets 2,994 2,492
TotalCare liabihtes {783) (687)
Net TotalCare assets 2,211 1,805
Customer financing contingent commitments

Gross 269 388

Net 54 59

Carrying values of mtangible assets are
assessed for impairment agamst the present
value of forecast cash flows generated by
the intangible asset The prmcipal nisks
remam reductions in assumed market
share, programme timings, mcreases in untt
cost assumptions and adverse movements
m discount rates Other than noted above
there have been no sigmficant impairments
m 2015

Property, plant and equipment (note 9}
mereased by £44m Capital expenditure

of £494m was largely offset by depreciation
of £373m, disposals of £34m and foreign
exchange movements of £32m

Investments in Joint ventures and associates
{note 10) increased moedestly, principally

as the share of retained profit exceeded
dividends recewved

Net post-retirement scheme (deficits)/
surpluses (note 18) decreased by £632m,
compnising a reduction of £692m m the
UK and an increase of £60m overseas

The reduction m UK schemes 1s primcipally
due to relative movernents in assumptions
used to value the underlying assets and

habiities in the UK schemes in accordance

with IAS 19 While the corporate bond yields
used to measure the habihbies remamed
broadly stable, gilt yields which are the
principal driver of asset valuations
mcreased, reducng the value of the assets
The schemes adopt a low risk investment
strategy that reduces funding volatihty
{for which both assets and habihties are
measured on a qilt basis) interest rate
and inflatton risks are largely hedged and
the exposure to equities 15 around 9%

of scheme assets

The mncrease 1n overseas schemes arose largely
due to gher discount rates m Germany and
the US

Provisions (note 17) largely relate to
warranties and guarantees provided to
secure the sale of OF and services The
decrease 15 largely a result of the utihsation
of warranty and restructunng provisions

Net financial assets and habilities (note 16)
include the faw value of dervatves and
financial RRSAs The increase wn habilihes
primanly reflects the impact on the US$
hedge boaok of the GBP USD exchange rate
fathng to 1 48 from 1 56 at the beginming of
the year

The Group hedges transactional foreign
exchange exposures to reduce volatihity
The most sigmficant exposure 1s net US$
mecome The US5 hedge book increased
by 12 5% to US$28 8bn, which represents
around five years of net exposure and has
an average book rate of £1 to US51 59

Net TotalCare assets relate to long-term
service agreement contracts in the Civil
Aerospace busmess, including the flagship
services product TotalCare These assets
represent the tirmng difference between the
recognition of iIncome and costs m the iIncome
statement and cash receipts and payments

The net asset imcreased in 2015 by £406m
(2014 £463m), reflecting accounting for
new ‘linked” engines of £521m (2014 £588m)
and retrospective TotalCare accounting
adjustments of £222m (2014 £150m) taken
n the year, offset by cash flows and other
items of £337m (2014 £275m)

Customer financing facihtates the sale of OF
and services by providing financing support
to certamn customers Where such support s
provided by the Group, 1t1s almost exclusively
to customers of the Civil Aerospace business
and takes the form of various types of credit
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and asset value guarantees These exposures
produce contingent habihibies that are
outhined i note 17 Contingent habilities
represent the maximum aggregate
discounted gross and net exposure in respect
of dehvered acraft, regardless of the pomt in
time at which such exposures may anse
During 2015, the Group's gross exposure on
dehvered arcraft reduced by £119m, mainly
due to guarantees expiring

Summary funds flow

Movement m working capital includes an
increase n the net TotalCare asset of £406m
and a reductionn the amount of net
customer deposits of £143m The reduction

n customer deposits s largely m the Marne
business as a result of lower order intake n the
offshore market and lower government spend

Expenditure on property plant and
equipment and intangible assets the
decrease reflects reductions m additions to
property plant and equipment (£174m),
participation fees and certification costs
{£86mm) and capitalised development costs
(E45m)}, offset by mcreased expenditure on
contractual aftermarket rights {£68m) and
foreign exchange movements of £51m

Pensions contrnbutions to defined benefit
pension schemes m 2015 reduced by £63m,
which included a reductionin the UK deficit
funding payments of £36m and the non-
recurrence of discretionary increase
contnbutions of £33m The total operating
charge ncreased by £43m largely due to past
service credits of £8m m 2015 compared to
£31mn 2014 Funding of defmed benefit
schemes 1s expected to be similar in 2016

Movements on balances with parent
company primanly reflects the parent
company’s payments to shareholders and
share buyback, funded by Rolls-Royce ple

Discontinued operations in 2015 reflect a
sales price adjustment of £42m paid 1n 2015
on the 2014 disposal of the Energy business
and wimd-down costs

2014 sxc
20148 1nc
2013
2012
2011

Free cash flow

fl66m

437

738
S50
543

SUMMARY FUNDS FLOW

Previously
reporied

2014

Energy

Excluding
Eneigy

Change

Opening net funds 666 1939

Closing net funds (111 1,273

Change in net funds (777 (666)

Underlymg profit before tax 1,432 1617 (3) 1,620 -188
Depreciation and amortisation 613 600 18 582 +31
Movement in net working capital (546 {520) {152) (368} -178
Expendsture on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {887 {1,114) (30) (1,084} +157
Other (240) 89 (17) 106 -346
Tradmg cash flow 372 672 {184) 856 4384
Contnbutions to defined benefit post retirement schemes in excess of PBT charge {46, {152) 2 (154) +108
Tax {160 (278) 11 (265) 4105
Free cash flow 166 244 {193) 437 -271
Movermnent on balances with parent company (822) (465) - (465) -357
Sharehalder payments - (76) - (76) +76
Acquisitions and disposals (3) (965) — {965) +962
Net funds acquired - {30} - (30) +30
Discontimued operations (121} - 193 (193) +72
Foreign exchange 3 19 - 19 16
Change 1n net funds {777} (1,273) - {1,273)

RoTls-Royce ple AnnualRepart 2015 45

w
=
o
&
=
"
w
F
o
]
b
=1
=
-




Strategic Report / Chief Executive’s review Sustainabihty

As aleading power systems provider
we have a fundamental role m
meeting the environmental and
societal opportuntties and
challenges that the world faces

DEVELOPING A
SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS

-+ BUSINESS ETHICS

- ABC AND EXPORT
CONTROL

- SUPPLIER ETHICS

+ EMPLOYEE SAFETY

= MATE

WHAT MATTERS MOST

Understanding and priortising the
1ssues that matter most to the Group
and our stakeholders enables us to
manage our busmess effectively for the
long term This informs our strategy,
approach and reporting We have
pohcies, processes, targets and
governance m place to manage the most
mportant 1ssues

© | reap more aTROLLS ROVCE COM

= INNOVATION
= EMPLOYEE EP EMENT
=+ TALENT MANAGEMENT

= DATAAND CYBER
SECURITY

OUR
MATERIAL

= PRODUCT SAFETY

= PRODUCT
PERFORMANCE

- PRODUCT
COMPLIANCE

= CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION

ISSUES

ENERGY CONSUMPTION
STEANDRECYCLING
> TAXATION
-+ SUPPLIER QPERATIONS

= DIVERSITY ANDINCLUSION
- EMPLOYEE WELLBEING
2 HUMANRIGHTS

-+ TRANSPARENCY
AND DISCLOSURE

= GHG EMISSION
FROM GUR
AND FACILITIES

RATIONS

NAL PARTNERSHIPS
AUNITY STMENT

= LOCAL ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT

= STEM EDUCATION

B Better power
B Better future
B Better business

EXTERNAL RECOGNITION

Dow Jones Sustamabihty Index
We have been awarded Industry
Leader, Industry Mover and Gold
Class award for the Aerospace and
Defense sector in the Dow Jones
Sustamabihty Index Achieving an
ovetall score of 77, we have been
hsted in the DISI World and

DJSI Europe indexes

QUTREACH

CDP Chmate Change Index

Our score of 998 1 the CDP 1s our
highest to date and has earned
us a place in the FTSE 350 Chimate
Disclosure Leadershp Index

This refiects our commitment

to continuously improve our
environmental performance

and disclosure
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OUR APPROACH

Better power

Helping our customers do more, using Jess

Our engineering expertise helps us to
delver more efficient products for our
customers Our commitment s to wimprove
continuously the environmental
performance of our products and services
Each year we invest over £1 2bn in gross
R&D, twao thirds of which 1s aimed at
mproving environmental performance

Our envitonment strategy focuses on three
areas supporting our customers by further
reducing the environmentalimpact of our
products and services, developing new
technology for future low ermssions
products, and mamtammg our drive to
reduce the environmental impact of our
business actwities

We work with our customers to ensure
optimal performance from our products
throughout their operational hfe We deliver
a broad range of learmmng solutions, ranging
from product operations and mamtenance
to simulation activities

We have an extensive range of field service
personnel and service operations centres
that ensure we have the expertise and
equipment avaable to service our products
with mummal disruption

Our products and services are designed
to the ighest standards of product safety
and we consistently pursue proactive
opportumties for improvement Product
safety and environmental requirements
are an ntegral part of each stage of the
product hfecycle

Better future

Commtted to imnovation, powering better,
cleaner economic growth

Innovation 1s embedded in all of our
products and services and 1s a key
competitive advantage The skills,
knowledge and passion of our workforce
help us to innovate and to dehver on behalf
of customers We are working towards
creating an environment where everyone
can reach ther full potential We encourage
dwversity, engagement and development

We are committed to protecting the human
nghts of our employees Our Global Human
Rights pohcy sets out this commitment
through employment standards covering
employee mvolvernent, diversity and equahty
pay and benefits, working hours, forced
labour and child labour Complhance1s
assessed on a regular basis

Employee health and wellbeing are the
foundation of tugh performance We focus
our health improvement programmes on
key areas n accordance with our nisk profile
health sk management resthence and
wellbeing

A diverse workforce will help ensure our
continued success as a global business and
contribute towards a better future

We use a vanety of channels to communicate
with employees and encourage participation
and engagement Qur community
mvestment and education outreach
programmes are a key component of our
employee mvolverment actiities

Better business

Investing m technology, people and1deas
to 1mprove all aspects of performance

We are committed to conducting every
aspect of our business to the highest ethical
standards and ensunng we are in hne with
all applhicable laws We have a zero tolerance
approach to any formof ethical misconduct,
bribery or corruption

We have a Global Code of Conduct that
apphes to allemployees of Rolls-Royce our
subsidhanes and controlled jomnt ventures,
wherever they are located We set equivalent
standards for our supply chain through our
Global Suppher Code of Conduct

We regard the health and safety of our
employees and those working on our
prevmses or on our behalf, as paramount

We continue to focus on managing the
health and safety risks through risk-based
improvement programmes, strengthening
leadership and cultural change

Reducing the environmental impact

of our business actwites1s a key part of
our environment strategy We continue
to mvestin improving the performance
of our operations by reducimg energy use,
greenhouse gas emissions and waste

We are commatted to optimising matenal
and resource efficiency We are working to
better manage the use of chermcals in our
processes and to phase out the use of
substances that are considered dangerous
to the ervironment or harmful to health

Average number of employees per region®

Average number of employees by busimess umt®

w
®
3
o
=4
Y
k=1
=
E ]
£
o
)
2
3

W UK 23,200 W Germany 10,700 B Cwil Aerospace 23,200 H Manne 6,000
W USA 6,400 M Nordic countries 3,800 M Defence Aerospace 6,400 B Nuclear 4,100
@ Canada 1,100 M Restofweorld 5,300 W Power Systems 10,600 [ Other 200

Headeount data 1s calculated in terms of average full time employees for 2015
See note 6 Employee informatian on page 88 for comparative data
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SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We launched our dashboard of sustainability perfermance indicators in 2015,
with tugher stretching targets base-ined on our 2014 performance

Better power

Descriptron Why we measuret How we have performed
Improving efflnerlcy The Advisory Council for Aviation Research This chart shows the
Tevels of each and Innovation in Europe (ACARE) has set improved efficiency @ e 200
eneraty fthe challenging goals for aviation to meet by levels of each generation 5 (@Trentsoo
| ahono 2050 These nclude developing technologies | of Trent engine from the E 10 T"";'BO? 1000
Trent engine family and procedures to Trent 800 onwards 2 og"
to meet the ACARE P T @ Trentxwe
Fhghtpath 2050 goals Reduce aircraft CO, emisstons 2 13 O Advance
gntp 9 by 75% (per passenger kilometre} 5 20
Reduce noise by 65% @ Trent family g Quitraran
Reduce oxides of mtrogen (NO,) by 90% Q Technology demanstrator *
taTget
This 15 all relative to a typical new aircraft engne gen 3
produced 1n 2000 @ Rolls Royce contribytionte 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050
ACARE Flightpath 2050 target Entry nto service
Improving ermssions Our MTU Series 4000 C&iengines meetthe | This chart shows the improved go @ o
levels of each strictest current regulations for NO, and ermissions levels of each generation & 2
particulates reduction Thesis achieved of the MTU Senes 4000 CRlengine * <
generatton of the § a0
through field tested and proven technology 7 <03
MTU Series 4000 C&l such as two-stage turbocharging and E 60 ® o O
engines exhaust gas recirculation We continue to TE g o
to meet future emissions mnvest in product R&D to meet future @ %change m particulates [g/kwh) & ® -4
regulations emissions regulations O % change nNO {g/kwh) , &1 ® >
& 1998 2003 2008 2013 2018 2023
*» Future trend Entry mtosenace

Better future

Description Why we measure it How we have performed
STEM We aim toinspire future generations Our programmes xeached 1 & rilhon people ; Number of pecple reached {milhon}
Reach 6 million pecple i Saence Technology Engineering and worldwide 1n 2015 70% of whom were actvely  : g
through our STEM Mathematics (STEM) through education engaged m one or more STEM activity Many is
education programmes outreach programmes and activities that programmes were aimed at groups currently ‘;
and activities by 2020 demonstrate the Iife long opportumties under-represented \n engineering careers iz
that STEM careers can offer reflecting our commitrment to encouraging i1
greater dwersity in the workplace % Sms Wis w7 03 mBE 200
'
Emp‘loyee wg]'l'bemg Qur goal is to enhance the personal healthand | Dunng 2015 allsites were requited to complete ¢ LiveWell site acereditation (%)
All sites to achieve our wellbeing of our people to help them reach anmtial Livewel!l acereditation gap analysis One E 100
employee health and thewr full potential The Rolls Royee Livewell site Bristok UK met the criteria for accreditation | 80
wellbeing Livewell accreditabon programme will helptocreatea | and was awarded the Livewell award The j @
accreditation by 2020 culture where healthy choices are encouraged | ntroduction of our Global Smoke Free Campus 40
and rewarded mcluding smcke freesite policy in 2016 will enable more sites to obtam | o
pohoes healthy food chorces and exercise Livewell accreditation Y o s T T s 20
facilities Sites are also required toestablish | famet
local employee wellbeing committees with !
annual objectives i
Employee engagement | Wewant all of gur employees to be able Our Sustainable Engagement Score declined Sustainable Employee Engagement Score
Ensure our Sustamable to perform to their best abhity and shghtly from 84102014 to 811n 2015 aswe HT )
Employee Engagement Index | encourage open collaberation contmue to undergo significant change as a HE e =
1s greater than or equalto engagement and involvement business As a result our Executive Leadership ; €0
the Global High Perforrmance Tearn has cornmitted to and 15 driving a ;9
Norm? by 2020 programme of improvement actions relating i 0
toleadership communication and enablement i o T4 5 X5 T XE 9 =
These are aimed at improving our work ) ‘basatme
eavironment and strengthensng our chmate i
for success { [ score @ High performance norm

! Employee Engagement survey Sustanable Employee Engagement Index and Clobal High Performance Norm provided mdependently by Towers Watson
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Better business

Description Why we measure it How wehave performed
Ethics Our Global Code of Conduct sets out the During the year 100% of our managers have Ethics employee certification and trawning
Allemployees to complete ethical prmaples that underpin our values certified that they have access to, understand * (5% of employees)?
and the way we do business It alsoprovides | and will comply with our Global Code of Conduct | 109

year-on-year Clobal Code
of Conduct certification
and mandatory ethics
traiming

gwdance on haw to apply these prinaiples
n everything we do

Our ethics traming continued to require
managers to lead etiical discussions around

dilemmas with their teams During 2015 97% of
empleyees completed dilemma based training

4 XI5 06 217 MR 219 ARD
baselne

M certfiation W Trammg

Energy

Reduce energy use inour
operations and facilites
by 30%, normalised by
revenue by 2020

Understanding our energy use helps us to
dentify inefficiency and oppertunities for
improvement across our global operations
and actvities Upgrading existing facilities
and investing in ¢nergy efficient technology
helps us to reduce energy consumption

We continue to invest in energy efficient
technology to reduce our energy consumption
and cost Qur energy usen 2015 was

112 MWh/Em This represents a decrease

of 3% compared to 2014 We have invested
mupgrading hghting systems varwable speed

Energy use (MWh/£m)*

development)

mzmszmszmrmm:msmzﬂ

{exchuding product testand and cost drives and voltage optirmsatian We have also
development) introduced more efficient cooling systems
GHG emissions! Investing Inrenewable energy sources and Our total GHG ermssians far 2015 excluding + Absolute GHG emssions (ktCO,e}*
Reduce greenhouse gas other opportumties toreduce our GHG product test and development, was 455 ktCO.e 500
{GHG) ermssions m our ermissions reduces cast and mitigates nisk This represents an 8% reduction from 2014 + 400
operatrons and facilrties associated with energy price volatihty We continue todrive energy efficiency and v 300
by 50%, absolute, by 2025 have developed a number of low carbon and a0
’ ! renewable energy projects across our global . 1

{excluding product testand facilities These include combined heat and ¢ 0

'

'

power 1 generation power systemns and solar

Waste We recogrise that improving the We have seen a modest reduction in the amount * Total sohd and hquid waste {t/Em)?
Reduce total sohd and iquid | environmental performance of our of waste that we dispose of from our sites s
waste inouroperations and | Operations contmibutes to profitable growth | Our total sohid and hquid waste normalised a
faciitres by 25% normalsed The four principal waste streams that by revenue was 4 31t/£mm 2015 '3
by revenue by 2020 contribute ta our waste production are This represents a 3% reduction compared to V2
recyclable sohd wastes hquid wastes sent 2014 New programmes launched in 2015 and 1
for dispusal recyclable metals andsohd contimumg into 2016 are expected to accelerate 0
wastes sent for landfill waste reduction across our global operations
Recychng We are commtted to both ncreasing our The amount of waste sent to landfill has increased  waste tolandfill (000 tonnes)®
Zetowaste tolandfll recycling rates and achieving zero waste to | from 6 700 tonnes in 2014 to 7200{onnes in 2015
n our operations and landfill from our manufacturing and office | Thisisdue m part toanincrease in waste from ! 6
faclites by 2020 faclities We are concentrating on the our Power Systems business and improved waste e
recychng of metals and packaging reporting across the Group Since 2009 we have
{excluding hazardous waste) Hazardous waste will continue to be reduced our waste tolandfill by 3 000 tonnes V2
managed in a safe and controlled mannar and remain confident that more sites willachieve ; 0
zerp waste tolandfill '
Safety We are dedicated to providing a safe and Qur TRITate deteniorated in 2015 to G 82 1 TRirate{per 100 employeesy
Reduce total reportable healthy place of work for all our employees compared to 064 1n 2014 This)s primariiy ' 10
njury {TRI) rate ta 0 3 per contractors and visitors to our faciities and | due totheinclusion of Power Systemsdataand | o7
100employees by 2020, wherever they may work on our behalf improved reparbng of safety incidents across the  pso
to achieve first quartile Group We continue tofocus ourimprovernent 025 -
performance programmes on high consequence activities "o -
in accordance with our nisk profile, for example 24 015 2016 AN B 019 XOO
:
electnical safety and process safety management O Power W stor G -
Supphers Our Global Suppher Code of Conduct sets We released a revision to our Global Suppher Suppliers agreed adherence to the

All supphers aligned

to our own ambitions

all suppliers agree
adherence to the Global
Suppler Code of Conduct
by 2016

out the mimimum standards of behaviour
and practices we requite of our suppliers
We waork to align themn to our own
ambitions 1n ethics, and support supphers
In managing their energy and waste and
in completing submissians to the COP

Code of Conduct at the start of 2015 Qurterms
of business now include agreement to the Code
which makes our comphance expectations clear

75% of our supphers have now contractually
agreed adherence Wae plan to launch strategic
supplier momitoring programmes in 2016

' Global Suppher Code of Conduct (%)

2ms

A6
+ tanget
= [

Q 2 40 LY & 1w

# 2015 certification by managers only
! 2014 data has been restated toreflect the inclusion

of Power Systems

* Regulatory GHG ermissions data detailed on page 61
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial performance mdicators are shown below Other non-financial
performance indicators are shown n the Sustainability section on

pages 48 and 49

Descriptian

Order book

+4%

Wy we measurs it

The order book provides an indicator of future business

We measure it at constant exchange rates and hist prices

and include both firm and announced orders In Civil Aerospace
1t 1s commeon for a customer totake options for future orders
naddition to firm orders placed Such optiens are excluded from
the order book In Defence Aetospace, long term programmes
are often ordered for only one year ata time In such
arcumstances even though there may be no alternative engine
choice available to the customer only the contracted business

1s mcluded in the order book Conservatively, we only include the
first seven years revenue of long term aftermarket contracts

How we have

The order book grew by
£27bn Anincrease

of £3 Bbn 1n Civil Aerospace
was offset by a reduction of
£0 4bn n Marine, reflecting
the current weak market
conditions

£bn

16 737
iﬂn III

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Ordermntake

-4%

Order intake1s a measure of hew busimess secured during

the year and represents new firm orders, adjusted for the
movement in the announced order book between the start and
end of the pertod Any orders which were recorded in previous
pencds and which are subsequently cancelled reducing the
order book are ncluded as a reduction to intake We measure
order intake at constant exchange rates and st prices and,
consistent with the order book policy of recording the first seven
years revenue of long-term aftermarket contracts, include the
addition of the followng year of revenue on long term
aftermarket contracts

Anmncrease of £09bn

in Cwil Aerespace order
intake was offset by weaker
intake in Defence
Aerospace and Marine

£bn

163 161

inc Energy

Ilg‘ |

exc Energy

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 201S

Underlying revenue

-4%

1% excluding FX

Monitoring of revenue provides a measure of business growth
Underlying revenue is used as it reflects the impact of our

FX hedging policy by valuing foreign currency revenue at the
actual exchange rates achieved as a result of setthing FX contracts
This provides a clearer measure of the year-on-year trend

The reduction reflects

a 9% reduction in OF
revenue, offset by a

3% INcTease \n services
Tevenue Marine revenue
fellby 23% reflecting the
weak market conditions

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015

inc Energy

exc Energy

Net R&D expenditure
as a proportion of
underlying revenue

6.2%

This measure reflects the need to generate current returns

as well as to invest for the future We measure R&D as the
self-funded expenditure before both amounts capitalised in
the year and amortisation of previously-capitalised balances
We expect to spend approximately 5% of underlying revenues
on R&D although this proportion will fluctuate depending on
the stage of development of current programmes We expect
this praportion will reduce modestly over the medium term

The increase s largely
due to changes in net
capitahisation, reflecting
the phasing of new Cvil
Aergspace programrnes,
n particular the

Trent XW-84 and the
Trent 1000 TEN

%

=
=
w
e}
e}
=

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015

excEnergy
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Description

Capntal expenditure
as a propertion of
underlying revenue

3.7%

Why we measure it

To deliver on 1ts commutments to customers the Group

mvests significant amounts i its infrastructure All proposed
mvestments are subject to ngorous review to ensure that they
are consistent with forecast actiity and will provide value

for money We measure annual capital expenditure as the cost
of property plant and equipment acquired during the period
and, over the medium term, expect a proportion of around 4%

Chief Executive’s review / Key performance ndicators

Howe we have performed

Expenditure reduced

to £494m (2014 £668m)
principally reflecting
the major investment in
Civil Aerospace facilities
nearing completion

&
g
[y
E

Underlying profit
before fimancing

-11%

We measure undertlymg profit before financing on a basis

that shaws the economic substance of the Group’s hedging
strateqies in respect of the transactional exchange rate and
commadity price moverments tn particular {a) revenues and
costs denominated i US dollars and euros are presented on the
basis of the exchange rates achieved during the year, (b) simlar
adjustments are made in respect of commedity dernivatives, and
(c} consequential adjustments are made ta reflect the impact

of exchange rates on trading assets and habilities and Jong term
contracts on a consistent basis

The reduction reflects
the reduction in revenues
and the Group's ligh level
of fixed costs, which the
transformation
programme s addressing

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015

Free cash flow

£166m

In a business requirng significant investment we momtor
cash flow to ensure that profitability 1s converted mto cash
generation, both for future investment and as a return

to shareholders We measure free cash flow as the movement
n net funds/debt during the year, before movements

ansing from payments to shareholders, acquisitions and
disposals, and FX

The reduction reflects
the lower profits and the
utilisation of provisions

543 550

166

I;sr
g
244

excEnergy

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015

Avetage cash 1s no longer being momitored as a key performance mdicator, as the focus 15 now on the free cash flow

Non-fmancal KPIs

As we undertake significant restructuning, reargarisation and transformation, it 1s imperative that we do not lose focus on our customers,
and that we ensure our employees are fully engaged i the transformation So for 2016, we are mtroducmg two non-financial measures to the
Annual Performance Related Award, relating to customers and employees In Tine with our remuneration pohicy, financal performance will still
be required for any payout, as the non-financial measures will be subject to achieving a profit before taxation threshold

Description How performance 1s measured

Customer sahisfachon Thas 15 measured by the pereentage of on time to purchase order and includes measures for new equipment,
spare parts, equipment repair and overhaul This 15 tracked Group-wide in our scheduling and order
fulfilment system

Employee engagement This 1s measured through our Employee Opimian Survey which produces a composite engagement score
Thetargets will be based on absclute scores
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Risk management

Risk management 1s built into our daily
activities and 1s an integral part of how we
work from our engineering design through
to engine production, servicing and how
we run our operations

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's nisk
mmanagernent and mternal control system and
reviewing 1ts effectiveness The systemis
designed todentify and manage, rather than
ehminate, the nsk of fatlure to achieve busness
objectves and to prowvide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement er loss

Our sk management systern (RMS) helps

us make better decisions and to deal with
problems if they occur It 1s 1/mplemented
through a Group-wide framework mandated
mn the Group nisk management policy,
anetwork of tramed risk management
facihtators, and a software tocl

In 2015, we performed a comprehensive review
of our RMS and are implementing

a programme of work to enhance our RMS
which will continue to be embedded
throughout 2016 This actmity1s sponsored by
the General Counsel and Chief Ainancial Officer
and1s reqularly reviewed by the Audit
Committee The enhancements touch all areas
of our RMS mcludmg categorisation,
governance operating model, reporting and
nfrastructure

Our RMS 15 designed so that pnncipal nsks can
be identified from multiple sources Key
bottorm-up nsks are identified by busmesses
and functions and the detal of nsks that meet
the Group threshold are subject to review and

challenge by the Executve Leadership Team
{ELT) and the Board durng their nsk reviews
This includes momtoring the status of
mrtigation actions, adequacy of contrels and
any madents that have occurred sice the last
Teview Risks are also captured during the
strategy and busmess planning activibes to
nform the development of the principal risks

The Board, assisted by the ELT, has carned out a
robust assessment of, and reviewed our
appetite for, the prinaipal risks facing the
Group These include those that threaten the
busmess model future performance, solvency
and hquidity These reviews have been
complemented by fmancial scenario modethng
of our pnncipal nsks

The Board, or the most appropriate Board
committee, undertakes penodic m-depth
reviews of our pnnapal nsks mwhich it
assesses our matenal controls and the
effectiveness of our nsk management and
mitigation actvities

Busmness units and functions are accountable
fordentifying and managing risk in hne with
the Group nsk management policy Busmess
continuity plans are 1n place to rmitigate
conpimuty Tisks

The Group's enterpnise nsk team, led by the
Director of Risk, 15 responsible for dissermnating
nisk policy and processes and co-ordmating the
effective operation of the RMS Progress of
achions to mitigate nisks and the adequacy

of nsk controls are also now regularly reviewed
by the sector audit commuttees

Jont ventures constitute anincreasingly large
part of the Group's actwities Responsibihity for
nsk and mternal contrel in jont ventures hes
with the managers of those operations We seek

to exert mfluence over such jomt ventures
through board representation Management
and internal audit reqularly review the activities
of these joint ventures

The Board 15 aware that the effectiveness of nsk
management 1s ighly dependent on behaviours,
as a good process does not automatically lead
to a good outcome Our ethics and comphance
Improvement programime, amed at securng
comphance with our ethical standards, and the
Global Code of Conduct are remforcing the
values and behaviours required, which m turn
will contmue to strengthen our nsk
management culfure

Principal nisks

During the year, the Board and ELT focused on
the prinaipal nisks and the actions and controls
n place to manage them

Thisinvolved discussing changes to the 1isks,
reviewing the nsk indscators for principal nisks,
and hearing from management about how
nisks will be managed

This ongoing review of Tisks has resulted n

a further principal nisk being added this year
talent and capabihity This nskhas beenadded
to reflect the sigmificant transformation
agenda ahead and our future growth
requirements and plans

Management of prinaipal nsks

Our nisk framewaork ensures that risks are identified, managed and communicated at every level of the Group

Identily
principal risks
{PRs)

Governance
of PRs

Impact of
PRsanlong-
termviability

Set sk appetite
for PRs

Assess effectiveness of risk management system (RM5)

Monitor
rmibigation and
control of PRs

Reporting
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Strategic
priorities

Risk or uncertainty and potential impact

How we manage it

Product failure

Product not meeting safety expectations,
or causing significant impact to customers
or the environment through fallure

m quahty control

Embedding and operating a safety-first cutture

Applying our engineering design and validation process fromminial design through production
and into service

The Safety & Ethics Commmittee reviewing the scope and effectiveness of the Groups product
safety pohoies to ensure that they operate to the lughest industry standards

Operating a safety management system (SMS), governed by the product safety review board,
and subject to continual improvement based on expernence and industry best practice Product
safety trainmng 1s an integral part of our 5MS

Improving our supply chain quality

Crisis management team jointly chaired by the Group President and the General Counsel

This principal risk 15 subject to review by the Safety & Ethics Commuttee

Busmess contimuity

Breakdown of external supply chain or
internal facilihes that could be caused by
destruction of key faciliies, natural disaster,
regional confhict, insolveney of a critical
suppher or scarcity of materals which
would reduce the ability to meet customer
commutments, win future business

or achieve operational results

.

.

.

Continued ivestment in adequate capacity and modern equipment and facmties
Identifying and assessing pomnts of weakness in our internal and external supply chain
our [T systems and our people skills

Selecting and developing stronger supphers

Developing dual sources or dual capabiity

Developing and testing imcident management and business contmurty plans

Cnis1is management team jomntly chaired by the Group President and the General Counsel
Customer excellence centres providing improved response to supply chain disruption

This primcipal sk is subject to review by the Audit Commuttee

HH

Compehtive position

The presence of large financially strong
competitors m the majonty of our markets
means that the Group s susceptible

to significant price pressure for oniginal
equipment or services even where our
markets are mature, or the competitors
are few Our main competitors have
access to sigmhcant government funding
programmes, as well as the abihity
toinvest heavily in technology and
industnat capabiity

Accessing and developing key technologies and service offerings which differentiate

us competitively (see Engineering and innovation on page 16}

Focusing on being responsive to our customers and improving the quality delivery and reliability
of our products and servicas

Partnering with others effectively

Driving down cost and improving margins (see Chief Executive’s review on page 10)

Protecting credit hnes

Investing in innovation, manufacturing and production, and continuing governance of
technology programmes {see Engmeering and inmovation on page 16

Maintaining a strong balance sheet to enable access to cost-effectve sources of third-party funding
Understanding cur competitors

This primapal nsk 15 subject to review by the Board

Pohtical nsk

Geopolitical factors that lead to an
unfavourable business dimate and
significant tensions between major trading
parties or blocs which could impact the
Group's operations For example exphat
trade protectionism differing tax or
regulatory regimes, potential for confhict,
or broader political 1ssues

.

Where possible, locating our facilities and supply cham in countries with a low level of political
risk and/or ensuring that we maintain dual capability

Diversifying global operations to avoid excessive concentration of risks in particular areas

The international network of Rolls-Royce and 1ts business units proactively momtoring

local situations

Maintaiming a balanced business portfolto with lngh barmiers to entry and a diverse customer
base (see Chief Executive’s review on page 6)

Proactively mfluencing regulation where 1t affects us

This pnnaipal nsk 15 subject to review by the Board

Major programme dehvery

Failure to delver a major programme

on time, within budget, to specification, or
techracal performance falling sigmificantly
short of customer expectations, or not
delivering the planned business benefits
would have potentially sigmificant adverse
finanaial and reputational consequences,
mdluding the nsk of iImpairment of the
carrymg value of the Group's intangible
assets and the impact of potential htigaton

Major programmes are subject to Board approval (see Additional financial mformation en page 151)
Reviewing major programmes at levels and frequencies appropriate to their criticahty

and perfarmance, agamst key financral and non financial deliverables and potential risks
throughout the programme’s hife cyde (see Addrtional financal information on page 151)
Conducting techmical audits at pre defined points which are perfermed by a team that

15 independent from the programme

Requiring programmes to address the actions ansing from reviews and audits and momitoning
and controlling progress through to dosure

Applying knewledge management prinaples to provide benefit to current and future programmes

This principal risk 15 subject to review by the Board

Bl engmeerng excellence [El Operational excellence Captunng aftermarket value

References to comimittees are to commuttees of Rolls-Royee Holdings plc
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Strategic Report / Chief Executive's review Prmapal risks

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Risk or uncertainty and potentialimpact

Comphance

Non-comphance by the Group with
legrslation or other regulatory requirements
in the requlated environment in which it
operates (eg export controls, offset, use of
controlled chemscals and substances and
anti-bribery and corruption legsslation)
compromising our abihty to conduct
business in certain jurischctions and
exposing the Group to potential reputational
damage financial penalties, debarment from
government contracts for a penod of time
and/or suspension of export privileges or
export credit financing any of which could
have a matenal adverse effect

How we manage it

Taking an uncompromising approach to comphance
Operating an extensive comphance programme This programme and the Global Code

of Conduct are dissermnated throughout the Group and are updated from time to time to ensure

their continued relevance and to ensure that they are comphied with, both 1n spmt and to the
letter The Global Code of Conduct and the Groups comphance programme are supported by
appropriate traming

Strengthening of the ethics, anti-bnbery and corruption, comphance and export control teams
Alegal team i1s1n place to manage any ongoing requlatory mvestigations

Implementing a comprehensive REACH compliance programme This indudes estabhishing
appropriate data systems and processes, working with our suppliers customers and trade
associations and conducting research on alternative maternials

This principal risk 15 subject to review by the Safety & Ethics Commmttee

Strategic
priorities

Market and finangial shock

The Group 1s exposed to a number of market
nisks, some of which are of a macro economic
nature (eq foreign currency ol pnce
exchange rates) and some of which are more
specific to the Group (eg hiquidity and credit
risks, reduction in air travel or disruption

to other customer operations) Srigrificant
extraneous market events could
alsomaterially damage the Groups
competitiveness and/or creditwor thiness
This would affect operational results or the
outcomes of financial transactions

Maintaiming a strong balance sheet through managing cash balances and debt levels
{see Financial review on page 4G}

Providing financial flexibiitty by mamtaiming high levefs of hquidity and an investment
grade credit rating

Sustaiming a balanced portfohio through earning revenue both from the sale of original
equipment and aftermarket services providing a broad product range and addressing
dverse markets that have differing business cycles (see Chief Execufive s review cn page 6)
Deading where and what currencies to source In and where and how much credit nisk 1s
extended or taken The Group has a number of treasury policies that are designed to
hedge residual nisks using financial derwatives {foreign exchange nterest rates and
commodity price nsk)

This prinaipal nsk 1s subject to review by the Audit Committee

IT vulnerabity

Breach of IT secunty causmg controlled

or critical data to be lost, made imaccessible,
corrupted or accessed by unauthorised users

Implementing defence in depth through deployment of multiple layers of software

and processes including web gateways filtering firewalls, intrusion, advanced persistent
threat detectors and integrated reporting

Runming security and network operations centres

Actwvely sharing IT secunty infermation through industry government and security forums

This prinaipal nsk 1s subject to review by the Audit Commttee

HH

Talent and capabihty

nabnlity to attract and retam the critical
capabilities and skills needed in sufficient
numbers and to effectwely organise, deploy
and incentivise our people to delver our
strategy business plan and projects

.

Attracting rewarding and retaintng the right peaple with the right skills globally m a planned
and targeted way, incduding regular benchmarking of remuneration

Developing and enhancing orgamisational leadership, technical and functional capabity

to deliver global programmes

Continuing a strong focus onindvidual development and succession planning

Proactwvely monrtoring retirement in key areas and actively managing the development

and career paths of our people with a special focus on employees with the highest potential
Embedding a lean agtle high performance culture that tightly ahgns Group strategy
withindwvidual and team objectives

Retaining, incentivising and effectively deploying the critical capabihties, skills and people
needed to deliver our strategic prionities, plans and projects whilst implementing the Greups
major programme to transform its business, to be resihent and to act with pace and smphaty
Tracking engagement through our annual employee opimion survey and a commitment

to drive year-on-year improvernent to the employee experience and communications

(see Sustanability on page 46)

This pnincipal nsk is subject to review by the Nominations & Governance Commttee

engmeenng excellence [ Gperational excellence Capturing aftermarket value

Warren East
Chief Executive
24 February 2016

(PO oveen Cool
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

lan Davis
Chairman

Appemtment to the Board
Appointed to the Board in March 2013
and as Chairman in May 2013

Current directorships and
bussness mterests

Johnson & Johnson Inc
non-executive director

BPplc non-executwe director
UK Cabinet Office Board
non-executive member
(stepping down 1 March 2016)
Apax Partners LLP, semor adviser
Temasek, Eutopean Advisory
Panel member

Teach for All Inc, director

Majid Al Futtaim Holdings LLC
director

Career, skills and expenence

1an spent s early career at Bowater,
moving to McKinsey & Campany in
1979 Hewas managing partner of
McKinsey s practice in the UK and
Ireland from 1996 {0 2003 In 2003
he was appomted as chairman and
worldwide managing director of
McKinsey, seTving 1n this capacity
until 2009 and retiring as sensor
partnerin 2010 During his career
with McKinsey, lan servedas a
consultant to a range of global
orgamsations across the private,
pubhc and not-for profit sectors

He 15 now semior partner emenitus
of McKinsey

Warren East CBE
Chief Executive

Appomntment to the Board
Apponted as an independent
Non-executive Director i January
2014 and as Chief Executive in
July 2015

Current directorships and

busimess mterests
Dyson Ltd non-executive ditector
A member of the UK Government’s
Busmness Advisory Group

» Trustee of the Institute of
Engineering and Technology

Career, skills and expertence
Warren held various semor
appomntments at ARM Holdings plc
from 1994 mcluding CEC from 2001
t0 2013 He s a fellow of the Institute
of Engineening and Technology
afellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineening and a distingwished
fellow of the BCS the Chartered
Institute for IT He was awarded

a CBEin 2014 for services to the
technology industry

Dawvid Srmth
Chief Financial Officer

Appontment te the Board
Appointed as an Executive Director
m Novernber 2014

Curvent directorships and

business imterests

- Motability Operations Group plc
non-executive director
Warwick Business School advisory
board member
Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants
member of Advisory Panel

Career, skills and expenence

Dawvid joned Ralls Royce in January
2014 as Chief Financial Officer for the
Aerospace Dwision Before joming
Rolls-Royce he was chief financial
officer for technolegy group Edwards

He has spent over 25 years n the
automotive ndustry at Ford and
Jaguar Land Rover

Board of Drectors

Cobmn Stmth CBE
Croup President

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an Executive Director
0 July 2005

Current directorships and

business interests
Council for Smence and Technology
member

Career, skills and experience

Cohn joined Rolls-Royce 1n 1974

He has held a variety of key positions
within the Group induding

Dwrector — Research & Jechnology,
Director of Engineening & Technolegy
—Cwvil Aerospace and Group Director
—Engmeening & Technology, before
being appomnted as Greup President
I January 2016 Colinis a fellow of
the Rayal Society the Royal Academy
of Engmeering the Royal Aeronautical
Society and the Institution of
Mechamical Engineers tnlune 2012
he was awarded a CBE for services

to UK engineering
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Directors’ Report / Board of Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Dame Helen Alexander
independent
Non-executive Director

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executive Director in
September 2007

Current diectorships and

busimess interests

UBM plc chairman

Huawe1 Technologies (UK} Co

Limited non-executve director

Bain Capital, serior adviser

EDF Energy s Stakeholder Adwisory

Panel member

University of Southampton,

chancellor

« She s also involved in not-for-profit
organisattons i media and the arts

Career, skills and expenence

Dame Helen was chief executive

of the Economust Group until 2008,
having joined the company in 1985,
and was managing director of the
Economist Intelhgence Uit from
1993101997 She was president of the
CBI from 2009 to 2011, she has alse
been chairman of Incisive Media and
Port of London Authonity, and

a non executwe director of
Northern Foods plc, BT Group plc
and Centrnica plc She was awarded

a DBE m 20121 for services to business

Lewns Booth CBE
Semor Independent
Non-executive Director

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executve Ditector in May 2011

Current cirectorships and

business interests
Mondelez International Inc,
non-executive director

- Gentherm Inc, non-executive
director

Career, skills and experience

Lew1s xs the former executive vice
president and chief financial officer
of Ford Motor Company a position he
held for over three years until his
retirement from the company in
Apnl 2012 During his 34-year career
at Ford he held a senes of senior
positions 1n Eurepe Asia, Africa and
the US Lewns began his career with
British Leyland before jJoiming Ford in
1978 He was awarded a CBE in June
2012 for services to the UK
automotive and manufacturing
industries

Ruth Carrme
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appointment to the Board
Apponted as an independent
Non-executive Director in
September 2014

Current directorshps and

business interests

Associated British Foods plc

non executive director

Keller Group plc nen executive
director

Retterdam Schoot of Management
member of the advisory board
Cambrnidge University finance
committee member

.

.

Career, skills and expenience
Ruthwas executive vice president
strategy and planming at Royal Dutch
Shell Plc until 2014, before which she
held a number of other semor
mternational 1oles at Shell, including
managing 1ts global commercial fuels
business from 2005 to 2011

Ruth served on the boards of Shell
Pakistan Ltd and joint venture
companies in Germany and Thailand

She also chairs the POWERfuUl women
intiative supporting the progression
of women to senmor positions 1n the
energy sector

Sir Frank Chapman
Independent
Non-executive Drector

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executive Dwrector in
November 2011

Current drectorships and
business interests
Myeloma UK vice chairman

Career, skills and expenence

Sir Frank has worked in the o1l & gas
industry for 38 years including
appointments within Royal Dutch
Shellplcand BP pl ¢ He was chief
executive of BG Group ple for 12 years
until December 2012 and chairman
of Golar LNG ttd from 2014 to 2015
Sir Frank 1s a fellow of the Royal
Academy of Engineering, the
Institution of Mechamcal Engmeers
and the Energy Institute Hewas
kmghtedn 2011 for services fo the
ol & gasindustry
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Alan Davies
Independent
Non executve Director

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executwe Director m
November 2015

Current directorships and

busmess interests
Rio Tinte Diamonds and Minerals
dvision, chuef executive

Career, skills and expenence

Alan joined Rio Tintoin 1997 and has
held a number of senior positions

n Austraba London and the US
predominantly in Rio Tintos iron ore
product group where he has served
as CFO managng director global
development and as president
international operations Alanis

a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia

Irene Dormer
independent
Non-executive Director

Appointment to the Board
Apponted as an independent
Non executive Director n July 2015

Current directorships and

busmess interests
OUTleadership Advisory Board
member
South East Asia Rainforest Research
Partnership, trustee

Career, skills and expenence

Irene was CEQ and president of
HS8C, US, until December 2014 where
she was responsible for all of HSBC's
operations in the US and played a key
role in strengthening the financial
nstitution’s nisk processes Curing
229 year career at HSBC, she held

a number of international roles
inctuding as the first woman tolead
HSBC in Malaysia and launching its
tslaric banking unit

Irene was a consultant at PwC until
February 2016 She 15 a fellow of
St Anne's College Oxford

Lee Hsien Yang
Independent
Non-executive Dhrector

Appointment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executive Director in
January 2014

Current directorships and

business interests

General Atlantic LLC and associated
funds special adwviser

Civil Aviation Authonty of
Singapore chairman

The kslarmic Bank of Asia Private
Lrmited, charrman

The Austrahan and New Zealand
Banking Group Ltd, diector

Lee Kuan Yew Schoal of Pubhc Policy,
member of the Board of governors
INSEAD SE Asia Council, president
Singapore Exchange Ltd, director
Capital International Inc
consultant to advisory board

Career, sklls and expenence
Hsien Yang was chuef executive

of Singapore Telecommumications
urmited for 12 years unti! 2007 He
served as chairman and

non executve director of Fraser
and Neave Lirmted from 2007 until
February 2013

Board of Directors

John McAdam
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appomtmentto the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executive Dhrector in
February 2008

Current directorships and

business mterests

+ ] Sainsbury ple, senior mdependent
director
Rentokil Imbial plc chairman
United Utilities Group PLC
chairman

Career, skills and expenence

John was the chief executive of ICl plc
until ICF's acquisition by Akzo Nobel in
2008 He held a number of positions
at Unilever within its Birds Eye Walls
Quest International and Umchema
International businesses and 15
aformer non executive director

of Severn Trent plc and Sara Lee
Corporation
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Board members by gender Balance of the Board Tenure of Non-executive Directors  Nationahities of Dhrectors®
A Male 10 M Executive Directors 3 MO-3years 6 M British 11
B Female 4 W Non-executive Directors 11 M 3-6years 3 M German 1
W &-9years 2 M Singaporean 1
H Austrahan 1

According to the Company s Articles of
Association at least 50% of all Directors
must be British citizens
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Sir Kevin Smirth CBE
Independent
Non-executive Director

Appomtment to the Board
Appointed as an independent
Non-executive Director in
November 2015

Current directorships and
business interests
Umitas Capital serwor adviser

Career, skills and expenence

Sir Kevin joined Unitas Caprital im 2012
and served as partner and chairman
of 1t5 operating advisor group until
October 2015 He was chief executive
officer of GKN plc until 31 December
2011, having led GKN's Aerospace
dmasion from 1999 to 2003 Before
Joming GKN, he spent nearly 20 years
wrth Bnitish Aerospace (BAe plc),
becoming group managing directar of
BAe s New Business division Sir Kevin
served as a non-executive director

of Scottish and Southern Energy plc
between June 2004 and July 2008

He was knighted 1n 2006 for services
to industry and 1s a fellow of the
University of Central Lancashire, The
Royal Aeronautical Society and The
Chartered Institute of Management

Jasmin Staiblin
tndependent
Non-executive Director

Appomntment to the Board
Appomted as an independent
Non executive Director in May 2012

Current directorships and

business interests

+ AlpigHolding AG CEO

+ Georg Fischer AG, non executive
director
Federal Institute of Technology
the ETH Domain board member

Career, skills and experence

Jasrmin 15 the CEQ of Alpig Holding AG
She held a number of semor posttions
at ABB Switzerland Ltd a subswdiary
of the ABB Group culminating in her
serving as CEQ of ABB Switzerland Ltd
until December 2012 She has hved
and worked i Switzerland Sweden
and Austraha

Pamela Coles
Company Secretary

Appointment
Appointed as Company Secretary
in October 2014

Career, skills and expenience

Pamela has been a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Secretanes
and Administrators since 1997,

and 1s an exper{ 1in goveTnance

and company law She has held a
variety of company secretary roles
throughout her career She joined
Rolls-Royce from Centrica ple
where she was head of secretanat
Pamela s previous roles also include
group company secretary and a
member of the executive committee
at The Rank Group plc and company
secretary & head of legal at RAC plc

The names of the directors who held
office duning the year are set out on
pages 5510 58, with the exception of
James Guyette and John Neill who
left the Company on 8 May 2015 and
John Rishton who left the Company
on 2 july 2015

At 31 December 2015, all the directors
were also directors of Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc the ultimate parent
company As directors of the ultimate
parent company, there 1s no
requirement to disclose their
remuneration or their interests

1n the shares of Rolls-Royce group
companies in this Directors’ Report
as they are included in the Annual
Report of Rolls-Raoyce Holdings plc

EXECUTIVE
LEADERSHIP TEAM

The Executive Leadershmp Team
1s the executive forum in which
the Group's serwor leaders come
together to commumcate,
Teview and agree on 1ssues

and actions of Group-wide
significance, and assist the
Chief Executive in the
performance of his duties

Warren East CBE
Chief Executive

Cohn Smith CBE
Group President

Dawvd Smith
Chief Financial Ofhicer

Chns Barkey
Group Director —
Engineering & Technology

Marnion Blakey
President & CEQ Rolls-Royce
North Amenica

Chns Cholerton
President — Defence Aerospace

Miles Cowdry
Corporate Development Dizector

Dr Ulnch Dohle
CEO - Power Systerns

Mark Gregory
Ceneral Counsel

Harry Holt

Group Operations Strategy Director
(Transitional support}

President — Nuclear

Mary Hurmston
Group Human Resources Director

Mikael Makmen
President —Marine

Enc Schulz
President - Cwvil Aerospace

Lawmne Haynes
Executive
(Transitional support)

Tony Wood
Executwe
{Transttional support)
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Director’s Report / internal control and risk management

INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's responsibihty for internal control and
misk management

The Board has overall responsibihty to the shareholders for

the Group's system of internal control overits business and

sk management processes and the risks identified through the
risk management process

In developing our mternal governance framework we looked at how
the Company’s risk management and mternal control systems wotk
together As noted on page 52, these systems are designed to manage
rather than ehminate the nisk of failure to achieve objectives and so
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance agamst
material misstatement or loss The Board has reviewed the
effectveness of the nsk management andinternal control systems
inctudimg controls in relation to the financial reporting process, for
the year under review and to the date of this report

The Group has a long-standing process for identifying rnisks and
planming mitigating actions and for assessing the effectiveness
of internal control During 2015, as an enhanced model for
representing the system was approved, compnising

+ enhity-level controls covenng leaderstip and direction from
the top, and

+ speafic control activities, covering detailed process controls,
and internal and external assurance activibes

The Board will continue routmely to challenge management m
order to ensure that the system of mternal control s constantly
improving and rernams fit for purpose A major review of our nsk
management framework has been conducted over the past year
and implementation 1s now underway

This model was then populated and the operation and effectiveness
of the controls rated This commenced m 2015 and prniontised

+ entity-level controls,
» controls over principal nisks as described on pages 52 to 54,

- controls over key risks and cnitical processes for each of the
Group's business, and

+ core financial controls

Work will continue during 2016 to complete the defimtion and
documentation of the controls 1n the enhanced model

ludgement s requited 1n evaluating the nisks facing the Groupin
achieving 1ts objectives, in deternmmng the risks that are considered
acceptable 1n determining the hkelihood of those 1isks
matenahising, inidentifying the Group's ability to reduce the
mcidence and impact on the business of nisks that do matenalse,
and n ensuring the costs of operating particular controls are
proportionate to the benefit pronded

The Group s also using this standardisation of the internal control
framework as an opportumty to improve the consistency of
reportmg, in particular from the Group’s smaller operations

Particular attention was paid to internal controls over fimancial
reporting and, mindful of the current business challenges the
Groups facmng

Finanaal reporting

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual
budget approved by the Board Revised forecasts for the year are
reported at least quarterly Actual resuits, at both a business and
Group level are reported monthly agamnst budget and vanances are
kept under scrutimy Since his appointment in November 2014 the
Chef Fimancial Officer has undertaken an m-depth review of our
management reporting and budgeting processes to ensure that
they fully provide what we need, taking into account the size and
shape of the Group and the structure of our operations

Fmancial managers are requtred to acknowledge m wniting that
therr routme financial reporting 15 based on rehable data and that
results are properly stated 1n accordance with Group requirtements
In addtion, for annual reporting, business presidents and finance
directors are required to confirm that their business has comphed
with the Group's finance manual

The Audit Commtttee

Rolls-Royce Holdings plc has an Audit Committee, whose key
objective 15 assist the Board m ensuring the integnity of 1ts financial
statements tn addressing the key objective, the committee
reviewed financial statements with both management and the
external auditor, concentrating on

Finanaal reporting

- review finanaial statements focusing on — the appropnateness
of entical accounting pahicies, judgements and estimates and
consistent apphcation of those accounting pohcies,

- nclusion of appropnate disclosures, and
+ comphance with relevant regulations

Risk and control environment
- assess the scope and effectiveness of the systems to 1dentify
manage and monitor financial and non-financial risks

- assess the management of principal nisks allocated to the
committee business contimuity, market and financial shock and
ITvulnerability,

- teview the procedures for detecting, momtoring and managing
the nisk of fraud.,
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Directors’ Report / Shave capital

INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

+ 1eview the system of internal control over the business processes
and the risks dentified through the risk management process

Internal audit

- Teview the scope, resources, results and effectiveness of internal
audit

External auditors

- oversee the relationsip with the external auditor, reviewing the
effectiveness of the external audit process and making
recommendations to the Board for the external auditor's
appomtment and fees

The Rolis-Royce Holdings plc Etincs Committee
and the referral the Senous Fraud Office

Regulatory investigations

We previously reported that the Senous Fraud Office (SFO) had
begun a formal investigation The Group 1s continwing to cooperate
with the authonties in the UK, US and elsewhere The Ethics
Commuttee recewved regular updates on the regulatory
mvestigations As the investigations are still ongowng we are unable
to give any further details or a timescale for when they will conclude

SHARE CAPITAL

Disaphmary proceedings under the Global Code of Conduct

(Global Code)

If an employee 15 found to have acted n breach of the Company’s Global
Code, the Graup takes approprniate action to address that breach That
action may include giving a disciphnary warmng ymposing another
penalty or, ultimately, termmating employment 1in the most serous of
cases In 2015, there were 33 employees whose employment ended for
reasons relating to breaches of the Global Code

Ethics and comphance improvement programme and

Lord Gold's review

Lord Gold was engaged in 2013 te provide independent assessment
and guwidance to assist the Company m mproving its ethics and
comphiance culture In December 2014 Lord Gold 1ssued a second
intenm report and recommendations on the results from s
detailed review The Group has been implementing these
recommendations 1 2015 through 1ts ethics and comphance
improvement programme under the comrmttee’s oversight and has
continued to make good progress Lord Gold attended three
meetings of the commttee durmg the year We discussed the
results of lns review and his observations, including msights from
focus groups held with a mix of employees m different countnes

The size, structure and skills of the nsk team were kept under review
durmng the year with reqgard to required resourcing to dehver and
mamtain the appropniate level of focus

Throughout 2015, the Company’s authorised share capital was
£400 rithon, comprising 2,000,000,000 ordmary shares of 20p
On 31 December 2015, there were 1,630,896 508 ordnary shares
missue

Each member has one vote for each ordmary share held Holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to recewve the Company's

Annual Report, attend and speak at general meetings of
the Company, to appoint one or more proxies or 1f they are
corporations, corporate representatives, and to exercise
voting nights

The ordinary shares are not hsted
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OTHER STATUTORY
INFORMATION

Directors’ report / Other statutory mformation

Dhsclosures mn the strategic report
The Board has taken advantage of section 414C(11) of the
Companies Act 2006 to include disclosures in the Strategic Report on

Tetal GHG ermissions (ktCO,e) 2011 2012 2013 2014° 2015

Direct ermssions —faciities processes 218 219 241 231 242
product test and development (Scope 1)

Pagels) | |ndirect ermissions — facilities 327 313 313 382 360
+ disabled people and employee ivolvement, 47 | processes, product test and
development (Scope 2)
the future development, performance and position 11054 | 1otal for facrities, processes, 545 532 554 683 602
of the Group, product test and development
the financial position of the Group, 40to45 | Direct erissions — power generation 153 155 132
tognd (Scope 1)
« R&D activities, and 16
Inditect ermssions — power generation 12 4 15
+ the pnincipal nisks and uncertainties 52to 54 | tognd {Scope 2)
Total for facihties, processes, 719 852 749
Pohtical donations product test and development,

In ine with its estabhished pohcy, the Company does not make, and
does not mtend to make, donations to pohtical parties withim the
normal mearng of the expression political donations’ However, 1t
15 possible that certam actwvities undertaken by the Group may
unintentionally fall within the broad scope of the provisions
contamed in the Compames Act 2006 (the Act)

During 2015, expenses mcurred by Rolls-Royce North Amenica Inc
{RRNA) in providing admmistratve support for the Rolls-Royce North
Amenca Pohtical Action Comnttee (RRNA PAC) was US545,021
(2014 1J5$52,650) PACs are a common feature of the US pohtical
system and are governed by the Federal Election Campaign Act

The RRNA PAC 15 mdependent of the Group and mndependent of any
pohtical party The RRNA PAC funds are contributed voluntanly

by emplayees and the Group cannot affect how they are apphed
although, under US law, the business expenses are paid by the
employer company (RRNA) Such contnibutions do not require
authonsation by shareholders under the Act

Greenhouse gas emissions

in 2015, our total greenhouse gas {GHG) emissions from our
facihbies and processes, including product test and development
was 602 kilotonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (ktCO,e) This
represents a decrease of 12% compared with 683 ktCO,e n 2014

All figures exclude fugrtive ermssions of hydrofluoracarbons (HFCs)
associated with arr conditioning equipment We are putting n
place a system to be able to extract this data from records kept
under the F-Gas reguiations We do not anticipate a matemal impact
on our reported GHG emmissions

and power generation to gnd

Intensity ratio (total emmissions 0048 0062 G055
normalised by revenue) for facilihies,

processes, product test and

development, and power generaticn

to gnd (ktCO,e/£m)

* 2014 data has been restated to reflect the inclusien of greenhouse gas emissions

data from Power Systemns Figures for prior years (2011 to 2013) do net include data
from Power Systems and therefore are not directly comparable

with the exceptions noted above, we have reported on all of the
emission sources requited under the Compames Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors Reports) Regulations 2013 These sources fall
within our Cansolidated Finanaial Statements We do not have
responsibility for any ermission sources that are not mcluded mour
Consohdated Financial Statements

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accountmng and
Reporting Standard (revised edition} as of 31 December 2014, data
gathered to fulfil our requirements under the Carbon Reduction
Comrmmtment (CRC) Energy Efficiency scheme and ermission factors
from the UK Government's GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting 2015

Further details on our methodology for reporting and the critenia
used can be found withm our Basis of Reporting, avarlable to
download from our website at rolls-royce com
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OTHER STATUTORY

INFORMATION CONTINUED

Branches

Related party transactions

We are a global cornpany and our activities and interests are
operated through subsidianies, branches of subsidiaries, jomt
ventures and associates which are subject to the laws and
regulations of many different junsdichions Cur subsidianies
and joint ventures are isted on pages 143 to 149

Related party transactions are set out in note 23 to the Consohdated
Financial Statements

Management report

Post balance sheet events

Therte have been no events affecting the Group since 31 December
2015 which need to be reflected m the 2015 Fiancial Statements

Financial mstruments

Detanls of the Group’s financial instruments are set out in note 16
to the Consohdated Finanaal Statements

The Strategic Report and the Directars’ Report together are the
management report for the purposes of Rule 4 1 8R of the
Finanaial Conduct Authonty's (FCA's) Disclosure Rules and
Transparency Rules

DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Responsibihity statements

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities n respect of the

Armual Report and the Fimancial statements

The Directors, as hsted on pages 55 to 58, are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent company
financial statements m accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requites the Directors to prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group finanaial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements
m accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applhcable law

Under company law the Directors must not approve the fmancial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or loss for that peried

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them
consistently,

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent

+ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EL,

- for the parent company finanoal statements, state whether
apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explamed n the parent
company fmanaal statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
uniess it 15 mappropriate to presume that the Group and the
parent company will continue 1 busmess
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

The Dhrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent and
Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial posttion of the parent company and enable them
to ensure that 1its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to thern to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanties

The Directers are responsible for the mamtenance and mtegnity

of the corporate and financial mformation included on the Groups
website Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and
dissermnation of finanaial statements may differ from legislation
n other junsdictions

Responsibihty statements under the disclosure and

transparency rules

Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that to the best of tus or her knowledge

1) each of the Group and parent company financial statements,
prepared 1 accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards
respectively, gives a true and fairr view of the assets, habihties
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings mcluded in the consohdation taken as a whole

=

the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 54 and Directors’ Report an
Ppages 55 to 63 and pages 151 and 152 include a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consohdation taken as a whole, together wath a descrniphion of
the principal rsks and uncertainties that they face, and

) the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,

business model and strategy
)
S

Comng concern

The going concern assessment considers whether 1t 1s appropnate
to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

As descnibed on page 152, the Group meets its funding
requirements through a mixture of shareholders’ funds, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes At 31 Decermber 2015, the Group had
borrowing facihities of £5 1 ilhon and total iquidity of £5 0 talhon,
mcluding cash and cash equivalents of £3 2 bilhon and undrawn
facibties of £1 8 bithon £419 milhon of the facihties mature in 2016

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking mto account
reasonably possible changes in trading performance show that the
Group has sufficient financial resources The Directors have
reasonable expectations that the Company and the Group are well
placed to manage business nisks and to continue i operational
existence for the foreseeable future (which accounting standards
requite to be at least a year from the date of this report) and have
not identified any matenal uncertambies to the Company s and the
Group's abihty to do so

On the basis described above, the Directors consider 1t appropnate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consohdated
financal statements (1n accordance with the “Gudance on Risk
Management, internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting” pubhshed by the Fimancial Reparting Councail m
September 2014)

Disclosure of mformation to audrtors

Each of the persons whos a Director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s ne relevant audit
information of which the Company s auditor 1s unaware, and

1} the Directer has taken all steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of
any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the
Company's auditor1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given, and should be interpreted, in accordance
with the prowisions of Section 418 of the Compares Act 2006

By order of the Board

oA

Pamela Coles
Company Secretary

24 February 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Finanaal Statements

2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 13,725 13736
Cost of sales {10,459} (10533)
Gross proht 3,266 3,203
Other operating income 10 10
Commercial and admimistrative costs {1,059) {t 124)
Research and development costs 3 (818) {793)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 10 100 94
QOperating profit 1,499 1,390
Profit on acquisthion/reclassification of joint ventures - 2
Profit on disposal of businesses 2 6
Profit before financing and taxation 2 1,501 1,398
Financing incorme 4 115 32
Financing costs 4 {1,456) {1284)
Net financng (1,341) {1252)
Profit before taxation! 160 146
Taxation 5 {76} (151)
Profit for the year from contimuing operations 84 {s)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from ordinary achivities 2 - 4
Profit on disposal - 138
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 142
Profit for the year B84 137
Attnibutable to
Ordinary shareholders 83 148
Non-controlling interests 1 (11}
Profit for the year 84 137
2 1,432 1,620

t Underlying profit before taxation
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

015 2014
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 84 137
Other comprehensive meome (OC1)
Movements in post-retirement schemes 18 {722) 1192
Related tax movements 257 (431)
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {465) 761
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations (129) (158)
Reclassified to income statement on disposal of businesses 1 (29)
Share of OCI of joint ventures and associates 10 (19) {13)
Related tax movements 5 {2 2
Items that may be reclassified to profit ot loss {149) {202)
Total comprehensive income for the year (530) 696
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders {5320) 729
Non-controlling interests - (33)
Total comprehensive income for the year {530) 696
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2015

Fmancoal Statements

2015 014
MNotes fm £m
ASSETS
Intangible assets 8 4,645 4,804
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,490 3446
Investments — joint ventures and associates 10 576 539
Investments — other 10 33 31
Other financial assets 16 33 107
Deferred tax assets 5 318 369
Post retirement scheme surpluses 18 1,063 1,740
Non-current assets 10,208 11036
Inventores 11 2,637 2,768
Trade and other receivables 12 7,985 6820
Taxation recoverable 23 19
Other financial assets 16 29 22
Short-term investments 2 7
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,176 2,862
Assets held for sale 5 1
Current assets 13,857 12,499
TOTAL ASSETS 24,065 23535
LIABILITIES
Barrowings 14 (419) (68)
Other financial habilities 16 (302) {187)
Trade and other payables 15 {7.420) (7.680)
Current tax habilities {164) {184)
Prowvisions for habilitves and charges 17 {336) (433)
Current habhties (8,641) (8,552)
Borrowings 14 (2,883) (2193)
Other financial labilities 16 {1,651) {717)
Trade and other payables 15 {2,317) {2,445)
Non current tax liabihties (1) (10)
Deferred tax labiities S {839) {1,228)
Provisions for hiabilities and charges 17 (304) (374)
Post-retirement scheme deficits 18 (1,140) {1185)
Non current habihties {9,135} (8,152)
TOTAL UABILITIES (17,776} {16 704)
NET ASSETS 6,289 6831
EQUITY
Called-up share capital 19 326 326
Share premiumn account 631 631
Cash flow hedging reserve (100) 81)
QOther reserves (54) 75
Retained earmings 5,484 5.875
Equity atinbutable to erdinary shareholders 6,287 6826
Non-controlhing interests 2 5
TOTALEQUITY 6,289 6,831

The financial statements on pages 65 to 118 were approved by the Board on 24 February 2016 and signed on its behalf by

WARREN EAST Chief Executive

LS oven. Gabl

DAVID SMITH Chief Financial Officer

I\ W (N
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T nnsenens 4

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015

2015 2014
Naotes £m £m
Reconcihation of cash flows from operating actvities
Operating profit from continuing operations 1,499 1390
Operating loss from discontinued operations - {1
Operating profit 1,499 1,389
Loss/(profit} an disposal of property plant and equipment 8 (3)
Share of results of jont ventures and associates 10 (100) (94)
Dividends recewved from Jomnt ventures and assocates 10 &3 73
Return of capital from joint ventures 10 - 3
Gamn on consolidation of previously non-conschdated substdiary - (3)
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 8 432 387
Depraciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 9 378 375
Imparrment of Investments 10 2 —
{Decrease)/increase in provisions (151) 129
Decrease in inventories 63 166
Increase in trade and other recewables (836) {878)
fnerease in trade and other payables 240 203
Cash flows on other financial assets and habihties held for operating purposes (305) (30}
Net defined benefit post-retirement cost recognised in profit before financing 213 170
Cash funding of defined benefit postretirement schemnes {259) (322)
Share-based payments 20 5 21
Net cash inflow from operating actvities before taxation 1,252 1566
Taxation paid {160} (276)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,092 1,290
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of unhisted investments (6} 11)
additions of intang:ble assets (a08) (477)
Disposals of intangibles assets 4 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {487) (648)
Government grants recelved ] 11
Disposals of property plant and equipment 33 65
Acquisitions of businesses (s) (3)
Acquisstion of nan-controlling interest - (1937)
Disposal of discontinued operations (121} 1027
Disposals of other businesses 2 24
Investments in joint ventures and associates {15} {17)
Net cash cutflow from investing activities {995} (1966)
Cash flows from financing actwities
Repayment of loans (54) {233)
Proceeds from ncrease in loans and finance leases 1,150 49
Capital element of finance lease payments (1) -
Net cash flow from increase/(decrease) i borrowings and finance leases 1,095 (184)
Interest receved 5 18
Interest paid (s8) (e3)
Interest eferent of finance lease payments {2) -
Decrease in short-term investments 5 313
Movement on balances with parent company (822) {465)
Dwvidend paid to non-controlhing interest - (76)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 223 (457)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 320 (1133)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2,862 3,987
Exchange {losses)/gans on cash and cash equivalents {6) 8
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 3,176 2,862
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Fimanaal Statements

2015 2018
£m £m
Reconcihation of movements in cash and cash equivalents to movements wn net funds
Change in cash and cash equivalents 320 (1,133)
Cash flow from (increase)/decrease 1n borrowings and finance leases (1,095) 184
Cash flow from decrease in short-term mvestments (5) (313}
Change in net funds resulting frem cash flows (780) (1,262)
Net funds (excluding cash and cash equivalents) of businesses acquired - (30)
Exchange gains on net funds 3 19
Fair value adjustments 45 (59)
Movement w net funds (732} (1,332)
Net funds at 1 January excludmg the fair value of swaps 608 1,940
Net funds at 31 December exclhuding the fair value of swaps (124) 608
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 13 58
Net funds at 31 December {111} 666
The movement n net funds (defined by the Group as mcluding the items shown below) 1s as follows
At at
1january Funds Exchange Farr value 31 December
015 flow differences adjustments Reclassifications 2015
£m fm £m im £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 739 {69) (8) - - 662
Money market funds 692 92 {1) - - 783
Short term deposits 1,431 297 3 - - 1,731
Cash and cash equivalents 2,862 320 (6) - - 3,176
Short term investments 7 (5) - - - 2
Other current borrowings (67) (64) - 8 (294) {a17)
Non current borrowings {2,149) (1,027) 12 37 294 {2,833)
Finance leases (45) (4) (3} - - (52)
Net funds excluding fair value of swaps 608 {78G) 3 45 - (124)
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 58 (45) 13
Net funds 666 (780) 3 = - (111)
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I Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attnbutable to ordinary shareholders

Cash flow contr;%':\-g

Share Share  hedging Other Retamed interests Tatal

capital premium Tgserve’  Teserves earnings Total (NC) equity

Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1January 2014 326 631 {68) 247 6,300 7,436 698 8,134
Profit for the year - - — - 148 148 {11) 137
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations - - - (141} - (141) 17} (158)
Reclassified to income statement on disposal of businesses - - - (29} - {29) - {29)
Movement on post-retirement schemes 18 - = = - 1199 11989 {7) 1192

Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures
and associates 10 - - (13) - - {13) - {13)
Related tax movements 5 - - - 2) (433) (435) P (433)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {13) (172} 914 729 (33) 696
Share based payments—direct toequity? - - - - 18 18 - 18
Purchase of NCI's remaining interest 1n subsidiary® - - = - (1353) (1353) (584) (1937)
Transactions with NCi - - - = - - (76) {76)
Related tax movemnents 5 - - - - (4) {2 - (4)
Other changes in equity in the year - - - - (1,339} (1,339 (660) (1,999)
At1January 2015 326 631 (81) 75 5,875 6,826 5 6,831
Profit for the year - - — - 83 83 1 84
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations - - - {128) - (128) (1) {129)
Reclassified to income statement on disposal of businesses - - - 1 - 1 — 1
Movement on post retirement schemes 18 — — - - (722) (722) — (722)
Amount credited to cash flow hedge reserve - - - - - - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures

and associates 10 - - (19} - - {19) - 19)
Related tax movements 5 - - - (2) 257 255 - 255
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {19) (129) (382) (530} - (530)
Share-based payments — direct to equity? - - - - (3) (3) - (3)
Disposal of business - - - - - - (3) 3)
Dividend paid to NCI - - - - - - = -
Related tax movements 5 - - - - {6) ) - (6)
Other changes in equity in the year - - - - {9} (9} {3) (12)
At 31 December 2015 326 631 {100) (54) 5,484 6,287 2 6,289

* See accounting pehcies note 1

excluding thase vesting from own shares

' On 26 August 2014 the Group purchased the remaiming 50% of Rolls Royce Power Systems Holding GmbH from Dawmler AG far £1 937m

* Share based payments —direct 10 equity 15 the net of the credit to equity in respect of the share based payment charge to the income staternent and the actual cost of shares vesting
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Finanaal Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

THE COMPANY

Rolls-Royce plc (the ‘Company’) is a company domciled in the Umited Kingdom The consohdated financial statermnents

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 constst of the consohdation of the financial statements of the Company

and 1ts subsidianies {together referred to as the ‘Group ) and nclude the Group's interest mjointly controlled and associated entities

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In accordance with European Union {EU) regulations, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reportmg Standards {IFRS) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) as adopted for use 1n the EU effective
at 31 December 2015 (Adopted IFRS)

The Company has elected to prepare its mdvidual company financial statements under FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework This yearis
the first year that the financial statements have been prepared under FRS 101 They are set out on pages 119 to 142 and the accounting
poheiesin respect of Company financial statements are set out on page 121

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where Adopted IFRS requires the
revaluation of financal instruments to fair value and certain other assets and habihties on an alternative basis — most sigmficantly
post-retirement scheme obhgations are valued on the basis required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits — and on a going concern basis

as described on page 63

The consohdated financial statements are presented in sterhing wiich 1s the Company’s functional currency

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRS requires management to make judgements and estimnates that
affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the financal statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting peniod Actual results could differ from those estimates

KEY AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

Intreduction

The Group generates a sigmficant portion of its revenues and profit on aftermarket arrangements anising from the installed oniginal
equipment {OE) fleet As a consequence, the Group will often agree contractual prices for OE delivenies that take into account the
anticpated aftermarket arrangements Accounting pohicies reflect this aspect of the business model, in particular the pohicies for
the recogmition of contractual aftermarket nghts and the linkage of OF and aftermarket arrangements

when a ewl large engine 1s sold, the economic benefits received usually far exceed the cash tecevable under the contract, due to the nghts
to valuable aftermarket spare parts business However because the value of this nght cannot be estimated with enough precision
accounting standards requite that the revenue recogmised in the accounts on sale of the engime 1s restnicted to a total amount that results
n a break even position The amount of the revenue recogmsed m excess of cash recewable 15 recogmsed as an mtangible asset, which s
called a ‘contractual aftermarket nght’

There 15 only one circumstance wherte accounting standards require the recognition of more of the value of the aftermarket nghts

when an engine s sold This occurs where a long-term aftermarket contract (generally a TotalCare agreement — TCA) and an engime
sale contract have been negotiated together In this circumstance, the part of the aftermarket nghts covered by the TCA can be valued
much more precisely and 1s recognised at the timme of the engine sale through accounting for the engine sale and TCA as a single contract
Nevertheless, the accounting profit recogmised s still less than the economc benefits on the sale as there will be other valuable
aftermarket nights (for instance for the period beyond the TCA term or for the sale of parts which are outside the scope of the TCA) which
cannot be recagmised

The Group enters mto arrangements with long-term supphers to share the 1isks and rewards of major programmes —nisk and revenue
shaning arrangements (RRSAs} The accounting pohicy for these arrangements has been chosen, consistent with Adopted IFRS, to reflect
ther commeraal effect

The key judgements 1n determuming these accounting pohcies are described below

Contractual aftermarket nghts {CARs)

On delivery of Cvil Aerospace engines, the Group has contractual nghts to supply aftermarket parts to the customers and its intellectual
nights, warranty arrangements and, where televant, statutory airworthiness or other regulatory requirements prowide reasonable control
over this supply The directors consider that these nights meet the defimtion of an intangible asset i |AS 38 Intangible Assets However,
the directors do not consider that it 1s possible to deterrmne a rehable fair value for this intangible asset Accordingly, an intangible asset
(CAR) s only recogmsed on the occasions where the contractual price of the engine 1s below the cost of manufacture and then only to the
extent of this deficit, as this amount s reliably measureable An equal amount of reveniue 15 recogrised at the same point Where a
long-term aftermarket contract 1s hnked to the OE contract {see below} the contractual price of the engine (including amounts allocated
from the aftermarket contract) 1s above its cost of manufacture consequently ne CAR1s recogmised
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

Measure of performance onlong-term aftermarket contracts

Alarge praportion of the Group s activities relate tolong term aftermarket contracts, m particular TotalCare and simlar arrangements
In the Aerospace Division Under these contracts, the Group’s primary obligation 1s to mamtain customers’ equipment in an operational
condition and achieves this by undertaking vanous actwities, such as engine momtoring, hne maintenance and repair and overhaul, over
the period of the contract in general, the directors consider that the stage of performance of the contract should be by reference to the
obhgation to mamtam an operational fleet and that this s best measured by the operation of the fleet Accordingly, stage of performance
15 measured by reference to flymg hours of each fleet under contract

Linkage of original and long-term aftermarket contracts

Where the key terms of a long-term aftermarket contract are substantively agreed (eg n a term sheet} at the same time as an OF contract
with the operator, the directors consider these to be limked for accounting purposes and they are treated as a single contract, as this best
reflects the overall commercial effect Where the OE contract 1s not with the operator, eg where it1s with an OF manufacturer or a lessor,
the contracts are not inked as they were not negotated on a unified basis

Risk and revenue sharing arrangements (RRSAs)

RRSAs with key suppliers {workshare partners) are a feature of our Civil Aerospace business Under these contractual arrangements the
key commeraial objectives are that (1) during the development phase the workshare partner shares 1n the nisks of developing an engime
by performing 1ts own development work, providing development parts and paying a non-refundable cash entry fee, and {n) during the
production phase 1t supphes components in return for a share of the programme revenues as a ‘hfe of type’ suppher (ie as long as the
engine Temams in service) The share of development costs borne by the workshare partner and of the revenues 1t recewves reflect the
partner’s proportionate cost of providing 1ts production parts compared to the overall manufacturing cost of the engine The share is
based on a jontly agreed forecast at the commencement of the arrangement

These arrangements are complex and have features that could be mdicative of a collaboration agreement, including sharing of nsk and
cost n a development programme, a long-term supply agreement shanng of intellectual property or a combmation of these In summary
and as described below, the directors’ view s that the development and production phases of the contract should be considered separately
n accounting for the RRSA, which resuits mn the entry fee being matched agamst the non-recurnng costs meurred by the Group

Having considered the features above, the directors considered that there 15 no directly apphicable IFRS to determine an accounting pohey
for the recogmtion of entry fees of this nature in the income statement Consequently, in developing an accounting treatrment for such
entry fees that best reflects the commercial objectives of the contractual arrangement, the directors have analysed these features n the
context of relevant accounting proncuncements (including those of other standard setters where these do not confhct wath IFRS) and have
weighed the )/mportance of each feature in faithfully representing the overall commercial effect The most important considerations that
need to be balanced are the transfer of development nisk, the workshare partner recewving httle standatone value from the payment of the
entry fee, and the overall effect being collaboration between the parties which falls short of being a joint venture as the Group controls the
programme Also important in the analysis 1s the fact that, whilst the Group and the workshare partner share risks and rewards through
the hife of the contract these risks and rewards are very different during the development and preduction phases

In thos context, the entry fee might be considered to represent an amount paid as an equahsation of development costs a payment to
secure a long-term supply arrangement, a purchase of intellectual property or some combination thereof The accounting under these
different scenanos could include recogmtion of the entry fee to match the associated costs i the income statement, bemng spread over
the hfe of the programme as a reduction in the cost of supply during production, or being spread over the time petiod of the access to the
mtellectual property by the workshare partner

The directors consider that the most important features of the arrangement are the nisk sharing and that the entry fee represents a
contnbution to the development costs that the Group incurs in excess of 1ts proportionate programme share The key judgements takenin
reaching this view are the entry fee is determmed by the parties on that basis and the contract speaifies that, in the event that a dervative
engine s to be developed, additional entry fees will also be calculated on this basis the workshare partners describe the entry fee in this
way, although the workshare partner receives hittle stand-alone value from paying the entry fee, the entry fee together wath its own
development activities represent its aggregate investment in the collaboration, the amount of the entry fee dees not include any amount
m excess of that necessary to equahse forecast development costs, the Group 1s not ‘on nisk’ for the full development costs it incurs but for
that amount less the entry fees recelved, and as far as can be determmed, this appears to be common industry accounting for
arrangements of this type, under both Adopted IFRS and US accounting standards (which the directors do not behieve confhicts with IFRS

m this regard)

The resulting accounting policy (described on page 75} represents the commercial effect of the contractual arrangements in that the
Group recogmnises only those development costs to which 1t 1s exposed (and thus reflects the significant transfer of development nisk to the
workshare partner) and the costs of supply of parts during the production phase 1s measured at the workshare partner’s share of
programme tevenues (which we consider to be a commercial fair value) The directors do not consider that accounting which would result
n entry fees only being recognised n the production phase would appropnately reflect the sharing of development nisk Accordingly the
directors believe that the policy adepted best reflects the commercial objectives of the arrangements the nature of the relationship with
the workshare partner and 1s 1n accordance with Adopted IFRS
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1 Accounting pohcies continued

As descnibed 1n the 2013 Annual Report, an alternative view s that the RRSA contract cannot be divided into separate developrent and
production phases as the fees and development components received by the Group during the development phase are exchanged for
the obligation to pay the supplier a predeterrmined share of any sales receipts during the production phase On this basis the entry fees
receved would be deferred in their entirety and recogmsed over the peniod of production The size of the difference between the two
approaches 1s monitored and 1s not currently expected to become matenal m the foreseeable future The impact of the different
approaches on profit before tax and net assets, which 1s not considered to be matenal, 1s as follows

2015 2014
Reported  Underlying profit Reported  Underlyng profit
profit before tax ‘beforetax Netassets profit before tax before tax Netassets
£m tm £m £m £m £m
Adopted policy 160 1,432 6,289 146 1,620 6 831
Difference (28)* (28) (435) (30)* (30) (402)
Alternatve policy 132 1,404 5,854 116 1,590 6,429

! If the alternative policy were adopted the difference would be included in profit befere financing which would change from £1 501m as reported to £1 473m (2014 £1 398m
to £1 368m)

internally generated development costs

IAS 38 requires that internally generated development costs should only be recogmsed if strict critenia are met, 1n parhicular relating to
techmical feasiblity and generation of future economic benefits The directors consider that due to the complex nature of new equipment
programmes, these critena ate not met until relatively late 1n the programme — Civil Aetospace programmes represent around half of
development costs recognised, for these, the criteria are generally satisfied around the time of the imtial engme certification

Customer financing contingent habihties

The Group has contingent hatilities in respect of financing support provided to customers In order to assess whether a provision should be
recognised, Judgement as to the hkelhood of these crystalhismg 1s required This Judgement 1s based on an assessment on the knowledge of
the customers'’ fleet plans, the underlying value of the secunty provided and, where appropnate, the customers’ creditworthiness

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In applying the accounting pohcies, estimates are made 1n many areas, the actual outcome may differ from that calculated The key sources
of estimation uncertamty at the balance sheet date that have a sigmficant risk of causing matenal adjustment to the carrymg amounts of
assets and habihities wathim the next financial year are set out below The estimation of the relevant assets and habilities involves the
combination of a number of assumptions Sensitivities are disclosed 1n the relevant notes where this 1s appropniate and practicable

Forecasts and discount rates
The carrying values of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the estimates of future cash flows ansing from the
Group's operations, i particular

+ The assessment of whether the goadwill and cther intangible assets (carryimg value at 31 December 2015 £1,502m, 31 December 2014
£1,659m) ansing on the consohidation of RRPS 15 1mpaired 15 dependent of the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
generated by the business

« The assessment as to whether there are any indications of impairment of development, participation, customer relationships, certification
and contractual aftermarket nights recogmsed as mtangible assets {carrying values at 31 Decernber 2015 £2,533m, 31 December 2014
£2,533m) 1s dependent on estimates of cash flows generated by the relevant assets and the discount rate used to calculate a present value
These estimates include the performance of long-term contractual arrangements as described below, as well as estimates for future
market share, pricing and umt cost for uncontracted busmess The nisk of impairment 1s generally igher for newer programmes and for
customer speaificintangible assets (CARs) for launch customers and typically reduces as programmes become more estabhshed

Assessment of long-term contractual arrangements

The Group has long-term contracts that fall into different accounting penods and which can extend over sigmificant penods — the most
significant of these are Jong-term service arrangements m the Civil Aerospace busmess The estimated revenues and costs are inherently
mmprecise and significant estimates are required to assess engine flying hours, time on wing and other operating parameters, the pattern
of future mamtenance activity and the costs to be incurred and Iife cycle cost improvements over the term of the contracts The estimates
take account of the mherent uncertamnties and the nsk of non-tecovery of any resulting contract batances  During 2015, the methodologies
for making these estimates were reviewed and refined

Post-retirement benefits

The Group s defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangements are assessed annually n accordance with [AS 19 The accounting
valuation, which1s based on assumptions determimed with ndependent actuanal advice, resulted mn a net deficit of £77m before deferred
taxation being recogmsed on the balance sheet at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014 net surplus £555m) The size of the net surplus/
deficit 15 sensitive 1o the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions, which include price inflation,
pension and salary increases, the discount rate used in assessing actuanal habihties, mortahty and other demographic assumptions and
the levels of contnbutions Further details are included im note 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

Provisions

As described in the accounting policy on page 78, the Group measures provisions {carrying value at 31 December 2015 £640m,

31 December 2014 £807m) at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhigation at the balance sheet date
These estimates take account of mformation available and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 15 determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply in each of the numerous junsdichions in which the
Group operates Where the precise impact of these laws and requlations 1s unclear, or uncertain then reasonable estimates may be used to
determine the tax charge included m the financial statements

The mamn area of uncertanty is 1n relation to cross border transactions, entered inte in the normal course of business, as the amount of
mcome or profit taxable 1n each country mvolved can be subjective and therefore open to interpretation by the relevant tax authonties
This can result in disputes and possibly htigatton

Accruals for tax contingencies requite management to make judgements and estimates of expasures in relation to tax audit 1ssues and
other areas of uncertainty Contingent habihihes, inctuding in respect of any tax disputes or htigation, are covered in note 22 (contingent
habihties) AN provisions are in current habihties Any habihity relating to interest or penalties on tax habilities 1s mcluded in the tax charge

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avarlable against which the deductible
tempaorary difference can be utihsed based on management s assumptions relating to the amounts and timing of future taxable profits

Further details on the group tax position can be found on page 151

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group's sigmficant accounting pohaies are set out below These accounting policies have been apphed consistently to all perods
presented n these consohdated financial staterments and by all Group entities

Basis of consohdaten

The Group conschdated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and 1ts subsidary undertakings together
with the Group's share of the results of jomnt arrangements and associates made up to 31 December In hne with common practice wn
Germany, a small number of immatenial subsidianes of Rolls-Royce Power Systems are not consohdated and are carried at cost in other
nvestments If such subsidiaries become matenal, they are consolidated The difference between the net assets recogmsed and the
mvestment cost ehminated 1s recogrused n other operating income

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has power over an entity, exposure to variable
returns from its imvolvement with an entity and the ability to use 1ts power over an entity so as to affect the Company's returns

Ajoint arrangement s an entity in which the Group holds a long-term interest and which 1s jontly controlled by the Group and one

or morte other venturers under a contractual arrangement loint arrangements may be esther joint ventures or jomt operations An
associate 15 an entity, bemng nerther a subsidhary nor a joint arrangement, in which the Group holds a long-term interest and where the
Group has a significant influence The results of jJoint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
The results of joint operations are proportionately accounted

Any subsidiary undertakings, joint arrangements or associates sold or acquited during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of
change of control Transactions with non-controlhng interests are recorded directly m equity

Where a put option over shares held by a non-controlling interest has been agreed, the Group recogmises a hability for the estimated
exerose value of that option Movements in the estimated habihty after mitral recogmition are recogmised in the income statement

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are ehrmnated on consohdation Adjustments are made to elimmate the profit
or loss ansimg on transactions with Joint arrangements and associates to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity

Revenue recognmition
Revenues comprise sales to outside customers after discounts excluding value added taxes

Sales of products (both oniginal equipment and spare parts) are recogmsed when the sigmficant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goads are transferred to the custorner, the sales pnce agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured — this s generally on delivery On
occasion, the Group may participate in the financing of OE, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as described m note 17 In such
circumstances, the contingent obhgations ansing under these arrangements are taken into account 1n assessing when the significant nisks
and rewards of ownershp have been transferred to the customer As described on page 71, a sale of OF at a contractual price below 1ts
cost of manufacture 15 considered to give rise to revenue to the extent that an intangible asset, (contractual aftermarket night),1s
recogmsed at the same time
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1 Accounting policies continued

Sales of services are recogmsed by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date As descnibed on page 72,

the assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on flying hours or
equwvalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements where the service 1s provided on a contimuous basis, costs incurred to the extent these
relate to services performed up to the reporting date, or achievement of contractual milestones where relevant

As descibed on page 72, sales of products and services are treated as though they are a single contract where these components have
been negotated as a single commercial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate mdependently of each other and
are considered to form a single transaction with an overall profit margin The total revenue 15 allocated between the two components such
that the total agreed discount to hist pricess allocated to revenue for each of the two components pro rata, based on ist prices The
revenue 1s then recogmsed for each component on this basis as the products are delvered and services prowded as descnibed above
Where the contractual price of the OE component 1s below the revenue allocated from the combined arrangement, this wall give nise

to an asset included m ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ This asset reduces as services are provided, increases as costs are incurred,

and reduces to zeto by the end of the contract Where the balance 15 a hability, 1t 1s recogmsed in accruals and deferred income’

Provided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with reasonable cettamty, the revenues and costs on such contracts
are recogrised based on stage of completion and the overall contract profitabihity Full provision s made for any estimated losses to
completion of contracts, having regard te the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments received, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent
that payments on account exceed the value of work n progress on any contract where the excess s mcluded in accruals and deferred
mcome withm trade and other payables The amount by which recorded revenue of long-term contracts 1s m excess of payments on
account is classified as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s separately disclosed within trade and other recevables

TotalCare arrangements

As described above, these are accounted for on a stage of completion basis, with the stage of completion based on the proportion of flying
hours completed compared to the total estimated under the contract In making the assessment of future revenues, costs and the level of
profit recogrised the Group takes account of {)) the forecast utilisation of the engines by the operator, (1) the forecast costs to mamtain the
engmes n accordance with the contractual requirements — the principal vaniables being the time between shop visits and the cost of each
shop visit, and (1) the recoverabiity of any contract asset arising The Group benchmarks the forecast costs against previous programmes,
recogmsing that the rehabihty of the forecasts wall improve as operational experience of the engme increases To the extent that actual
costs differ from forecast costs or that forecast costs change, the cumulative impact 1s recogmsed in the penod An allowance 1s made
agamst forecast contract revenues, given the potential for reduced engme flying hours based on historical forecasting accuracy, the nisk of
arcraft bemng parked by the custorer and the customer’s creditworthimess, (previously assessed against contract assets ansing based on
both the customer’s creditworthiness and an assessment of the importance of the particular engme fleet to the customer) Again changes
mn this allowance are recogmsed n the penod

Risk and revenue sharing arrangements (RRSAs)

As described on page 72, the Group enters into arrangements with certain workshare partners under which these suppliers (1} contribute
to the forecast costs of developing an engime by performing their own development work, providing development parts and paymng a
non-refundable cash entry fee, and (n) supply compenents for the production phase for which they receive consideration whichis an
agreed proportion of the total programme revenues Both the supplers’ contributions to the forecast non-recurring development costs
and their consideration are deterrmined by teference to thewr proportionate forecast scopes of supply relative to that of the engine overall
Once the forecast costs and the scopes of supply have been agreed at the mception of the contract, each party 15 then accountable for its
ownincurred costs No accounting entnes are recorded when the suppliers undertake development work or when development
components are supphed Cash sums received are recogmsed 1n the income statement, as a reduction in research and development costs
ncurred, to match the expensing of the Groupss refated costs —wherte the cash sums are receved in advance of the related costs being
expensed or where the related costs are capitahised as intangible assets the recogration of the cash recewed 1s deferred (in accruals and
deferred income) to match the recogmtion of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively The
payments to supphers of their shares of the programme revenues for thew production components are charged to cost of sales as
programme Tevenues arise

The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered
to be financial nstruments as defined by IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

Government investment
Where a government or similar body has previously invested 1n a development programme, the Group treats payments to that body
as Toyalty payments, which are matched to related sales

Government grants

Government grants are recogmsed 1n the income statement so as to match them wath the related expenses that they are intended to
compensate Where grants are received i advance of the related expenses, they are included n the balance sheet as deferred income
Non-maonetary grants are recogmsed at fair value
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

Interest

Interest recewvable/payable 1s credited /charged to the income statement using the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are
attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, such costs are capitahsed as part of the speafic asset

Taxation
The tax charge/credit on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax

+ Current tax)s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and any
adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years

+ Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet hability method providing for temporary differences between the carrymg amounts of
the assets and habihties for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes and 15 calculated using the enacted or
substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or habihty 1s settled

Tax s charged or credited 1n the income statement or other comprehensive mcome (OCI) as appropriate, except when it relates to items
credited or charged directly to equity in which case the tax s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax habilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences anising on investments i subsidianes and jont arrangements,
except where the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax s not recogmised on taxable temporary differences arising on the imtial recognrion of
goodwll or for temporary differences ansing from the inthial recogmition of assets and habihties in a transaction that 1s not a business
combmation and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed anly to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available agamst which the
assets can be utihsed

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the transacting Group undertaking are translated into

the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habihties deneminated in foreign
currencies are translated into the relevant functional currency at the rate ruhng at the year end Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and habihties into functional currencies at the rate ruling at the year end are taken
nto account n determining profit before taxation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year The assets and habilities of
overseas undertakings, mcluding goodwll and fair value adjustments ansing on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the
year end Exchange adjustments ansing from the retranslation of the opeming net mvestments, and from the translation of the profits orlosses
at average rates, are recogmsed m OC) The cumulative amount of exchange adjustments was, on transition o IFRS in 2004, deermed to il

Fmanoal mstruments
1AS 39 Frangial instruments Recognition and Measurement requites the classification of finanoal instruments into separate categones
for which the accounting requirement 1s different The Group has dlassified 1ts financial instruments as follows

« short-term investments are generally classified as available for sale,

« short-term deposits (principally compnising funds held with banks and other financial mstitutions), trade receivables and short-term
investments not designated as available for sale are classified as loans and recewables,

+ borrowmgs, trade payables and financial RRSAs are dassified as other halihhes, and

- denvatives compnsing foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are classified as farr value through profit
orloss

Financial instruments are recogmised at the contract date and mibally measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends
on their classification

» Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes 1n fair value arsing from changes m exchange rates are included m the mcome
statement All other changes i fair value are taken to equity On disposal, the accumulated changes in value recorded 1n equity are
ncluded wn the gain or loss recarded 1n the income statement

Loans and recevables and other habwlities are held at amortised cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates and
forecast contractual cash flows, which are mcluded in the income statement} unless they are mchuded in a fair value hedge accounting
relationship Where such a hedging relationship exists, the instruments are revalued n respect of the nsk being hedged, with the change
n value included in the income statement

Fair value through profit ot loss items are held at fair value Changes in fair value are included in the income statement unless the
mstrument 1s mcluded in a cash flow hedge If the mstruments are included in an effective cash flow hedging relationship, changes
 value are taken to equity When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in equity are recogmsed

n the iIncome statement

Financial instruments are derecogmsed on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhgations are transferred
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1 Accounting policies continued

Hedge accountmg

The Group does not generally apply hedge accounting 1n respect of forward foreign exchange contracts or commodity swaps held
to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions denerminated in foreign currencies or m commodities respectively

The Group apphes hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered mto to manage the fair vaiue and cash flow exposures of 1ts
borrowings Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings dencrmimated in foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated
as faw value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes m the fair values of denivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes n fair value of the related hedged 1item are
recogmised directly in the mcome statement

Changes 1n the fair values of denvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogmised directly m equity
Any ineffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s mcluded i the income statement The amounts deferred 1n equity are recogmsed
m the ncome statement to match the recogmtion of the hedged 1tem

Hedge accounting 1s discontimued when the hedging imstrument expires or 1s sold terminated, exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and 1If the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gan ar loss on the hedging
Instrument recogmsed m equity 1s retaimed i equity until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected
to occur, the net cumulative gan or loss previously Tecogmsed m equaty 15 transferred to the income staterment

The portion of a gam or loss on an istrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that 1s deterrined to be an effectve
hedge 15 recogmised directly in equity The meffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately 1n the income staternent Gans and losses
accurnulated in the translation reserve will be recycled to prefit when the foreign operation 1s sold

Business combmations and goodwall

On the acquisihion of & business, fair values are attnibuted to the dentifiable assets and habiibies and contingent habilities urless the far value
cannot be measured rehably, m which case the value1s subsumed mto goodwill Where fair values of acquired contingent habihties cannot be
measured rehably, the assumed contigent iability 1s nct recogmsed but 1s disclosed n the same manner as other conbingent iabilbies

Goodwill Tecogmised represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the far value to the Group of the net of
thedentifiable assets acquired and the abihties assumed On transition to IFRS on 1 January 2004, business combimations were not
retrospectively adjusted to comply with Adopted IFRS and goodwill was recogrmised based on the carrymg value under the previous
accounting policies Goodwill in respect of the acquisttion of a subsidiary s recegmsed as an intangible asset Goodwill ansing on the
acquisition of joint arrangements and associates 1s mciuded in the carrying value of the mvestment

Cerhfication costs and parhopation fees

Costs incurred n respect of meeting regulatary certification requirements for new civil aero-engme/arcraft combmations including
payments made to asrframe manufacturers for this and participation fees are carmed forward i intangible assets to the extent that they
can be recovered out of future sales and are charged to the ncome statement over the programme Iife, up to a maximum of 15 years
from the entry into service of the product

Research and development
In accordance with lAS 38 Intangible Assets, expenditure incurred on research and development s distimguished as relating erther
to a research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure 1s charged to the mcome statement Development expendrture 1s capitalised as an mternally generated
mtangible asset only 1f 1t meets strict eritena, relating n particular to technical feasibility and generation of future econormic benefits
As described on page 73, the Group considers that it 1s not possible to distinguish rehably between research and development activities
untii relatively late in the programme

Expenditure capitahsed s amortised over its useful econommc hfe, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry into service of the product

Contractual aftermarket nghts

As described under key judgements on page 71, the Group may sell OE to customers at a price below its cost, on the bass that 1t also
receves valuable aftermarket nghts Such a sale 1s considered to give Tise to an intangible asset which 1s recogmsed, 1 accordance with
IAS 38, at the same time as the revenue at an amount equal to the cash deficit and 1s amortised on a straight-lme basis over the period
that highly probable aftermarket sales are experted tobe earned

Customer relationships

The fair value of customer relationships recogmised as a result of a business combination relate to the acquired company’s estabhished
Telationships with 1ts existing customers that result in repeat purchases and customer loyalty Amortisation occurs on a straight-hne
basis over 1ts useful econorme hfe, up to a maximum of 15 years
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1 Accounting policies continued

Software

The cost of acquirng software that 1s not specific to an item of property, plant and equipment 1s classified as an intangible asset and
amortised over 1ts useful econormic Irfe, up to a maximum of five years

Property, plant and equaprnent
Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for rmpairment m value

Depreciation is provided on a straight-lime basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment
over therr estimated useful ives No depreciation 1s provided on assets m the course of construction Estimated useful hves are as follows

1) land and bwildings, as adwvised by the Group's professional advisers
a) freehold buldings —five to 45 years (average 25 years),
b) leasehold buildings —lower of adviser’s estimates or period of lease,
¢) nedepreciation s provided on freehold land,

n) plant and equipment — five to 25 years (average 13 years),

wm) aireraft and engines —five to 20 years {average 13 years)

Operating leases
Payments made and rentals recewved under operating lease arrangements are charged/credited to the income statement on a straight-
hine basis

Impairment of non-current assets

Imparrment of non-current assets 15 considered m accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are mdependent of other assets, impairment 1s considered for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs Goodwill
and mtangible assets not yet available for use are tested for imparment annually Other mtangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and investments are assessed for any indications of impairment annually If any indication of impairment is 1dentified, an impairment
test 1s performed to estimate the recoverable amount

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating umt) is estimated to be below the carrying value the carrying value 1s reduced
to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogmsed as an expense The recoverable amount 1s the tugher of value m use or fair
value less costs to sell, 1f this 1s readily avanlable The value in use 1s the present value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the time value of money and the nisk specific te the asset

Inventones

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost compnises direct
matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, includmng depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that
have been incurred in bringing the inventones to therr present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be ncurred in marketing, selimg and distribution

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, investments m money-market funds and short-term deposits with

a matunty of three months ot less on inception The Group cansiders overdrafts {repayable on demand) to be an integral part of its
cash management activities and these are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obhgation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s maternal

Post-retirement benefits
Pensions and similar benefits {principally healthcare) are accounted for under IAS 19 Employee Benefits

For defined benefit plans, obhgations are measured at chscounted present value, using a discount rate derved from high-quality corporate
bonds denominated n the currency of the plan, whilst pfan assets are recorded at fair value Surpluses in schemes are recogmsed as assets
only if they represent econormic benefits available to the Group in the future Ahability 1s recogmsed to the extent that the mmmum
funding requirements 1n respect of past service will give nise to an unrecogmisable surplus

The service and financing costs of such plans are recogmsed separately in the mcome statement

« current service costs are spread systematically aver the Tives of employees
» past-service costs are recogmsed y/mmediately, and
« financing costs are recogmsed n the perieds in winch they anse

Actuanal gams and losses and moverments m unrecogmised surphises and rmmmum funding halnhties are recogmsed rmmediately m OCI

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due
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Share-based payments

The Group provides share-based payment arrangements to certain employees These are principally equity-settled arrangements and
are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value1s expensed
on a straight-lme basis over the vesting penad The amount recogmsed as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares
or options that will vest, except where addional shares vest as a result of the total shareholder return (TSR) performance condition

n the Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Cash-settled share options (grants in the International ShareSave plan) are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group
recognises a hability at the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking mto account the estimated number of options that will
actually vest and the relative completion of the vesting peniod Changes in the value of this hability are recogmsed in the income statement
for the year

Sales financmg support

In connection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on occasion, provide financing support for 1ts customers These arrangements
fall mto two categomes credit-based guarantees and asset-value guarantees In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 39 and IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts, credit-based guarantees are treated as insurance contracts The Group considers asset-value guarantees to be
non-financial habilities and accordingly these are also treated as msurance contracts As described on page 107, the directors consider the
hikelihood of crystalhsation 1n assessing whether provision 1s required for any contimgent habihtes

The Group's contingent habihties relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers
and a broad product portfoho, and are reported on a discounted basis

Rewvisions to Adopted IFRS m 2015
There were no changes to accounting standards that had a matenal impact on the 2015 financial statements

Revisions to IFRS not apphcable m 2015
Standards and mnterpretations 1ssued by the IASB are only apphcable 1f endorsed by the EU

Once endorsed, IFRS & financial instruments will ssmphify the dassification of financial assets for measurement purposes, but s not
anticipated to have a sigmficant impact on the financal statements

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for the year-ending 31 December 2018 not yet endorsed by the EU) provides
a smgle principles-based five-step model 1o be apphed to all sales contracts, based on the transfer of control of goods and services to
customers It replaces the separate models for goods, services and construction contracts currently included in IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and 1AS 18 Revenue Given the nature of the Group's long-term contracts, 1t 15 Tkely that the adoption of IFRS 15 will require
significant judgement

Based on the provisional assessment, [FRS 15 will have a sigmficant impact on the timing of recogmition of revenue on individual long-term
contracts, most particularly in the Civil Aetospace business although this impact 1s hkely ta be sigmficantly reduced at a Group level when
all long-term contracts (with different start and end dates) are combined The key areas of judgement are (;) whether contractual
aftermarket nghts can continue to be recogmsed (1) whether OE and TotalCare contracts can be inked for accounting purposes, and

(m) how perfarmance should be measured on TotalCare contracts The Group will contimue to assess the mmpact during 2016 and also
consider the interpretations of other aerospace and defence compames

tFRS 16 Leases (effective for the year-ending 31 December 2013 not yet endorsed by the EU} will requaire all leases to be recogmsed on the
balance sheet Currently 1AS 17 Leases only requires leases categorised as finance leases to be recogmised on the balance sheet, with leases
categonsed as operating leases not recogmsed In broad terms, the impact will be to recogmse a lease habihity and corresponding asset for
operating lease commitments set out in note 21

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or interpretations 1ssued by the IASB, but not yet apphcable, will have
a sigmficant impact on the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 Segmental analysis

The analysis by Division {(business segment) 1s presented in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segments, on the bass of those segments
whaose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by IFRS 8), as follows

AEROSPACE DIVISION

Gl —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engmes and aftermarket services

Defence —development, manufacture, marketmg and sales of miitary aero engines and aftermarket services

LAND & SEA DIVISION

Power Systems —development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of reciprocating engines and power systerns

Marnne —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of manne-power propulsion systems and aftermarket services
Nuclear —development, manufacture, marketg and sales of nuclear systems for civil power generation and naval

propulsion systems

The Energy business was sold on 1 Decemnber 2014 and 15 excluded from the 2014 comparative figures The residual businesses previously
included n the Energy sector and costs associated with the wind-down are shown as ‘Other’

The operating results reviewed by the Board are prepared on an underlying basis, which the Board considers reflects better the economic
substance of the Group's trading during the year Additional disclosure of the two segments s also provided The principles adopted to
deterrmine underlymg Tesults are

Underlying revenues — Where revenues are denommated m a currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking
these reflect the achieved exchange rates ansing on settled denvative contracts

Underlying profit befare financing — Where transactions are denorminated n a currency other than the functional currency of the Group
undertaking, this reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rates on settled dervative contracts In addition, adjustments have
been made to exclude one-off past-service credits on post-retirement schemes, excephional restructunng costs The effect of acquisttion
accounting and the impairment of goodwill

Underlymg profit before taxation — In addition to those adjustments in underlying profit before financing

+ includes amounts reahsed from settled denvative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and habihties to exchange rates forecast
to be achieved from future settlement of denvative contracts, and

« excludes unreahsed amounts ansing from revaluations required by IAS 39 financial instruments Recognition and Measurement, changes
m value of financial RRSA contracts ansmg from changes i forecast payments and the net impact of financing costs related to post-
retirement scheme benefits

Taxation — the tax effect of the adjustments above are excluded from the underlying tax charge In addition changes in the ameount of
recaverable advance corporation tax recognised and the impact of changes in tax rates are also excluded

Ths analysis also mcludes a reconciliation of the underlying results to those reported in the consolidated income statement
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2 Segmental analysis continued

Finanaal Statements

Aerospace

Land & Sea

Power Intra Inter Iepor;rao'lglael
Civl  Defence Tatal ‘Systems  Marine  Nudlear Other?! segment Total segment segments
£m £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m £tm
Year ended 31 December 2015
Underlying revenue from sale of oniginal
equipment 3,258 801 4,059 1,618 773 251 76 (53) 2,665 - 6,724
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services® 3,675 1,234 4,909 767 551 436 20 (s3) 1,721 - 6,630
Total underlying revenue 6,933 2,035 8,568 2,385 1,324 687 96 (106) 4,386 - 13,354
Gross profit 1,526 579 2,105 635 260 111 64 7 1,077 - 3,182
Commercial and adrmmistrative costs (296) {123 419 {276) (201) {53) {4} — {534) - (953)
Restructuring {7) {8 (15! {a) (16) {2) {2) - (24) - {39)
Resegarch and development costs (515) (73} (588) (162) {28) 14 1) - (177) - (765)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 104 19 123 - - - (5) - {5) - 118
Underlying profit before financing and taxation 812 394 1,206 193 15 70 52 7 337 - 1,543
Segment assets 12,291 1,768 14,059 3,411 1,690 404 119 - 5,624 (850} 18,833
Investments 1n joint ventures and associates 545 12 557 8 7 3 1 - 19 - 576
Segment habihities {8,595) (1,787) (10,782} (1,026) (839) (352) (120) - (2,337) 850 (12,269)
Net assets/(habihties) 3,841 (7) 3.834 2,393 858 55 - - 3,306 - 7140
Investment i intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and joint ventures
and associates 93] 84 752 108 36 18 - = 162 = 914
Depreciation amortisation and imparment 410 58 468 197 111 23 11 - 342 — 810
Year ended 31 December 2014
Underlying revenue from sale of original
equipment ? 3,463 816 4279 1893 1070 230 24 (78) 3,139 - 7418
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services ? 3374 1253 4627 827 639 408 22 (77 1819 - 6 445
Total underlying revenue 6837 2069 8906 2720 1709 638 46 (155) 4958 - 13,864
Gross profit 1,675 567 2,242 742 425 119 g8 {13) 1281 - 3,523
Commercial and administrative costs (283) {112) (395) (296) (254) (61) {10} - (621) - (1,016)
Restructuring (82) (55) (137) (7) (4) (1) - - (12) - (149)
Research and development costs (461) (50} (511) (183) 29) 7 - - (219) - {730}
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 93 15 109 (3} - - - - (3) - 106
Underlying profit before financing and taxation 942 366 1,308 253 138 50 {2) {13) 426 - 1,734
Segment assets 10976 1683 12652 3607 1820 333 791 {22) 6529 (1269) 17919
Investments in joint ventures and associates 507 13 520 7 5 3 4 - 19 - 539
Segment habilities (7886) (1,890) (9,776) (1,117) (1,196)  (4432) (552) — (3307) 1,269 (11814)
Net assets/{liabilities) 31597 (194) 3403 2497 629 (106} 243 (22) 324 -  B644
Investment in intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment and joint ventures and associates 836 78 914 144 36 23 8 - 211 - 1125
Depreciation and amortisation 381 49 430 221 38 22 13 - 294 - 724

! Energy business retained following 2014 disposal

? The basis for the allocation of Cnvil Aetospace revenues on linked TotalCare contracts between OF and aftermarket has been reviewed and amendments made toreflect better the
commereial substance of the combined contracts Historically the allocation has resulted in original equipment revenue reflacting the contractual terms rather than the commercral
substance of the contracts The 2014 figures have been restated on the same basis the ympact was anncrease in ariginal equipment revenue of £198m and an equal decrease in

aftermarket revenue
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 Segmental analysis continued
RECONCILIATION TO REPORTED RESULTS

Totalreportable  Underlying Total Underlying Discontinued
segments central items underlying  adjustments business Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Year ended 31 December 2015
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 6,724 = 6,724 215 6,939
Revenue from aftermarket services 6,630 - 6,630 156 6,786
Total revenue 13,354 = 13,354 371 13,725
Grass profit 3,182 - 3,182 84 3,266
Other operating income - = - 10 10
Commercial and admimstrative costs (953) (51} (1,004} (55) {1,059)
Restructuring {39) - {39} 39 -
Research and development costs (765) - {765) {53) (818)
Share of rasults of joint ventures and associates 118 - 118 (18) 100
Profit on disposal of businesses - - - 2 2
Profit before financing and taxation 1,543 51 1,492 9 1,501
Net frmancing {60 (60) 1,281] {1,341)
Profit before taxation 111 1,432 1,272 160
Taxation 351, {351) 275 (76)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,081 {997} 84
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - - -
Profit for the year 1,081 {997} 84
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders 1,080 (997) 83
Non-controlling interests 1 - 1
Year ended 31 December 2014
Revenue fram sale of original equipment 7418 - 7418 (1) 7,417
Revenue from aftermarket services 6 446 — 6446 {127) 6,319
Total revenue 13 864 - 13 864 (128) 13,736
Gross profit 3523 - 3523 (320} 3203
Qther gperating ncome - - - 10 10
Commercial and admimstrative costs {1016) (53 {1,069) (55) {1124)
Restructuring (149) - {149) 149 -
Research and development costs {730) — (730) (63) (793)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 106 - 106 12 94
Profit on transfer of joint ventures to subsidianies - - - 2 2
Profit on disposal of businesses = = - 6 &
Profit before financing and taxation 1,734 {53} 1681 (283) 1398
Net financing (51} (61) {1,191) {1252)
Profit before taxation {114} 1,620 {1474) 146
Taxation {388) (388) 237 (151)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,232 {1,237) 5]
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - = 142 142
Profit for the year 1232 {1,237) 142 137
Attributable to
Ordnary shareholders 1226 {1220) 142 148
Non controlling interests 6 {17) — (11}
! Central corporate costs
CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
2014
£m
Revenue 713
profit before taxation 1
Tax on ordinary activities 3
Profit for the year from ordimary achivities 4
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 136
Tax on profit of discontinued operations 2
Profit for the year from discontinued operahons 142
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (127)
Net cash outflow from investing activities {35)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (162)
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2 Segmental analysis continued
UNDERLYING ADJUSTMENTS

Fmanaial Statements

015 2014
Profit before Net Profit before Net
Reveniue financing finanang Taxation Revenue financing financing Taxation
£m £m £m £m £m £m £rn £m
Underlying performance previously
reported 14,588 1,678 61) (387)
Energy disposed in 2014 (724) 3 - (1)
Underlymg performance 13,354 1,492 {60) (351) 13,864 1681 (61) (388)
Revenue recognmsed at exchange rate
on date of transaction a71 - - - (128) — - -
Realised losses flgains) on settled
denvative contracts? - 287 {35) - = (91) (5) -
Net unreahised fair value changes to
derivative contracts? - (9) (1,306} - - (15) 1,141} —
Effect of currency on contract
accounting — (9) - - - 13 - —
Revaluation of trading assets and
habilities - (13) 20 - - (11) (8) -
Financial RRSAs — foreign exchange
differences and other unrealised
changes in value - - 8 - - - (8} -
Effect of acquisttion accounting* - (124) - - - (142) - -
Impairment of goodwill - (75) - - - - - -
Net post-retirement scheme financing - - 32 - - - (29) -
Gain on reclassification of joint ventures
to subsidianes - - - - - 2 - —
Disposal of businesses - 2 - - - 6 - -
Restructuring* - {49) - - - (39) - -
Other - {1) - - - (6) - -
Related tax effect® - - - 275 - - - 237
Total underlywng adjustments 371 9 (1,281) 275 (128) (283) (1191) 237
Reported per consohdated
ncome statement 13,725 1,501 (1,341) (78) 13,736 1398 (1252) (151)

2

! Realised losses f(gains) on settled derwvative contracts include adjustments to reflect the (gams)/iosses in the same penod as the related trading cash flows

Untealised farr value changes to denvative contracts included 1n profit before financing {)) include those included in equnty accounted joint ventures and {n} excluda those for which
the related trading contracts have been cancelled when the fair value changes are recognised immed ately \n underlying profit
The adjustmeant ehminates charges recogmsed as a result of recognising assets in acquired businesses at fairvalue
Restructuning 15 excluded from underlying performance when it concerns the closure of a sigmficant business or site

* 2015 includes an £18m credit relating to changes in UK tax rates 2014 includes a charge of £64m for the darecognition of advanes corporation tax

RECONCILIATION TO THE BALANCE SHEET

2015 2014
£m im
Reportable segment assets 18,833 17,919
Investments in joint ventures and associates 576 539
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments 3,178 2,869
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 74 80
Income tax assets 341 388
Post retirement scheme surpluses 1,063 1,740
Total assets 24,065 23,535
Reportable segment habilities {12,269) (11,814)
Borrowings (3,302) (2,261)
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings {61) (22}
Incomne tax habihties 1,004) (1,422)
Post retirement scheme deficits 1,140) {1 185)
Total habilities {17,776) (16,704)
Net assets 6,289 6,831

Rolls-Royce pl¢ AnnualReport 2015 83

i}
=1
[
3
2.
a
wA
P
~
B
[}
El
]
3
2
z




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 Segmental analysis continued
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
The Group's revenue by destination from continuing operations is as follows

2015 2014
£m fm

United Kingdom 1,780 1599
Germany 642 734
Switzerland 782 670
Norway 280 322
France 249 292
italy 222 201
Spain 200 113
Russia 59 86
Rest of Europe 786 575
Europe 5,000 4592
USA 3,591 3,751
Canada a7s 472
North Amernica 4,066 4,223
South America 425 407
Saudi Arabia 365 327
Rest of Middle East 445 118
Muddle East 810 745
China 1,236 1290
South Korea 278 485
Singapore 545 396
Malaysia 78 280
Japan 136 272
India 99 161
Rest of Asia 546 493
Asia 2,922 3,377
Africa 144 115
Australasia 278 207
Cther BO 70
13,725 13,736

No single customer represented 10% or more of the Group's revenue

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current assets, excludng financial mstruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment
benefit surpluses, by the geographical area in which the assets are located, are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

Umited Kingdom 4,072 3 864
United States of Amernica 835 B27
Nordic countnes 598 724
Germany 2,339 2493
Other 900 912
8,744 8 B20
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Fiancaial Statements
3 Research and development and other income and expenses
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
2015 2014
£m £m
Expenditure n the year {831) (818)
Capitalised as mtangible assets 51 83
Amortisation of capitalised costs {136) (125)
Net research and development cost {916) (860)
Entry fees received 83 51
Entry fees deferred in respect of charges in future years (28) (38)
Recognition of previously deferred entry fees 43 54
Net cost recogmised in the mcome statement {818) (743)
Underlymg adjustments relating to effects of acquisttion accounting and foreign exchange 53 63
Net underlying cost recognised in the income statement (765) (730)
Discontinued operations (25)
Net underlying cost recognmised n the income statement previously reported {755)
4 Net financing
2015 2014
Per Per
consohdated consohdated
income Underlying ncome Underiying
statement Jfmancng’ statement Jfinancing?
Notes £m £m £m im
Financing income
Interest receivable 12 12 17 17
Fair value gains on foreign currency contracts® 15 = - 2 -
Financial RR5As — foreign exchange differences and other unreahised changes in
value 16 21 - - -
Finance iIncome on post-retirement scheme surpluses 13 65 - 13 -
Net foreign exchange gams 17 32 - -
115 44 32 17
Financing costs g
Interest payable (71) {71) (63) {63) 3
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts? 16 {1,217) - {1127) - ;j
Financial RRSAs —financing 16 {8) (8) (5) {s) =3
Financial RRSAs — foreign exchange differences and other unreahsed changes in 3
value 16 (13) - (8) ~ >
Fairvalue losses on commodity denvativest 16 (89) - (15)
Finance cost on post-retirement scheme deficits 18 {33} - (42) -
Net foreign exchange losses - - (13) -
Other financing charges (25) {25) [UNH] (10)
{1,456} (104) (1,284) (78}
Net financing {1,341) (60) (1252) (61)
Analysed as
Net interest payable (59) {59) (46) {48)
Net post-retirement scheme fimancing 32 — (29) _
Net other financing {1,314) (1} (1,177) {15)
Net financing (1,341) (60} (1,252) (61)
INet (loss) / gain on fair value items through profit or loss (1,306) - (1140) -

? See Note 2

1 The underlying financing income of includes £34m from gains an settlement of foreign exchange following the receipt 1n the UK of dividends from overseas subsidiarres
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5 Taxation
UK Overseas Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 9 8 157 240 166 248
Less double tax rehef — - - - - -
9 g 157 240 166 248
Adjustments in respect of prior years 6 1 {23) 12 {17) 13
15 9 134 252 149 261
Deferred tax
Deferred tax credit for the year {37) (72) (23) 77 (60) (149)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 10 (14) [&] (11) 5 (25)
Derecogmition of advance corporation tax - 64 - - - 64
Deferred tax credit resulting from reduction in tax rates (18) - - — (18) -
(45) (22) {28) (88) {73) (110}
Recogmsed m the income statement {30) (13) 106 164 76 151
OTHER TAX (CHARGES)/CREDITS
ela} Equity
items that will not Items that may
be reclassified be reclassified
205 2014 2015 2014 2015 2012
£m £m £m im £m £m
Current tax
Share-based payments —direct to equity - 3
Deferred tax
Movement 1n post-retirement schemes 257 (431)
Share-based payments - direct to equity (6) (7)
Net investment hedge {2) {2)
257 (431) {2} {2) (6) (4)
TAX RECONCILIATION ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS
2015 2014
£m £m
Prafit before taxation 160 146
Less share of results of joint ventures and assocates (note 10) {100) 94)
Profit before taxation excluding Joint ventures and associates 60 52
Nornal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 12 11
UK R&D credit - 6)
Rate differences? 63 71
Impairment of goodwill 13 -
Qther permanent differences 5 22
Benefit to deferred tax from previously unrecogmsed tax lesses and temporary differences (7) (3)
Tax losses 1 year not recogmised in deferred tax 20 4
Adjustments in respect of prior years (12) (12)
Derecogmtion of advance corporation tax - 64
Reduction in closing deferred taxes resuliing from decrease in tax rates {18) -
76 151
Underlying items (note 2) 351 390
Non-underlyimg items {275) (239)
76 151

* Rate drfferences mamly relate to tax on profits in countnies such as the US and Germany which have higher tax rates than the UK
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Fianaal Statements
5 Taxation continued
TAX ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
2015 2014
£m £m
Tax czedit on ordinary activities of the discontinued operation - 3)
Tax credit on profit on disposal of discontinued aperations - 2)
- (s)
Deferred taxation assets and habibities
2015 2014
fm £m
At 1 January {859) {566}
Amount credited to income statement 73 120
Amount credited/(charged} to ether comprehensive mcome 255 (433)
Amount charged to equity (6) 71
Acquisition of busmesses - (3}
Exchange differences 16 30
At 31 December {521) {859)
Deferred tax assets 318 369
Deferred tax habibities {833} {1,228}
(521} (859)
The analysis of the deferred tax position s as follows
At Recogmsed At
1 January womncome Recogmsed Recogmsed Exchange 31 December
205 statement n OCl n equity differences
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets {455) 52 - - 11 (392)
Property, plant and equipment (195) 7 - - {2) (190)
Gther temporary differences 97 {69) (2) (7} 2 21
Amounts recoverable on contracts {526) {13) - - - {539)
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (324 {30) 257 - 7 {90)
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets -
and habihties 135 171 - - - 306 H
Losses 393 {29) - 1 ] 343 2
R&:D expenditure credit 16 4 - - - 20 g
(859) 73 255 (6) 16 {521) g’
3
At Recognised At ®
1lJanuary InIncome Recognised Recogmised Disposal Exchange 31 December
2014 statermnent mQCi nequity  ofbusinesseas movements 2014
£m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets {511} 41 - - — 15 {455)
Property plant and equipment {210) 20 - - {6) 1 {195)
Other temporary differences - 23 (2) (10) (1) 7 97
Amounts recoverable on contracts {380) {146) - - - - {526)
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits 153 {54) (431) - — 3 (324)
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets
and habihties (92) 226 - - — 1 135
Losses 323 65 - 3 4 (2) 393
R&D expenditure credit 7 9 - - = 16
Advance corporation tax 64 (64) - - - - -
{566) 120 (433) 7) (3) 30 {859)
Includedin  Taxatwn 110
Discontinued operations 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5 Taxation continued

Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets

2015 2014

£m £m

Advance corporation tax 182 182
Losses and other unrecogmsed deferred tax assets 36 35
Deferred tax not recogrised on unused tax losses and other items on the basis that future econormic benefit 1s uncertain * 218 217

' Advance corparation tax tax losses and other deductible temparary differences are not expected to expire under current legislation
Deferred taxation assets and hamhhes

The Summer Budget 2015 announced that the UK cotporation tax rate will reduce to 19% from 1 Aprit 2017 and 18% from 1 April 2020,
these reductions were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015 As the reductions were substantively enacted prior to the year end, the
closing deferred tax assets and habihbes have been calculated at this rate The resulting charges or credits have been recognised in the
Income statement except to the extent that they relate toitems previously charged or credited to OCl or equity Accordingly, in 2015, £18m
has been credited to the income statement and £3m has been charged directly to equity

The temporary differences assotiated with investments in subsichanes, joint ventures and associates, for which a deferred tax hability has
not been recogmised, aggregate to £347m (2014 £512m) No deferred tax habihty has been recogmsed on the potential withhelding tax
due on the rermittance of undistributed profits as the Group s able to control the timing of such remittances and it 1s probable that
consent will not be given 1n the foreseeable future

6 Employee information

2015 2014
Number Number

Average number of employees
Urited Kingdom 23,200 24,500
USA 6,400 7900
Canada 1,100 15030
Germany 10,700 10 500
Nordics 3,800 4000
Rest of world 5,300 5,700
50,500 54 160
Civil 23,200 23500
Defence 6,400 7000
Aerospace 29,600 30,900
Power Systems 10,600 10 700
Marine 6,000 6400
Nuclear 4,100 4,100
Other {2014 includes discontinued operations) 200 2000
Land & Sea 20,900 23,200
50,500 54 100
£m fm

Group emnployment costs®

Wages and salaries 2,442 2,646
Social secunity costs 334 362
Share-based payments (note 20) 5 21
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits {(note 18) 299 328
3,080 3357

! Remunetatron of key management personnelis shown n note 23
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Fmanaal Statements

7 Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company s audrtors and its associates were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual finanaial statements ! 19 18
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 37 37
Total fees payable for audit services 56 55

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and it$ associates for other services
Audit related assurance services? 10 08
Taxatton comphance services 04 07
All other services - c4
70 74

Fees payable in respect of the Group's pension schemes

Audit 02 02

The ‘evel of fees payable ta the Company s auditors for the audii of the Company s annual financial statements reflects the fact that imited incramental work 1s required i1n respect of
the audit of these financial statements Rolls Royee ple a subsidary of the Company 15 also required to prepare consohdated finanoial statements and the fees payable to the
Company s audhtors for the audit of those financial statements including the audit of the sub-consolidation 15 included in the audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to
legislation

This includes £0 3m (2014 £0 3m) for the review of the half year report

N

8 Intangible assets

Certification
costs and Contractual
pathapation  Development aftermarket Customer
Goodwill fees  expenditure rights  relationships Software Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost

At1January 2014 1861 928 1,646 580 475 453 532 6475
Reclassifications (8) = 4 - 11 19 {28) 2)
Exchange differences (112) (8) {43) - (17) 1) {28) {209)
Additions - 159 100 93 - 83 42 477
Acquisitions of businesses 1 - = - - - - 1
Disposals of businesses (67) - - (35) — (11) - (2113) -

At 1 January 2015 1,675 1,079 1,707 638 469 543 518 6,629 E
Exchange differences (87) @) (32) - (14) - (16) ase) [H
Additions - 73 55 161 = 79 40 408 5,'
Acquisinions of businesses 1 - — — 1 - 1 3 g
Disposals - - - - - (6) - (6) 3

At 31 Decemnber 2015 1589 1,145 1730 799 456 616 543 6 878 2

Accumulated amartisation

At 1lJanuary 2014 23 265 444 352 69 198 137 1,488
Reclassifications (8) - 4 - (11) 5 6 (4)
Exchange differences — - (9) - (4) — (6} {19)
Charge for the year? - 46 125 37 42 63 53 366
Impairment 1 = — — = — — 1
Disposal of businesses = = - = - (7) - (7)

At 1January 2015 16 311 564 389 96 259 190 1,825
Exchange differences (5] (1) {10) - (3) - _ (3} (22)
Charge forthe year? - 63 137 55 46 68 38 407
Impairment 75 = = = - = - 75
Reversal of impatrment - - - (50) - - - (50)
Disposals - = - - - {2 - 2)

At 31 December 2015 86 373 691 394 139 325 225 2,233

Net beok value

At 31 December 2015 1,503 772 1,039 405 317 291 318 4,645

At 31 Decernber 2014 1,659 768 1,143 249 373 284 328 4 804

Al 1 January 2014 1838 663 1,202 228 406 255 395 4987

' In 2013 foliowing the acquisition of RRPS the Group revised the classification of intangible assets During 2014 a number of minor inconsistencies 1n these ctassifications were

identined and amended The net movement of £2m relates to software previously included in property plant and equipment
? Charged tocost of sales except development costs which are charged to research and development costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

8 Intangible assets continued

GOODWILL

In accordance with the requirements of |AS 36 impairment of Assets, goodwll 1s allocated to the Group's cash-generating units, o1 groups of
cash-generating umts, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave nise to the goodwll as fallows

CASH-GENERATING UNIT (CGU) OR GROUP OF CGUs

Primary reporting 2015 2014

segment im im

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co XG Cwvil Aerospace 202 215
Commercial marine — arising from the acquisitions of Vinters plc and Scandinavian Electric Holdings AS Marine 491 552
Commercial marine — ansing from the acquisition of ODIM ASA Marine 25 7
Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG Power Systems 739 760
Other Various 46 55
1,503 1659

Goodwll has been tested for impairment during 2015 on the following basis

- The carrying value of goodwill has been assessed by reference to value 1n use These have been estimated using cash flows from the
maost recent forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of information on
market conditions Given the long-term and established nature of many of the Group’s products (product lives are often measured in
decades), these forecasts generally cover the next ten years Growth rates for the penod not covered by the forecasts are basedon a
range of growth rates 2 0-2 75 %) that reflect the products, mdustries and countries in which the relevant CGU or group of CGUs operate

» The key assumptions for the impairment tests are the discount rate and, 1n the cash flow projections, the programme assumptions, the
growth rates and the impact of foreign exchange rates on the retationship between selling prices and costs Imparrment tests are
performed using prevailing exchange rates

» The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at rates based on the Group's werghted average cost of capital, adjusted for
speaific nisk where appropnate The discount rate used, before taking account of specific misks, 15 13% (2014 13%)

As a result of the contimuing poor market conditions in the Marine offshore busimess caused by the low crude o1l price and the
consequential reduced order ntake in the pertod the Group has recogmsed an impairment loss of £69m (mcluded i the total impairment
charge of £75m) to the carrying value of goodwll of cash generating umts in this market This 1s included n cost of sales in the income
statement but excluded from the underlying results The impairment loss pnmarily relates to the cash generating units Scandinavian
Electric Holdings ASA {acquited 1n 2008) and ODIM ASA (acquired 1 2010), which are both business operations included in Marine The
1mpairment loss 1s based on a value in use calculation using cash flows forecast over a ten year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 13%
which indicated a recoverable amount of £74m compared with a pre-impairment carrying value of £143m
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Finanqgial Statements

8 Intangible assets continued
The principal value in use assumptions for goodwill balances considered to be indmvidually sigmficant are

Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG — Volume of equipment deliveries, pncmg achieved and cost escalation These are based on current and
known future programmes, estimates of capture of market share and long-term economic forecasts The prmapal foreign exchange
exposures are on translating income 1n a vanety of non-functional currencies mto euros For the purposes of the impairment only, cash
flows from recent management forecasts for a five-year peniod have been included Cash flows beyond five years are assumed to grow at
2% (2014 2%) Reasonably possible change n the key assumptions would cause the value i use of the goodwill to fall belowits carrying
value, which include a reduction in the level of cash generation of 9%, or an ,mcrease in the assumed discount rate of 2%

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG — Volume of engime dehveries, flying hours of mstalled fleet and cost escalation These are based on
current and known future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirements and long-term economic forecasts The principal
foreign exchange exposure is on translating Us dollar income into euros For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows
beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5% {2014 2 5%) The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible
change m the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below its carrymmg value The overall level of business
would need to reduce by more than 69% to cause an impairment of this balance

Vters Lirmted — Volume of equipment dehveries, capture of aftermarket and cost escalatien These are based on current and known
future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirements and long-term econerme forecasts The principal foreign exchange
exposures are on translating mcome n a vanety of non-functional currencies 1nto Norwegian kroner Forthe purposes of the
impairment test only, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5% (2014 2 5%) The directors do not consider
that any reascnably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the value 1n use of the goodwill to fall below 1ts carrying value
The overall level of business would need to reduce by more than 54% to cause an impairment of this balance

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Certification costs and participation fees, development costs and recoverable engme costs have been reviewed for impairment in
accordance with the requitements of IAS 36 impairment of Assets Whete an imparrment test was considered necessary, 1t has been
performed on the following basis

- The carrying values have been assessed by reference to value m use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent
forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past expenence and external sources of mformation on market
conditions over the hives of the respective programmes

- The key assumptions underlying cash flow projections are assumed market share, programme timings, umt cost assumptions, discount
rates, and foreign exchange rates

» The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 11% (2014 11%), based on the Group s weighted average cost of capital,
reduced where relevant to take account of the lower risk associated with contracted aftermarket flows

+ No mparment is required on this basis However, a combination of changes m assumptions and adverse movements 1n vanables that
are outside the Group's control {discount rate, exchange rate and awframe delays), could result in impairment in future years

During the year, followmg analysis of the first major overhauls of the Trent 1000 engines the recoverable amount of certam contractual
aftermarket nghts have been reassessed This analysis demonstrated that the aftermarket cash flows from the engmes were better than ongimally
assumed, ansing from both operational and contractual performance improvements As a result of this analysis, the value muse (based on a

pre tax discount rate of 9%) has increased to around £140m, exceeding the urimpaired carrymg value of £72m Accordmgly cumulative
impairments pror to 2015 of £50m have been reversed This reversal 1s included in the Civil Aerospace business cost of sales
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

9 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and Alreraft In course of
buwidings equipment  andengines  construction Total
£m £€m £m £&m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2014 1,297 3490 324 700 5811
Exchange differences (23} (42) {1} 2 (64}
Additions 24 160 57 427 668
Acquisitions of businesses - - 38 - 38
Disposals of businesses (88) (94) (77) (28) (287)
Reclassifications 134 137 32 (305} (2}
Disposals/write-offs (10} (51) (52) (1) (114}
At 1 January 2015 1,334 3,600 321 795 6 050
Exchange differences (20} (39) 2) (3) (64)
additions 18 117 19 340 494
Acguisitions of businesses - 1 - - 1
Disposals of busmesses - 1) - - oY)
Reclassifications 31 335 7 {423) -
Transferred to assets held for sale {8) {23) {2) - (33}
Disposalsfwnte-offs (30) {96) {1 (1) (131)
At 31 December 2015 1,375 3,894 339 708 6,316
Accumulated depreciation
AtlJanuary 2014 386 1949 24 - 2,419
Exchange differences (8) (26) - - (34)
Charge for the year! 49 294 31 - 374
Impairment — — - 1 1
Reclassifications {29) {62) 9) - (100)
Disposals/write-offs 7) (46) [€)] - (56}
At1llJanuary 2015 391 2109 103 1 2,604
Exchange differences {7) (24) (1) - 32
Charge for the year* 48 299 26 - 373
Impairment 3 2 - - 5
Disposals of businesses - [eH] - - (1)
Transferred to assets held for sale {5 (20) (1) - {26)
Disposals/write-offs (14) (81) (0] - (97}
At 31 December 2015 416 2,284 125 1 2,826
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 959 1,610 214 707 3,450
At 31 Decernber 2014 943 1,491 218 794 3,446
At 1 January 2014 911 1541 240 700 3392

! Depreciation charged duning the year 13 presented 1n the income statement or included in the cost of inventory as appropriate
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9 Property, plant and equipment continued
Property, plant and equipment include

Fmanaal Statements

2015 2014
£m £m

Net book value of finance leased assets

Land and buildings 5 6

Plant and equipment 7 9

Aircraft and engines 40 43
Assets held for use 1n operating leases

Cost 321 267

Depreciation (87) {64)

Net book value 234 203
Capital expenditure commitments 167 194
Cost of fully depreciated assets 853 792

The Groupss share of equity accounted entities’ capital commtments1s £75m (2014 £32m)

10 investments
COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

The entities contributing to the Group's financial results are hsted on pages 143 to 149

NON-CONTROLUING INTERESTS

In 2015 the Group did not have any matenal non-wholly owned subsidranes On 7 March 2014, Daimler AG announced its intention
to exercise 1ts put option on 1ts 50% of Rolls-Royce Power Systermns Holding GmbH (RRPSH) Formal netice of this mtention was served
on 24 March 2014 From this date, the Group had an effective econormc mterest in RRPSH of 100% and NCI of £584m was transferred to

retaimed earmngs The Group acquired the shares on 26 August 2014, gving 1t a 100% interest i RRPSH

Summarnised finanoal information for RRPSH 1s as follows

At
24 March

2014}

im

Current assets 1,529
Non-current assets 2,511
Current habilities (974)
Non-current habihties (1118)
Equity attributable to Rolls-Royce shareholders 1,364
Non controlling interests 584

! immediately prior to the exercise of the put option

Period to

24 March

2014

£m

Revenue 551
Loss for the period {25}
Attributable to ordinary shareholders {12)
Non-controlling interests (12)
Total comprehensive income for the period (69}
Attnibutable to ordinary shareholders (35}
Non-controlling interests {35)
Dwidends paid to non-controliing interests {76)
Cash flow from operating activities 33
Cash flow frominvesting actvities (17)
Cash flow from financing actwities {158)
Net cash outflow (142)
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

10 Investments continued
EQUITY ACCOUNTED AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Equity accounted Other

Joint ventures Associates Total Unlisted

£m fm £m fm

At 1 January 2014 599 2 601 27
Reclassification?! (25} - (25} -
Exchange differences 7 - 7 (2)
Additions 15 2 17 11
Taxation paid by the Group 3 - 3 -
Transfer to subsidiary (1) - (1) -
Share of retamed profit 23 - 23 -
Disposals (70) - (70) -
Return of capital 3) - (3) -
Consoldation of previously non-consohdated subsidiary - - - (5)
Share of OCl — may be reclassified to profit or loss (13) - {13) -
AtllJanuary 2015 535 4 539 31
Exchange differences 7 — 7 (2}
Additions 12 3 15 &
Taxation paid by the Group (3} - 3 -
Share of retained profit 42 (5) 37 -
Impaiyment - - - 2)
Share of OCI — may be reclassified to profit or loss (19} - (19) -
At 31 December 2015 574 2 576 33

* The reclassification relates to an adjustment 1n the 2013 relating to transactions between the Group and a joint ventuze which was included in creditors ltwas transferred
toinvestments tn joint ventures in 2014

RECONCILIATION TO THE INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

2015 2014 015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Share of profit after tax 100 94 - 2 100 96

Share of dividends paid (63) (71) - 2) {63) (73)

Share of retained profit 37 23 - - 37 23
The following Joint ventures are considered to be individually matenal to the Group

Principal locaton Actnnty Ownershp mierest

Alpha Partners Lirmted (APL) UK Aero engine leasing 5S¢ 0%

Hong Kong Aerc Engine Services Limited (HAESL) Hong Kong Aerc engine repair and overhaul 450%

Singapore Aera Engine Services Pte Limited (SAESL) Singapore Aerg engine repair and overhaul 3%0%

Industna de Turbo Propulsores SA {ITP) Spain  Aero engine component manufacture and maintenance 46 9%
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10 Investments continued
Summanised financial information of the Group’s mdwvrdually matenal joint ventures)s as follows

Finanaal Statements

APL HAESL SAESL ITP
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m im £m £m £€m £m £m £m
Revenue 130 105 652 652 626 815 520 529
Profit from continuing operations 65 39 27 34 46 60 40 24
Post-tax profit from discontinued operations = - - - - - - -
Profit for the year 65 39 27 34 46 60 40 24
Other comprehensive aperations - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 65 39 27 34 46 60 40 24
Dwidends received during the year {29) (13) (23) (30) (35) {s6) (19) {19)
Profit for the year included the following
Depreciation and amortisation (59) (47) {8) {8) {5) (5) {37) (37)
Interest income - - - - - - 10 19
Interest expense {17) {15) (1) (1} - (1) (16) {12}
Income tax expense 7 {11) (5] {7) - - 7 4
Current assets 129 72 223 159 218 207 576 603
Non current assets 1,349 1,171 85 86 125 102 554 525
Current habilities (70 (62) (116) {61) (75) (88) {416) (415)
Non current habilities (1,123 (959) {38) (37) {136) (1086) (431) (418)
Net assets 285 222 154 147 132 115 283 295
Included n the above
Cash and cash equivalents 20 11 q 8 10 11 225 256
Current financial rabihities! (19} {13) - - - - {25) (10
Non-current financial habilihies? (969) (815) (30) {29) (136) (106) (273) (282)
' Excluding trade and other payables
Reconcihation to the carrying amount recogmsed n the consolidated financial statements
Ownershipinterest 50 0% 500% 45 0% 45 0% 39 0% 39 0% 46 9% 46 9%
Group share of net assets above 143 111 69 66 51 45 133 138
The summarised aggregated results of the Group's share of all equity accounted investments 15 as follows
Jomd ventures Associates Total
2015 014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m fm £m fm £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 1,998 1911 - 2 1,998 1,913
Current assets 843 715 2 4 845 719
Liabilities *
Current lhabilities (541) (519) - (1) (541) {520)
Non-current habilities {1,726) {1.572) - 1) (1,726) {1573)
574 535 2 4 576 539
2 Liakahties include borrowings of {1,473) (1,376) - - {1,473) (1376)
Post tax profit from continuing operations 105 94 (5) - 100 94
Post tax profit from discontinued operations - 2 - - - 2
Profit for the year 105 96 (5) - 100 96
Other comprehensive income (19) {13) - - - (13)
Tota) comprehensive income for the year 86 83 (5) - 100 83
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

11 inventories

2015 2014
£m im
Raw materials 509 553
Work in progress 882 984
Long-term contracts work 1n progress 23 22
finished goods 1,173 1149
Payments on account 50 60
2,637 2768
Inventories stated at net realisable value 221 265
Amount of inventory write-down 64 62
Reversal of inventory write-down 14 1
12 Trade and other recewvables
2015 2014
£m £m
Trade receivables 1,612 1531
Amounts recoverable on contracts!® 3,179 2684
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 1,741 1,311
Amounts owed by Joint ventures and associates 252 309
Other recewables 1,006 785
Prepayments and accrued income 195 200
7,985 6820
Analysed as
Financial instruments {note 16)
Trade recevables and similar items 2,061 1,981
Other non-derivative financial assets 843 671
Non-financial instruments 5,081 4168
7,985 6,820
Trade and other recevables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recevables 57 40
Amounts recoverable on contracts 2,768 2444
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 1 -
Other recevables 131 61
Prepayments and accrued income 68 55
3,025 2,600
1 Amounts recaverable on contracts mclude £2 994m (2014 £2 492m) of TotalCare assets
13 Cash and cash equivalents
2015 2014
£m im
Cash at bank and in hand 662 739
Money market funds 783 692
Short-term deposits 1,731 1,431
3,176 2862
Overdrafts {note 14) - -
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement (page 68} 3,176 2,862
Cash held as collateral against third party obligations (note 17) 35 42

relates to cash held 1n non-wholly owned subsidiaries and the Group's captive insurance company

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2015 include £21m (2014 £30m) that 1s not available for general use by the Group This balance
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14 Borrowings

Finanaal Statements

Current Non current Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£fm £m f1,] £m £m im
Unsecured
Overdrafts - - - - - -
8ank loans 217 12 330 392 547 404
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 200 - - 200 200 200
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m! - 55 - - - 55
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m? - - 536 547 536 547
2 375% Notes 2020 Us5500m ! - - 333 - 333 -
2125% Notes 2021 €750m! - - 576 615 576 615
3625% Notes 2025 US52 600m? - - 668 - 668 —
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m? - - 390 395 390 395
Secured
Obhgations under finance leases * 2 1 50 44 52 45
419 68 2,883 2193 3,302 2261

' These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken ta pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fairvalue hedge
? These notes are the subject of snterest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest which form 3 fair value hedge

! Cbhgations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets

15 Trade and other payables

Current Non current Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Payments receved onaccount! 1,491 1,291 516 360 2,007 2,151
Trade payables 1,397 1348 23 13 1,420 1361
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 497 889 - - 497 889
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 197 235 2 4 199 239
QOther taxation and sccial secunty 90 109 1 1 91 110
Other payables 1,784 1,756 361 320 2,145 2076
Accruals and deferred income 1,964 2052 1,414 1,247 3,378 31299
7,420 7680 2,317 2445 9,737 10,125
! Includes payments received on account from joint ventures
and associates 161 158 35 99 1596 257
Included within trade and other payables are government grants of £64m (2014 £80m) During the year, £21m {2014 £24m) of
government grants were Teleased to the come statement
Included in accruals and deferred mcome are deferred receipts from RRSA workshare partners of £228m, (2014 £244m) and £718m
(2014 £687m) of TotalCare habilities
Trade and other payables are analysed as follows
2015 2014
£m £m
financial instruments {note 16)
Trade payables and sirmlar iterns 3,101 3049
Other non-derivative financial habilities 817 831
Non-financial instruments 5,819 6,245
9,737 10125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 Financial instruments
CARRYING VALUES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets Liabilibes Total
Fair value Fair value
Basis for through Loans and Available through
determoming  profitorloss  receivables for sale Cash profitorloss Other
Notes fairvalue £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

2015
Unhsted non current asset investments 10 A - 33 - - — - 33
Trade receivables and sirmlar items 12 B - 2,061 - - - - 2,061
Other non-dervative financial assets 12 B - 843 - - - - 843
Derwatwe financial assets? C 112 - - - - - 112
Short-term investments B - 2 - - - - 2
Cash and cash equivalents 13 B - 1,731 783 662 — - 3,176
Borrowings 14 D - - - - - (3,302) (3,302)
Dernwvative financial habilities C - - - - {1,843) - {1,843)
Financial RRSAs £ - - - - - {110) {110)
Trade payables and sirmular items 15 B - - - - - (3,101} (3,101)
Other non dernvative finanoal habilities 15 B - - - - - (817) (817)

112 4,670 783 662 (1,843} (7,330} {2,9486)
2014
Unhsted non-current asset imvestments 10 A - 31 - - - - 31
Trade recewvables and similar items 12 B - 1,981 - - - - 1921
Other non-derwvative financial assets 12 B - 671 - - - - 671
Derivative financial assets® C 129 - - - - - 129
Short-term investments B - 7 - - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 13 B - 1,431 692 739 - - 2862
Borrowings 14 D - - - - - (2 261) (2,261}
Derivative financial habihitiest C - - - — {759) — (759}
Financial RRSAS E - - - - - {145) {145)
Trade payables and simular items 15 B - - - - - (3,049) (3 049)
Other non-dervative financial habihties 15 B - - - - - {831) {831)

129 4,121 692 739 {759) (6,286) (1 364)

' In the event of counterparty default relating to derivative financial assets and rabihtres off setting would apply and financial assets and liabilities held with the same counterparty
would net off If this occurred with every counterparty total financial assets would be nil and liabiities £1 731m

Fair values equate to book values for both 2015 and 2014, wath the following exceptions

2015 2014
Book value Fair value Book value Farvalue
£m £m £m &m
Borrowings {3,302) {3 312) (2 261) (2,362)
Fimancial RRSAs (110) (110) (145) (152)

The fair value of a financial mstrument 1s the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arms-length transachian Fair values have been determned with reference to avallable market information at the
balance sheet date, using the methodologies descmbed below

A These pnmarily comprise unconsohdated companies where fair value approxamates to the book value

B Fatr values aze assumed to approximate to cost either due to the short térm maturity of the instruments or because the interest rate of the nvestments 1s reset after penods not
exceeding six manths

C Fair values of denvative financial assets and habiities are estimated by discounting ex pected future contractual eash flaws using prevailing interest rate curves Amounts
denominated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rate prevaihng at the balance sheet date These financial nstruments are included on the balance sheet at fair value
derwed from observable market prices (Level 2 as dafined by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement)

DBorrowings are carned at amortised cost Amounts denorminated 1n foreign currencias are valued at the exchange rate prevaiing at the balance sheet date

E The fair value of RRSAs 15 estimated by discounting expected future cash flows The contractual cash flows are based on future trading activity which1s estimated based on latest
forecasts {Level 3 ag defmed by IFRS 13)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement defines a three level valuation hierarchy
Level 1 - quoted prices for similar instruments

Level 2 — directly observable market inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3 - inputs not based on observable market data
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Fimanoal Statements

16 Financial instruments continued
CARRYING VALUES OF OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ech‘l,\Tr:gz Commadity Interest rate Total Financial

contracts contracts contracts derivatives RRSAs Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m

2015
Mon-current assets 3 - 30 a3 — 83
Current assets 29 - - 29 - 29
Assets 32 - 30 112 - 112
Current habihities (244) {39) - (283) (19) {302)
Non-current habihties (1,428) {65) (67) {1,560) (91) {1,651)
Liabilities (1,672} (104) (67) {1,843) (110) (1,953)
(1,640} (104) 13 (1,731) (110) (1,841)

2014
Non-current assets 28 = 79 107 - 107
Current assets 22 - - 22 - 22
Assets 50 - 79 129 - 129
Current habilities {144} {21} - (165} {22) (187)
Non current habihities (545) (22) (27) {594) {123) {717)
Liabilities {689) {43) {27) {759) {145) (904)
(639) (43) 52 (630) {145) {775)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses various financal instruments to manage 1ts exposure to movements mn foregn exchange rates Where the effectiveness

of a hedging relationship in a cash flow hedge 15 demonstrated, changes n the fair value that are deemed effective are ncluded n the cash
flow hedge reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedged stem The Group uses commodity swaps to manage 11s exposure
to movements 1n the price of commodities (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency risk associated with a borrowing denomimated
m US dollars, the Group has currency dervatives designated as part of fair value hedges The Group uses interest rate swaps and forward
rate agreements to manage 1s exposure to movements im interest rates

Movements in the fair values of denvative financial assets and habihties were as follows

Fareign exchange nstruments Commodity instruments Interestrate instruments Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 204 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January (639 458 (43) (39) 52 6) {630) 453
Currency options at inceptign ! (20} - - - - - {20) -
Mavements in fair value hedges? 1 3 - - (36) 58 (35) 61
Movernents in ather derivative contracts? {1,217) {2 125) (89) {15) - - (1,306) (1140)
Contracts settled* 235 {15) 28 11 (3) - 260 (4)
At 31 December {1,640} (639) (104) (43) 13 52 (1,731) (630)

! The Group has wnitten currency options to sell USD and buy GEP as part of a commercial agreement  The fair value of this option on inception 1s treated as a discount to tha customer
t Gan on related hedged items £35m (2014 £61m loss)

* included in financing
* Includes £8m contracts settied in fair value hedges (2014 mi)

FINANCIAL RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAS)

The Group's holding company had agreed a put option with Daimler AG, such that Daimler could sell its nterest 1n Rolls-Royce Power
Systems Holding GmbH to the Group Daimler AG exercised this option on 24 March 2014 and the Group acquired Daimier’s 50% share of
RRPSH on 26 August 2014 Pnior to this, the fair value of the exercise value this aption was included as a financal habity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 Fimancial mstruments continued
Movements 1n the carrying values were as follows

Financial RRSAs

015 2014
£m Em
At 1 January (145) (167}
Exchange adjustments included in OC — 3
Financing charge® (8) s)
Excluded from underlying profit
Exchange adjustments* 8 (8}
Cash paid to partners 35 32
At 31 December (110) {145}

' Included 1n financing

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
The principal financial nisks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign currency exchange rate nisk, hquidhty risk, credit nisk, mterest rate
risk and cormmodity price nsk The Board has approved policies for the management of these risks

Foreign currency exchange rate nisk — The Group has sigmficant cash flows {most sigmficantly US dollars, followed by the euro)
denormnated n currencies other than the funetional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage 1ts exposures to changes in values
of future foreign currency cash flows, so as to mamtam relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rates on settled transactions, the
Group enters inte denwative forward foreign currency transactions For accounting purpaoses, these dervative contracts are not
designated as hedging instruments

The Group also has exposures o the fair vatues of non-dervative financial instruments denommated in foreign currencies To manage the
sk of changes in these fair values, the Group enters into derwvative forward foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as far value
hedges for accounting purposes

The Group regards 1ts interests 1n overseas subsichary compames as long-term mvestments The Group aims to match its translational
exposures by matching the currencies of assets and habihties Where appropnate, foreign currency financial halmhties may be designated
as hedges of the net investment

Liquidity risk — The Group s pohcy 1s to hold financial investments and maintain undrawn committed facihties at a level sufficient to
ensure that the Group has avarable funds to meet 1its medium-term capital and funding obhgations and to meet any unforeseen
obligations and opporturities The Group holds cash and short-term investments which together with the undrawn commutted facihties
enable the Group to manage 1ts hquidity risk

Credit sk — The Group 15 exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by etther 1ts customers or the counterparties of 1ts financial
nstruments The effective momtorng and controlling of credit nisk 15 a key component of the Group's isk management activities The
Group has credit pohcies covering both trading and financial exposures Credit risks ansing from treasury activities ate managed by a
central treasury function n accordance with the Group credit pohey The objective of the policy is to diversify and mimmise the Group’s
exposure to credit risk from 1ts treasury activities by ensuring the Group transacts stnictly wath ‘BBB+ or mgher rated financal institutions
based on pre-estabhshed Inmits per financial institution At the balance sheet date, there were no sigmficant concentrations of credit risk to
ndividual customers or counterparties The maximum exposure to credit Tisk at the balance sheet date 15 represented by the carrying
value of each financial asset, including denivative financial mstruments

Interest rate sk — The Group's interest rate nisk 1s primanly 1n relation to its fixed rate borrowings (fair value risk) floating rate borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents {cash flow nisk) Interest rate derivatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the
Group policy, which 1s to mamntain a higher propartion of net debt at floating rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash position
These are designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges as appropnate

Commodity risk — The Group has exposures to the price of Jet fuel and base metals anising from business operations To mmimise 1ts cash
flow exposures to changes in commodity prices the Group enters into derwative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these
derwative contracts are not designated as hedging imstruments

Other price nsk — The Group’s cash equivalent balances represent ivestments 1n money market mstruments, with a term of up to three
months The Group does not consider that these are subject to sigrficant price nisk
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16 Financial instruments continued
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The norminal amounts analysed by year of expected maturity, and fair values of dervative financial instruments are as follows
Expected maturity Fair value
Between Between
Nominal Within one and twoand After
amount one year two years five years five years Assetsy Liabihtes
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
At 31 December 2015
Foreign exchange contracts
Fai value hedges - - - - - - -
Non-hedge accounted 22,418 5,736 4,266 11,637 779 32 {1,672)
Interest rate contracts
Fairvalue hedges 2,437 - - 500 1,937 74 (61)
Non hedge accounted - - - - - [ {6)
Commaodaty contracts
Non-hedge accounted 268 90 72 83 23 - (104}
25,123 5,826 4,338 12,220 2,739 112 {1,843)
At 31 December 2014
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 46 46 - - - 6 —
Non-hedge accounted 20,889 5431 4753 10 665 - 44 (689}
Interest rate contracts
Faur value hedges 1512 53 - 500 959 74 (22)
Non-hedge accounted 2 2 - - - 5 (5}
Commaodity contracts
Non hedge accounted 240 79 62 71 28 - {43)
22689 5611 4 855 11236 987 129 {759)
As descnibed above all denvative financial instruments are entered into for sk management purposes, although these rnay not be
designated mto hedging relationships for accounting purposes

CURRENCY ANALYSIS

Derwatwe financiahinstruments related to foreign exchange nsks are denormnated n the following currencies %‘
Currencies purchased forward :.3_,_
Sterling us dollar Euro Other Total E
£m £m £m £m £m 4
At 31 December 2015 E]
Currencies sold forward Z
Sterling - 383 - 221 604
us dollar 18,869 - 1,552 902 21,323
Euro 2 76 - 125 203
Other 131 12 143 2 288
At 31 Decernber 2014
Currencies sold forward
Sterhng - 429 - 199 628
U5 dollar 16,659 — 2014 538 19,611
Eurg 150 61 - 185 396
QOther 167 9 114 10 300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 Financial instruments continued

Other denvative financial mstruments are denominated in the following currencies

2015 2014
£m £m
Sterling 875 877
US dollar 1,279 292
Euro 550 584
Non-derivative financial instruments are denominated 1n the following currencies
Sterling us dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2015
Unhisted non-current investments - 1 31 1 33
Trade receivables and similar items 131 1,228 613 89 2,061
Other non derivatwe financial assets 280 350 102 111 843
Short-term investments - — - 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents 1,554 959 446 217 3,176
Assets 1,965 2,538 1,192 420 6,115
Borrowings {1,369) {1,162) (768) (3) {3,302)
Financial RRSAs - {75} (35) - {110)
Trade payables and similar items {1,536) {859) (523) {183} (3,101)
Other non-dervative financial habilities {242 {303) {139} (133) (817)
Labihties (3,147 (2,399) (1,265} {319} (2,330)
{2,182 139 273) 101 {1,215)
At 31 Dacember 2014
Unhsted non-current imvestments - - 30 1 31
Trade receivables and similar items 232 1,180 479 90 1,981
Other non-derivative financial assets 400 53 101 117 671
Short-term investments - - - 7 7
Cash and cash equivalents 513 1,404 619 326 2,862
Assets 1,145 2,637 1229 541 5552
Borrowings {1341) {101) (819) - {2,261}
Financial RR5As - (97) {a8) - (145)
Trade payables and similar items (1,489) (887) {545) (128) (3 049)
Other non-derivative financial habiites (248) {333) (161) (89) (831)
Liabilities (3.078) (1,418) {1573) (217) {6 286)
(1,933) 1219 (344) 324 (734)
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16 Finanaal instruments continued
CURRENCY EXPOSURES

Fmangial Statements

The Group's actual currency exposures after taking account of dervative foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging

instruments for accounting purposes are as follows

Sterling us dollar Euro Other Tatal
Functional currency of Group operations £m £€m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2015
Sterhing - = 1 27 28
US dollar {12) 1 - 8 3)
Euro 4 - - - a4
Other - 3 1 (1) 3
At 31 December 2014
Sterhing - 28 2 35 &5
US dollar (2) - (1) 8 5
Euro 2 5 - 11 18
Other 5 19 6 1 31
AGEING BEYOND CONTRACTUAL DUE DATE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group s financial assets s
Between
Upto three
three months and More than
within months oneyear aneyear
terms overdue overdue overdue Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2015
Unhsted non-current asset investments 33 - - - 33
Trade recewvables and similar items 1,745 184 98 34 2,061
QOther non-denvative financial assets 835 S 1 2 843
Dervative financial assets 112 - - - 112
Short-term investments 2 - - - 2
Cash and cash equivalents 3,176 - - - 3,176
5903 189 99 36 6,227
At 31 December 2014
Unlisted non-current asset investments 31 - - - 31
Trade recevables and similaritems 1657 206 104 14 1,981
Other nan-dervatve financial assets 667 4 - - 671
Dervative financial assets 129 - - - 129
Short-term investments 7 - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 2862 - - - 2862
5,353 210 104 14 5,681
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16 Financial instruments continued
CONTRACTUAL MATURITY ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Gross values
Between Between

Within oneand two and After Carrying
one year two years fiveyears fiveyears  Discounting value
fm £m £m £m £m fm

At 31 December 2015
Borrowings (530} (161) {1,317) (1,897) 603 (3,302)
Denvative financial habihties {286) {329) (1,0286) (314) 112 {1,843)
Financial RRSAs {16) (20) {76) (10) 12 {110)
Trade payables and simlar items (3,059} (38) {a) - - (3,101)
Other non-derivative financial habilities (640} (a3) (74) {80} - {817)
{4,531) (591) (2,497) {2,281} 727 (5,173)

At 31 December 2014
Borrowings (148) (38%) {214) {1 880) 366 (2,261)
Denivatwve financial habiities (174) (115) (324) (181) 35 {759)
Financial RRSAS {17) (19) (72) (52) 15 (145)
Trade payables and similar items {3012) (32) {2} (3) - (3,049)
Other non-denwvative financial habilities (650) (95) (20} (66) - (831)
{4.001) (648) 632) (2 182) 416 (7.045)

INTEREST RATE RISK

In 7espect of income earning financial assets and interest bearing financial habilities, the following table indicates their effective interest
rates and the periods in which they reprice The value shown is the carrying amount

Peniod in which interast
rate reprices

1 Interest on the short term imvestments are at fixed rates

? Cash and cash equivalents comprises bank balances and demand deposits and earns interest at rates based on daily deposit rates

Effective 6 months
interest rate Total or less 6 12 months
At 31 December 2015 % £m £m £m
Short-term investments? 2 2 -
Cash and cash equivalents? 3,176 3,176 -
Unsecured bank loans
Other borrowings {129) 1) -
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR +1 26 {200) (200) -
£43m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0 402 (43) {43) -
€125m fixed rate loan 2 6000% (92) - -
€£75m fixed rate loan 2 0600% (55) - -
€50m fixed rate loan 2 3500% {28) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200} - -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m 6 7500% (536} - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBCR + 2 9824 - (536) -
2 375% Notes 2020 $500m 2 3750% {333) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8410 - (333) -
2125% Notes 2021 €750m 21250% {576) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 7005 - {576) -
3 625% Notes 2025 $1 000m 3 6250% {668) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 1 4658 - (668) -
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m 3 3750% (390) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8930 - (390) -
Qther secured
Obhigations under finance leases 4 1089% (52)
(124)
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16 Fmancial instruments continued

Financaial Statements

Peniod in whichinterest
rate reprices

Effective 6 months
nterest rate Total orless & 12 months
At 31 December 2014 % £m £ fm
Short-term investments® 7 5 2
Cash and cash equivalents? 2,862 2862 —
Unsecured bank loans
Other borrowings {12) (1) -
Interest rate swaps 5 8156% - 2 (2)
£200m floating rate loan GBPLIBOR +126 (200) (200) -
€125m fixed rate loan 2 6000% (97} - -
€75m fixed rate loan 2 0600% (59) - -
€50m fixed rate loan 2 3500% (36} — -
Unsecured bond 1ssues
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200) - -
655% Notes 2015 US583m 6 5500% {55) - {55}
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR+1 24 - {55) 55
675% Notes 2019 £500m 6 7500% (547) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GEP LIBOR + 2 9824% - (547) -
2125% Notes 2021 €750m 21250% {615) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 7005 - {615) -
3375% Notes 2026 £375m 3 3750% (395) — -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8930 - (395) -
Other secured
Obhgations under finance leases 4 1089% (45) {1) (1)
808

! Interest on the short term investments are at fixed rates

* Cash and cash equivalents compnises bank balances and demand deposits and earns interesi at rates based on daly depasit rates

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obhgations, including custormnary financial covenants If the
Group fails to meet 1ts obligations these arrangements give nights to the lenders, upon agreement to accelerate repayment of the
facihties There are no rating triggers contamed n any of the Group s facihties that could requite the Group to accelerate or repay any

facility for a given movement in the Group's credit rating

In addhtion, the Group has £1 780m (2014 £1,277m) of undrawn committed borrowing facihties availabie for at least the next two years

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

2015 2014
Sensitivities at 31 December {all other variables held constznt) - impact on profit after tax and equity £m £m
Sterling 10% weaker aganst the US dollar (1,574) (1336)
Sterling 10% stronger aganst the US dollar 1,288 1093
Euro 10% weaker aganst the US dollar {130) {147)
Euro 10% stronger against the US dollar 111 123
Sterling 10% weaker against the Eurg 18 15
Sterling 10% stronger against the Euro {15) (12}
Commodity prices 10% lower {13) (15}
Commodity prices 10% higher 13 15

At 31 December 2015 the Croup had no matenal sensitinty to changes m interest rates on that date The main interest rate sensitinity for the
Group anses as a result of the gross up of net cash and this 1s mitigated as descnbed under the interest rate risk management pohicies on

page 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 Provisions for habilities and charges

At Acquisitions Unused Charged to At

1lanuary Exthange of amounts meome 31 December

2015 differences businesses Teversed statement Utihised 2015

£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m

Warranty and quarantees 426 (14) (1) (28) 106 (108) 381
Contract loss 41 (1) - 1) 10 (13) 36
Restructuring 122 - - (30) 106 (132) 66
Custorner financing 47 - - (27) 11 (11) 20
Insurance 65 - - (5) 15 (8) 67
Other 106 {2} - (9) 2 {27) 70
807 (17} (1) (100) 250 (299) 640

Current habilities 433 336
Non-current habilittes 374 304

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primanly relate to products sold and generally cover a peniod of up to three years

Provisions for contract loss and restructuning are generally expected to be utihsed within two years

In connection with the sale of 1ts products the Group will, on some occasions, provide financng support for its customers — generally

m respect of ciil areraft The Group's commitments relating to these financing arrangements are spread over many years relate

to a number of customers and a broad preduct portfolio and are generally secured on the asset subject to the financing These include
commitments of US$3 1bn to provide borrowing facihties to enable custorners to purchase awcraft (of which approximately US$322m
could be called n 2016) These facilities may only be used 1f the customer is unable to obtam financing elsewhere and are priced at a
prermium to the market rate Consequently the directors do not consider that there1s a sigmificant exposure ansing from the provision of

these facihties
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17 Prowvisions for liabilities and charges continued

Customer financing provistons cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or financing These guarantees, the risks ansing and the
process used to assess the extent of the nsk are described under the heading ‘Customer financing’ in the Finance Review on page 44
It 15 estimated that the provision will be utihsed as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

Potential claims with specific claim dates
In one year of less 3 32
In mote than one year but less than five years 12 11
In more than five years 5 4
20 a7

Commtments on dehvered aircraft in excess of the amounts provided are shown n the table below These are reported on a discounted
basis at the Group’s borrowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could anise These amounts do not represent
values that are expected to crystalhse The commitments are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not generally adopt cash flow
hedge accounting for future foreign exchange transactions, this amount 1s reported, together with the sterhng equivalent at the reporting
date spot rate The values of awrcraft providing secunty are based on advice from a specialist arcraft appraiser

2015 2014
£m sm £m im
Gross commitments 269 399 388 605
Value of secunty? (138 {201) {245) (382)
Indemnities {79 {118) (84) (132)
Net commitments 54 8¢ 59 91
Net commitments with secunty reduced by 20%? 78 115 g0 140
! Secunty includes unrestricted cash collateral of 35 52 42 66

? Although sensitnaty calculations are complex the reduction of relevant secunty by 20% iustrates the sensitwity to changes in this assumption

The Group's captive Insurance company retans a portion of the exposures it msures on behalf of the remamder of the Group Sigmficant
delays occur in the notification and settlement of claims and judgement s mvolved 1n assessing outstanding habihities, the uttimate cost
and tirming of which cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date The insurance provisions are based on information
currently available, however it 15 inherent n the nature of the business that ulhhmate habihities may vary Provisions for outstanding claims
are established to cover the outstanding expected habihty as well as claims incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions comprise a number of habilities with varying expected utihsation rates
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 Post-retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes

« UK defined benefit schemes are funded with the assets are held in separate trustee admimistered funds Employees are entitled to
retirement benefits based on erther their final or career average salaries and length of service, and

- Overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans and provide benefits nline with local practice
Additionally in the US, and to a lesser extent i some other countries, the Group's employment practices include the provision of
healthcare and hfe msurance benefits for retired employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, where relevant updated by the scheme
actuanes to 31 December 2015

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal nisks such as longevity, nterest rate inflation and investment nsks In the UK,
and 1in the principal North American pension schemes, the Group has adopted imvestment pohicies to rmitigate some of thesa risks This
mvolves investing a sigmficant proportion of the schemes” assets in Liability Driven Investment (LDI) pottfolios, which hold investments
designed to offset mterest rate and inflation rate risks n addition, 1n the UK, the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund has invested in a longevity swap,
whnch 1s designed to offset longevity nisks in respect of existing pensioners

in the UK, surpluses are recogmsed on schemes where, on ultimate wind-up when there are no remaining members, any surplus will be
returned to the Group

AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

2015 2014
ux Overseas UK Cverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
fm £m £m im £m £m
Defimed benefit schemes
Current service cost and administrative expenses 169 52 221 156 45 201
Past-service and curtallment {credit)/cost (16) 8 {8) {18} (13} (31}
153 60 213 138 32 170
Defined contrbution schemes 33 85 118 32 97 129
Operating cost 186 145 331 170 129 299
Net financing n respect of defined benefit schemes (65) 33 (32) (11) 40 29
Total income statement charge 121 178 299 159 169 328
The operating cost 1s charged as follows
Defined benefit Defined contribution Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
im £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales 147 117 80 84 227 201
Commercial and adminmistrative costs 32 21 21 23 53 44
Research and development 34 27 17 17 51 44
Qperating cost = continuing operations 213 165 118 124 331 289
Discontinued operations - 5 - 5 - 10
Total operating cost 213 170 118 129 331 259

108 Rolls-Royce ple Annual Report 2015




18 Post-retirement benefits continued

Finanaal Statements

The Group operates a PaySave scheme n the UK This 1s a salary sacnifice scheme under which employees elect to stop making employee
contnbutions and the Group makes additional contributions in return for a reduction in gross contractual pay As a result, thereisa
decrease in wages and salaries and a corresponding increase in pension costs of £32m (2014 £35m)m the year

Net financing comprises

2015 2014
UK Overseas UK Crverseas
sthemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m fm £m £m £m fm
Financing on scheme obhgations 375 57 432 390 64 454
Financing on scheme assets (440) {24) (a64) (427} (24} (451)
Financing on unrecognised surpluses and mimmum funding habihty - - - 26 - 26
Net financimg {income)fcharge in respect of defined benefit schemes (65} 33 {32) (11} 40 29
Financing income on scheme surpluses (65) - (65) {13) - {13)
Financing cost on scheme deficits - 33 33 2 40 42
AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN OC! IN RESPECT OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
2015 2014
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schames schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Actuanal gains and losses arising from demographic assumptions {185) 8 {177) 23 an [
Actuanal gains and losses arising from financial assumptions (70) 70 - {1 099) {228) {1327)
Actuanal gans and lesses ansing from expenience adjustments 56 8 64 (343) 17) {36Q)
Return on scheme assets excluding fimanaing income (593) {16) {609) 2,258 55 2,313
Movermnent in unrecogrised surplus and related finance cost - - - 513 - 513
Mavement in rmmimum funding lrability and related finance cost - - - 47 - 47
Included in other comprehensive income {192} 70 {722) 1,399 (207) 1,192
AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET IN RESPECT OF DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
2015 2014
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemnes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of funded oblgations {10,914) {650) (11,564) {10 606) (654) (1270)
Fair value of scheme assets 11,957 597 12,554 12,341 593 12,934
Net asset/(labihty) on funded schemes 1,043 {53) 990 1,735 {71} 1,664
Present value of unfunded obhigations - (1,067) (1,067} - {1109) {1109}
Net asset/(habihty) recogmsed in the balance sheet 1,043 (1,120) (77} 1,735 {1,180) 555
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 1,059 4 1,063 1735 5 1740
Post-retitement scheme deficits {16) {1,124) (1,140} - {1185) {1185)
Overseas schemes are located n the following countries
2015 014
Assets Obligations Net Assets Obligations Net
£m £m £m fm im £m
Canada 152 (188) {36) 160 {208) (48}
Cermany - (553) (553) - (592) (592)
US pension schemes 429 {513) (84) 414 (508) (94)
US healthcare schemes - (426) (426) - (423) (423)
Other 16 3n {21) 19 (42) (23)
Net asset/(lhabihty) recognised in the balance sheet 597 {1,717) (1,120) 593 {1773) (1,180)
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18 Post-retirement benefits continued

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
Assumphons

were as follows

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Sigmificant actuanal assumptions for UK schemes (weighted average, weighted by the size of the obhgation) used at the balance sheet date

2015 2014
Discount rate 3 6% 36%
Inflation assumption(RPI)? 32% 32%
Rate of increase in salaries 40% 42%
Male ife expectancyfromage 65  current pensioner 22 8years 225 years

future pensioner currently aged 45 24 8years 24 lyears

' Thisys the assumption for the Retail Price Index The Consumer Price Index 1s assumed te be 1 1% lower

Discount rates are determimed by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds The rate 1s determined by using the profile
of forecast benefit payments to derwe a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve

The mflabion assumption 1s determined by the market /implied assumption based on the yields on long-term mmdexed linked government
securities and rncreases 1n salanes are based on actual experience, allowing for promotion, of the real increase above inflation

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are derived from the SAP actuanal tables with future improvements in
Tine with the CMI 2015 core projections and long-term improvements of 1 5% Where appropriate, these are adjusted to take account of the
relevant scheme s actual experience

Other assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends i scheme expenience and the
assumptions used in the most recent funding valuation The rate of mcrease of pensions i payment 1s based on the rules of the relevant
scheme combined with the inflatien assumption where the increase 1s capped

Assumptions for overseas schemes are less sigmficant and are based on advice from local actuanes The principal assumptions are

2015 2014

Discount rate 36% 33%
Inflation assurnption 22% 22%
Long-term healthcare cost trend rate 50% 50%
Male hife expectancy fromage 65 current pensioner 211years 211years
future pensioner currently aged 45 23 3years 23 3years
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18 Post-retirement benefits continued
Changes m present value of defined benefit obhgations

Fmanaoial Statements

2015 014
UK Overseas UK Qverseas
schemes. schemes Tota! schemnes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1January (10,606} (1,773) (12,379) {9,046) (1,493} (10,539)
Exchange differences - 17 17 - (7) {7)
Current service cost {164) {50) (214) {151) {a4) {195)
Past seTvice cost 16 (5) 11 18 16 34
Finance cost (375} (58) (433) (390) 63) (453)
Contributions by employees (3) (4) (7) 4 {5} (9}
Benefits pard out 417 75 492 376 71 447
Disposal of businesses - - - 10 16 26
Actuanal gawns/(losses) {159) 84 (115) (1,419) {266) {1 685}
Settlement curtailment - - - - 6 6
Other movernents - {3) (3) - (4) {4}
At 31 December (10,914) (1,717} (12,631) (10,606) {1,773) (12,379}
Funded schemes (10,914) {650) {11,564) (L0 606) (664) (11 270}
Unfunded schemes - {1,067} {1,067) - (1,109) {1109}
The defined benefit gbhgations are in respect of
Active plan participants {4,273) {921) (5,194) {4,170} {974) {5,144)
Deferred plan participants (1,946) (130) 2,076} (2,009} (97} {2,106)
Pensioners (4,695) {666) 5,361} (4 427) (702) (5129)
Weighted average duration of abligations (years) 13 16 17 17 16 17
Changes n fair value of scheme assets
2015 2014
UK Overseas UK Querseas
schemes schernes Total schemes schernes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1January 12,341 593 12,934 9,776 504 10,280
Exchange differences - (2) {2} - 18 18
Adrministrative expenses (S) 2) 7 (5) 1) (6)
Financing 440 24 464 427 29 451
Return on plan assets excluding financing {593) {16) (609) 2,258 55 2,313
Contributions by employer 188 71 259 257 65 322
Contnbutions by employees 3 4 7 4 5 9
Benefits paid out (417} (75) (492) (376) (71) {447)
Settlements/curtaiiment - - - - (6} (6}
At 31 December 11,957 597 12,554 12 341 593 12,934
Total return on scheme assets {153) 8 (145) 2,685 79 2,764
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 Post-retirement benefits continued
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December

2015 2014

UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Sovereign debt 7,283 297 7,580 7282 167 7,449
Dervatives on sovereign debt (5) {1) {6) {2622) 2 (2,620)
Corporate debt instruments 1,977 239 2,216 2053 237 2290
Interest rate swaps 1,868 - 1,868 4218 - 4218
Inflation swaps (477) - {477) (360) - {360)
Cash and similar instruments 118 21 139 193 127 320
Liability driven investment (LDI) portfohos? 10,764 556 11,320 10,764 533 11,297
Longevity swap? (142) - (142) 10 - 10
Listed equities 81 1 811 787 3 790
Unlisted equities 232 - 232 216 - 216
Sovereign debt 110 3 113 105 4 109
Corporate debt instruments 24 - 24 15 - 15
Cash 68 21 89 166 32 158
Other 91 16 107 278 21 299
Far value of scheme assets 11,957 597 12,554 12,341 593 12,934

! A portfoho of gilt and swap cantracts backed by LIBOR generating assets that s designed to hedge the majonity of the interest rate and inflation nisks associated with the schemes
obhgations

? Under the longevity swap the Rolls Royce Pension Fund has agreed an average hife expectancy of pensianers with a counterparty (f pensioners live longer than expected the
counterparty will make payments to the Fund to offset the additonal cost of paying pensioners If the reverse applies the cost of paying pensioners will be reduced but the scheme
will be required to make payments to the counterparty The longevity swap is valued at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 (Level 3)

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group's own financial mstruments nor any property occupied by, ot other assets used by, the Group
The longewity swap 1s valued by the scheme actuaries based on the difference between the agreed longewvity assumptions at inception and
actuallongevity expenience All other fair values ate provided by the fund managers Where avarlable the far values are quoted prices {eg listed

equity, sovereign debt and corporate bonds} Unhsted mvestments (private equity) are included at values provided by the fund rmanager in
accordance with relevant guidance Other significant assets are valued based on observable inputs such as yeld curves

Movements i unrecogmsed surptus and mmmum funding habihty

2015 2014
uK Overseas UK Overseas

schames schemes Total schemes schemes Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
At1lJanuary - - - (534) - (534}
Movements in unrecognised surplus through OCI? - - - 513 - 513
Movements in minimum funding habihity through OCI 2 - - - 47 - 47
Related finance costs - - - (26} - (26)

At 31 December - - - - — —

Where a surplus has arisen on a scheme 1n accordance with 185 19 and IFRIC 14 the surplus is recognised as an asset only 1f it represents an unconditional econommic benefit available
to the Croup 1n the future Any surplus in excess of this benefit s not racogmsed in the balance sheet During 2014 the rules of one scheme were amended which remaved the
restriction on recognising the surplus

7 A mmmum funding habslity anses where the statutory funding requirements requare future eontnibutions in respect of past service that will result in 3 future unracogrisable surplus

FUTURE CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group expects to contribute approximately £260m to 1ts defined benefit schemes 1 2016

in the UK, the funding 15 set on the basis of a tnenmal funding valuation by the actuanies for which the assumptions may differ from those
above In particular, the discount rate used to value the obligations takes account of the mvestment strategy, rather than being based on
market yrelds of AA corporate bonds As a result of these valuations, the Group and the scheme trustees agree a Schedule of Contributions
{SoC), which sets out the required contrnbutions from the employer and employees for current service Where the scheme s in deficait the
SoC also includes required contnbutions from the employer to eliminate the deficait The most recent agreed trienmial valuations for the
principal schemes are

Obhgations at

31 December 2015
£m Valuation date
Ralls-Rayce Pension Fund (7.871) 31 March 2015
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme {1,913} 5 Apnil 2013
Vickers Group Pension Scheme {702) 31 March 2013

| I
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18 Post-retirement benefits continued

Sensitvities

The calculations of the defined benefit obhigations are sensitive to the assumptions set out above The following table summanses how the
estimated impact of a change in a sigmficant assumption would affect the UK defined benefit obhigation at 31 December 2015, while halding
all other assumptions constant This sensttivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obhgation asitis
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur inisolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

For the most sigmficant funded schemes, the investment strategies are designed to hedge the nsks from interest rates, inflabhien on an
econormc basis and in the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 1n the UK, the longewity of pensioners Where appropriate, the table also mclhudes the
corresponding movernent in the value of the plan assets

£m

Reduction in the discount rate of 0 25%* Obhgation (524)
Plan assets (LDI portfolio} 569

Increase in inflation of O 25%® Obligation {249)
Plan assets (LD! portfolio) 231

Real increasen salanes of 0 25% Obhgations (85)
One year increase in hife expectancy Obhgations (308)

' The difference between the sensitwities on obligations and plan assets arses largely due to dvfferences in the methods used to value the obhgations for accounting and econamic
purposes On an economic bass the correlation s approximately 97% for discount rates and 89% for inflation

19 Share capital

Equity
Ordinary
shares Neminal
of 20p each value
Milhons £m
Issued and fully pard
At 1January 2014 and 31 December 2015 1,631 326

The nghts attaching to each class of share are set out on page 60
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 Share-based payments
EFFECT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS ON THE GROUP'S RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014

£m im

Total expense recogmsed for equity-settled share-based payments transactions 6 26
Total credrt recognised for cash-settled share-based payments transactions (1) (5)
Share-based payments recognised in the consohdated 1ncome statement 5 21
Liability for cash-settled share-based payment transactions - 13

MOVEMENTS IN THE GROUP'S SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS DURING THE YEAR
ShareSave PSP APRA
Weighted
average

Number  exertisaprice Number Number

millions Pence Milhons Millions

Outstanding at 1 January 2014 260 660 120 31
Granted - - 29 11
Additional entitlements ansing from TSR performance - - 05 -
Additional shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares - - - 01
Forfested (10) 775 (12) {02}
Exercised @5 487 {44) 17
QOutstanding at 1 January 2015 245 660 98 24
Granted 130 617 30 -
Additional entitlements arising from TSR performance - - 05 -
Forfeited {4 6) 908 {29) (o1)
Exercised (97) 445 (L7} (1 4)
Qutstanding at 31 December 2015 232 677 B7 09

Exercisable at 31 December 2015 - - — —

Exercisable at 31 December 2014 — - — -

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share prnice duning the year of 820p (2014 1013p) 1s
representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The closing price at 31 December 2015 was 575p (2014 870p}

FAIR VALUES OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

The weighted average fair value per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted during the year, estimated at the date of
grant, are as follows

2015 2014
PSP —25% TSR uphft 1,015p 1105p
PSP —50% TSR uphift 1,036p 1227p
ShareSave — 3 year grant 192p nfa
ShareSave — 5 year grant 219p n/a
APRA nfa 984p

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP s calculated using a pricing model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends

(or equivalent) during the vesting penod and the market-based performance condition based on expectations about volatiity and the correlation
of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates 1nto the valuation the interdependency between share price
performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the far value of the award relative to the share pnice at the date of grant

ShareSave

The fair value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calculated using a binormal pricing model that assumes that participants
will exercise their options at the beginming of the six-month window 1f the share price 15 greater than the exercise price Otherwise 1t
assumes that options are held until the expiration of their contractual term This results m an expected hfe that falls somewhere between
the start and end of the exercise window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 1s calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends
{or equivalent}
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21 Leases
OPERATING LEASES
Leases as lessee
2015 2014
£m im
Rentas paid —hire of plant and machinery 122 123
- hire of other assets 124 75
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
withim one year 150 182
Between one and five years 488 542
After five years 496 438
1174 1,162
Leases as lessor
2015 2014
£m im
Rentals recewed — credited within revenue from aftermarket services 3 15
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are receivable as follows
Within one year 12 16
Between one and five years 12 30
After five years 8 13
32 59

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engines and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment

» Sublease payments of £1m {2014 £1mn) and sublease receipts of £3m (2014 £12m) were recognised m the income staterment in the year

+ Purchase options exist on aero engmnes, land and buildings and plant and equipment witin the perod to the purchase option date
vatying between one to exght years

- Renewal options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the pened to the renewal option varying
between one to 52 years at terms to be negotiated upon renewal

» Escalation clauses exist on some leases and are hnked to LIBOR

» The total future mimmum sublease payments expected to be made s £3m (2014 £6m) and sublease receipts expected
to be received are £24m (2014 £31m)

FINANCE LEASES
Finance Jease hablities are payable as follows

2015 2014
Payments Interest Principal Payments nterest Principal
£m £m Em im £m £m
whithin ane year 5 2 3 3 2 1
Between one and five years 13 8 10 13 7 6
After five years a6 7 39 a7 9 38
69 17 52 63 18 45
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

22 Contingent liabihties
Contmgent habhties in tespect of customer financing commitments are described m note 17

On 6 Decernber 2012 the Company announced that it had passed mformation to the Serous Fraud Office (SFO), followng a request from
the SFO for information about allegations of malpractice i overseas markets On 23 December 2013, the Company announced that 1t had
been informed by the SFO that 1t had commenced a formal investigation Since the imitial annocuncement, the Company has continued 1ts
mvestigations and 1s engaging with the SFO and other authorities m the UK, the USA and elsewhere n relation to the matters of concern

The consequence of these disclosures will be decided by the regulatory authonities Itis too early to predict the outcomes but these
could include the prosecution of mdwiduals and of the Group Accordingly, the potential for fines, penalties or other consequences
cannot currently be assessed As the investigation 1s ongoing, it 15 not yet possible to wdentify the timescale in which these 1ssues might
be resolved

Contingent habilities exist m respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product dehvery,
performance and rehability The Group has, ,n the normal course of business, entered mto arrangements i respect of export finance,
performance bonds, countertrade obhgations and minor riscellaneous 1items Vanous Group undertakings are parties to legal actions and
claims which arise 1n the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an
nsurer as previously reported, the Group 1s no longer fuily insured aganst known and potential claims from employees who worked for
certamn of the Group’s UK based businesses for a penod prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of
some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements legal actions or claims, after
allowing for provisions already made, to result in sigmificant loss to the Group

The Group's share of equity accounted entities’ contingent habilthes1s £11m (2014 £11m)
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23 Related party transactions

2015 2014

£m £m

Sales of goods and services to joint ventures and asseaiates 1,896 2,138
Purchases of goods and services from joint ventures and associates (2,266) (2544}
Operating lease payments to joint ventures and associates (88) (81)

Guarantees of joint ventures' and associates’ borrowwngs 9 9

Diwidends recerved from joint ventures and associates 63 73

RRSA receipts from joint ventures and associates 16 2

Other income received from joint ventures and asscciates 2 2

The aggregated balances with jomt ventures are shown in notes 12 and 15 Transactions with Group pension schemes are shown in note 18

Included 1n sales of goods and services to Jont ventures and associates are sales of spare engines amounting to £189m (2014 £138m) Profit
recegmsed 1n the year on such sales amounted to £71m {2014 £54m), including profit on curtent year sales and recogmtion of profit
deferred on sales in previous years

In the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Key management personmnel are deemed to be the directors and the members of the ELT as set out as set out in the Annual Report of
Rolls-Royce Holdmgs plc Remuneration for key management personnel 1s shown below

2015 2014

£m £m

Salanes and short-term benefits 8 9
Post-retitement schemes - 1
Share-based payments - 4
8 14

The charge for share-based payments above 1s based on when the award 1s charged to the income statement in accordance with IFRS 2
Share-Based Payments
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

24 Acquisitions and disposals

ACQUISITIONS

On 27 March 2015, the Group acquired 100% of ROV Technologies inc for $8m The acquisition gave nise to goodwll of £1m and other
intangible assets of £2m

DISPOSALS
On 27 November 2015, the Group completed the sale of its Michell Bearings business {comprising a business based m the UK, and a 51%
shareholding 1n Michell Bearings (India) Pvt Ltd, a subsidiary company based m Bangalore] for net consideration of £2m
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2015
2015 2014
Notes fm £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3 2,869 2622
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,389 1,348
Investments — subsidiary undertakings 5 1,430 1724
—joint ventures 5 78 72
—other 5 1 -
Other financial assets 9 123 137
Post-retirement schemes —surpluses 14 1,052 1,727
6,942 7,630
Current assets
Inventores 6 1,218 1,237
Trade and other recewvables 7 6,821 6 308
Taxation recoverable 9 -
QOther financial assets 9 137 103
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,422 1,941
10,607 9589
Total assets 17,549 17,219
Liabilities
Current habibhes
Borrowings 10 {314) (11000
Other financial habihties 9 (322) (218}
Trade and other payables 11 (7,936) (7,565)
Provisions for habilities and charges 12 (57) (96)
(8,629) (8,979)
Non-current hallihes
Borrowings hls; (2,746) (1957)
Other financial habilities 9 {1,679) (753)
Trade and other payables 11 (1,211) (1,497)
Deferred tax habilities 13 {123) {a79)
Prowisions for habihities and charges 12 {32) (78)
Post-retirement scheme deficits 14 {15) -
(5,804) (4 764)
Total liabilities (14,433} {13 743)
Net assets 3,116 3,476
Equity
Called up share capital 15 326 326
Share premium account 631 631
Revaluatign reserve 11 21
Other reserves 167 167
Retained earnings 1,981 2331
Total equity 3,116 3,476

The financial statements on pages 119 to 142 were approved by the Board on 24 February 2016 and signed on 1ts behalf by

WARREN EAST Chief Executive DAVID SMITH Chief Financial Officer

Company's registered number 1003142 \
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

£m £m

Profit attnibutable to the shareholders of Rolls Royce pic 161 (203)

Other comprehensive mcome (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - —
Net movement on post-retirement schemes {(789) 1,393
Related tax movemenits 273 (488)

Total comprehensive income for the year (355) 702

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Non distributable reserves
Share Share Revaluation Other Retained
capital premium Teserve reserves earnings  Total equity
£m £Em £m im £m im

At 1January 2015 326 631 21 167 2,331 3,476

Total comprehensive income 1n the year - - - - (355) (355)

Dwidend paid - - - - - -

Transfers between reserves - - (10) - 10 -

Share-based payments —direct to equity - - - - - -

Related tax movements - - - - (5) (5)

At 31 December 2015 326 631 11 167 1,981 3,116

120 Rolls-Royce ple Annual Report 2015




Finanoal Statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
These financial staterents have been prepared n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Frarmework (FRS 101)

These are the Company s first financial statements prepared 1 accordance with FRS 101

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recogmtion, measurement and disclosure requirements of Internatonal
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRSs’), but makes amendments where necessary m order to comply with
Compames Act 2006

In the transition to FRS 101, the Company has applied IFRS 1, whilst ensuring that 1ts assets and hatnlities are measured m comphance with
FRS 101 An explanation of how the transition to FRS 101 has affected the reported finanaal position and financial performance of the
Company is provided in note 18

In these financial statements the Company has apphed the exemptions available under FRS 101 1 respect of the followmg disclosures

+ acash flow statement and related notes,

- IFRS 2 Share Based Payments 1n respect of group settled share based payments,

- comparative period reconahations for share capital, tangible fixed assets and mtangible assets, and
+ disclosures in Tespect of the compensation of key management personnel

The accounting pohoies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been apphed consistently to all penods presented m these financial
statements and in preparing an openmng FRS 101 balance sheet at 1 January 2014 for the purposes of the transition to FRS 101

As permmtted by Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006, a separate mcome statement for the Company has not been included in these
financial statements As permtted by the audit fee disclosure regulations, disclosure of non-audit fees information 1s not included in
respect of the Company

MEASUREMENT CONVENTION

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except whete Adopted IFRS requires the revaluation of financial
mstruments to far value and certam other assets and hab:ities on an alternative basis — most sigmificantly post-retirement scheme
obligations are valued on the basis required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits —and aon a going concern basis as descmibed on page 63

KEY AREA OF JUDGEMENT

introduction

The Company generates a sigmficant portion of its revenues and profit on spare parts revenues arising from the installed onginal
equipment (OE) fleet As a consequence, the Company will often agree contractual prices for OF delernies that take mto account the
anticipated aftermarket arrangements Accounting policies reflect this aspect of the business model, in particular the palicies for the
recegmtion of contractual aftermarket nights and the Imkage of OF and aftermarket arrangements

When a il large engme s seld the economic benefits received usually far exceed the cash recewable under the contract, due to the nghts
to valuable aftermarket spare parts business However, because the value of this nght cannot be estimated with encugh precision,
accounting standards require that the revenue recogmsed m the accounts on sale of the engine 15 restricted to a total amount that results
n a break even position The amount of the revenue recogmsed in excess of cash recevable s tecogrised as an ntangible asset, whichis
called a ‘contractual aftermarket nght’

The Company enters into arrangements with long-term supphers to share the nisks and rewards of major programmes —nsk and revenue
shaning arrangements (RRSAs) The accounting pohcy for these arrangements has been chosen, consistent with Adopted IFRS, to reflect
their commercial effect

The key Judgements m deterrmming these accounting pohces are described below

Contractual aftermarket nghts (CARs)

On delvery of Civil Aerospace engines, the Company has contractual nights to supply aftermarket parts to the customers and 1ts
mtellectual nghts, warranty arrangements and, where refevant, statutory amrworthmess or other regulatory requirements provide
reasonable control over this supply The Directors consider that these rights meet the defimtion of an intangible asset in IAS 38 Intangible
Assets However, the Directors do not consider that it 1s possible to determine a rehable fair value for tms intangible asset Accordingly, an
mtangible asset (CAR) 15 only recogmsed on the occasions where the contractual price of the engine is below the cost of manufacture and
then only to the extent of this deficit, as this amount 15 rehably measurable An equal amount of revenue 1s recogrised at the same pont
Wherte a long-term aftermarket contract 1s mked to the OE contract {see below), the contractual price of the engine {including amounts
allocated from the aftermarket contract) 1s above its cost of manufacture consequently no CAR 1s recogrised
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Risk and revenue shanng arrangements

RRSAs with key supphers (workshare partners) are a feature of our Cwil Aerospace business Under these contractual arrangements the
key commercial objectives are that (1) during the development phase the workshare partner shares 1n the nisks of developing an engine

by performing its own development work, providing development parts and paying a non-refundable cash entry fee, and (n) during the

production phase it supplies compenents m return for a share of the programme revenues as a ‘I'fe of type supplier (ie aslong as the
engime remains n service) The share of development costs borne by the workshare partner and of the revenues it recewves reflect the
partner’s proportionate cost of providimg its production parts compared to the overall manufacturing cost of the engme The share s
based on a Jointly agreed forecast at the commencement of the arrangement

These arrangements are complex and have features that could be indicative of a collaboration agreement, including sharing of risk and
cost in a development programme, a long-term supply agreement, sharing of intellectual property or a combination of these In summary,
and as described below, the Directors’ view s that the development and production phases of the contract should be considered separately
m accounting for the RRSA, which results in the entry fee being matched agamst the non-recurnng costs incurred by the Company

Having considered the features above, the Directors considered that there 15 no directly apphcable IFRS to determine an accounting pohcy
for the recognition of entry fees of this nature 1n the income statement Consequently, m developing an accounting treatment for such
entry fees that best reflects the commercial objectives of the contractual arrangement, the Directors have analysed these features in the
context of relevant accounting pronouncements {including those of other standard setters where these do not conflict with IFRS) and have
weighed the importance of each feature in faithfully representing the overall commeraial effect The most impertant considerations that
need to be balanced are the transfer of development nisk, the workshare partner receiving little standalone value from the payment of the
entry fee, and the overall effect being collaboration between the parties which falls short of being a joint venture as the Cornpany controls
the programme Also important m the analysis 1s the fact that, whilst the Company and the workshare partner share nisks and rewards
through the ife of the contract, these risks and rewards are very different during the development and production phases

In this context, the entry fee rmight be considered to represent an amount pard as an equahsation of development costs, a payment to
secure a long-term supply arrangement a purchase of intellectual property, or some combination thereof The accounting under these
different scenanos could mclude recogrition of the entry fee to match the associated costs in the income statement, being spread over
the Iife of the programme as a reduction n the cost of supply durmg production, or being spread over the time period of the access to the
mtellectual property by the workshare partner

The Directors consider that the most important features of the arrangement are the risk sharing and that the entry fee represents a
contribution to the development costs that the Campany incurs m excess of 1ts proportionate programme share The key judgements taken n
reaching this view are the entry fee 1s determimed by the parties on that basis and the contract specifies that 1n the event that a demvative
engme s to be developed, additional entry fees will also be calculated on this basis, the workshare partners describe the entry fee in this way,
although the workshare partner receives hittle stand-alone value from paying the entry fee, the entry fee together withits own development
actvities represent its aggregate investment in the collaboration, the amount of the entry fee does not include any amount in excess of that
necessary to equahse forecast development costs, the Comipany 1s not ‘'on nisk’ for the full development costs 1t incurs but for that amount less
the entry fees recewed, and, as far as can be deterrmned this appears to be common industry accounting for arrangements of this type,
under both Adopted IFRS and US accounting standards (which the Directars do not beheve conflicts with IFRS m this regard)

The resulting accountig pohcy (descnbed on page 124) represents the commercaial effect of the contractuat arrangements in that the
Company recogmses only those development costs to which 1t 1s exposed {and thus reflects the sigmificant transfer of development nisk to
the workshare partner) and the costs of supply of parts durmng the production phase 1s measured at the workshare partner’s share of
pragramme revenues (which we consider to be a cormmercial fair value) The Directors do not consider that accounting which would result
m entry fees only being recogmsed m the production phase would appropriately reflect the sharing of development risk Accordingly, the
Directors beleve that the policy adopted best reflects the commercial objectives of the arrangements, the nature of the relationship with
the workshare partner and 1s 1n accordance with Adopted IFRS

Internally generated development costs

IAS 38 requires that mternally generated development costs should only be recogmsed 1f strict critenia are met, in particular relating to
technical feasibihity and generation of future econormic benefits The Ditectors consider that, due to the complex nature of new equipment
programmes, these critena are not met until relatively late n the programme — Civil Aerospace programmes represent around half of
development costs recogmsed, for these, the critena are generally satisfied around the time of theimtial engine certification

Customer financing contimgent habihties

The Company has contingent habilities i respect of financing support provided to customers In order to assess whether a provision should
be recogmsed, jJudgement as to the likehhood of these crystalhsing 1s required This jJudgement s based on an assessment on the knowledge
of the customers’ fleet plans, the underlying value of the securnty provided and, where appropnate, the customers’ credrtworthiness

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In applying the accounting pelicies, estyimates are made m many areas, the actual outcome may differ from that calculated The key sources
of estimation uncertamty at the balance sheet date, that have a signtficant nisk of causmg matenial adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and llabihties within the next financial year are set out below The estimation of the relevant assets and habhties involves the
combination of a number of assumptions Sensitvities are disclosed m the relevant notes where this 1s appropnate and practicable
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Forecasts and discount rates

The carrying values of a number of iterns on the balance sheet are dependent on the estimates of future cash flows arising from the
Company's operations, in particular the assessment as to whether there are any ndications of impairment of development, participation,
certification, and contractual aftermarket nghts recogmsed as mtangible assets (carrying values at 31 Decernber 2015 £2 494m

31 December 2014 £2,267m)1s dependent on estimates of cash flows generated by the relevant assets and the discount rate used to calculate
a present value These estimates include the performance of long-term contractual arrangements as described below, as well as estumates for
future market share, pricing and unit cost for uncontracted business The risk of iImpairment 15 generally ngher for newer programmes and
for customer spectfic ntangible assets {CARs) for launch customers and typically reduces as programmes become more established

Post-retirement benefits

The Company’s defined benefit pension schemes and sirmlar arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with IAS 19 The
accounting valuation, which 1s based on assumptions determined with inde pendent actuana) advice, resulted 1n a net surplus of £1,036m
before deferred taxation being recogrised on the balance sheet at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014 net surplus £1,727m} The size of
the net surplus/deficit 1s sensitive to the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions which nclude price
nflation, pension and salary increases, the discount rate used in assessing actuanal hamhties, mortality and other demographc
assumptions and the levels of contnibutions Further details are included m note 14

Provisions

As described in the accounting pohcy on page 126, the Company measures provisions (carrying value at 31 December 2015 £89m,

31 December 2014 £174m) at the Directars’ best estimate of the expenditure requited to settle the obhigation at the balance sheet date
These estimates take account of information available and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 15 determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply m each of the numerous junsdictions in which the
Company trades Where the precise ympact of these laws and regulations 1s unclear, or uncertan, then reasonable estimates may be used
to determine the tax charge inchuded in the financial statements

The maim area of uncertainty 15 m relation to cross border transactions, entered into in the normal course of business as the amount of profit
taxable can be subjective and therefore open to interpretation by the tax authorities This can result m disputes and possibly htigation

Accruals for tax contingencies require nanagement to make jJudgements and estimates of exposures 1n relation to areas of uncertainty
Contingent habilities, mncluding 1n respect of any tax disputes or htigation, are covered 1n note 19 (contingent habihties} All provisions are
m curtent habilities Any hability relating to interest or penalties on tax habihties 1s included in the tax charge

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent 1t 1s prabable that future taxable profits will be available, against which the asset can be
utihsed based on management’s assumptions relating to the amounts and tirmng of future taxable profits

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Groups sigmficant accounting policies are set out below These accounting policies have been apphed consistently to all penods
presented in these consohdated financial statements and by all Group entities

Revenue recogmtion
Revenue comprises sales to external customers after discounts, and excluding value added tax

Sales of products (both original equipment and spare parts) are recognised when the sigmificant nisks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured —this 1s generally on delivery

On occasion, the Group may participate 1n the financing of OE, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as described m note 18

In such circumstances the contingent obhgations ansing under these arrangements are taken mnto account in assessing when the
significant nisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer As described on page 121, a sale of OE at a contractual
price below 1ts cost of manufacture 1s considered to give ise to revenue to the extent that an intangible asset (contractual aftermarket
night}1s recogmised at the same time

Sales of services and long-term contracts are recognised when the outcome of the transaction can be relably estimated Revenues
recogmsed by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the total contractual obhgation
The assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract but will generally be based on costs meurred

to the extent these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, achnevernent of contractual milestones where appropnate,

or flying hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements

Provided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with reasonable certamty, the revenues and costs on such contracts
are recogmsed based on stage of completion and the overall contract profitaiity Full provision 1s made for any estimated losses to
completion of contracts, having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments receved, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent
that payments on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where the excess 1s included in accruals and deferred
mcome within trade and other payables The amount by which recorded revenue of long-term contracts 1s m excess of payments on
account 15 classified as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s separately disclosed within trade and other recevables
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Risk and revenue shaning arrangements (RRSAs)

As described on page 122 the Company enters into arrangements with certain workshare partners under which these supphers (1) contnbute
to the forecast costs of developing an engine by performing their own development work, providing development parts and paying a
non-refundable cash entry fee, and (n) supply components for the production phase for which they recewve consideration, which 1s an agreed
proportion of the total programme revenues Both the supphers’ contnbutions to the forecast non-recurning development costs and their
consideration are deterrmined by reference to their proportionate forecast scopes of supply relative to that of the engine overall Once the
forecast costs and the scopes of supply have been agreed at the inception of the contract each party s then accountable for 1its own ncurred
costs No accounting entnes are recorded when the supphers undertake development work or when develcpment components are supphed
Cash sums received are recogmised in the income statement, as a reduction in research and development costs incurred, to match the
expensing of the Company’s related costs — where the cash sums are received 1n advance of the related costs berng expensed or where the
related costs are caprtahsed asintangible assets, the recogmition of the cash received 1s deferred (in accruals and deferred mcome} to maich
the recogmtion of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively The payments to supphers of their
shares of the programme revenues for their production components are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues arise

The Company has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered
to be financial instruments as defined by IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

Government imvestment
Where a government or similar body has previously mvested 1n a development programme, the Company treats payments to that body
as royalty payments, which are matched to related sales

Research and development
In accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets expenditure incurred on research and development is distimguwished as relating erther
to a research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure 1s charged to the mcome statement Development expenditure is capitalised as an internally generated
mtangible asset only 1f it meets strict critena, relating 1n particutar to techmical feasibhty and generation of future economic benefits

The Company considers that 1t 1s not possible to distingunsh rehably between research and development activities until relatively late
m the programme

Expenditure capitahsed 1s amortised over its useful econormic life up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry mto service of the product

Interest
Interest recewable/payable 1s credited /charged to the income statement using the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a quahifying asset, such costs are capitahsed as part of the specific asset

Taxation
The tax charge/credit on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax

- Current tax s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

+ Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet hability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrymg amounts
of the assets and habihties for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes and 15 calculated using the enacted
or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability1s settled

Tax s charged or credited m the income statement or other comprehensive income (OCI) as appropriate except when it relates to items
credited or charged directly to equity in which case the tax s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax habilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences ansing on mvestments in subsidianies and joint arrangements,
except where the Company 1s able to contro! the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 15 probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 15 probable that future taxable profits will be avaslable agamst which the
assets can be uthsed

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in overseas currencies are translated inte local currency at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habihties denormnated m forexgn currencies are translated into sterhng at the rate ruling at the year-end Exchange differences
ansing on foreign exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and habilihes into sterhing at the rate ruhing at the year-end are
taken mto account 1n deterrmning profit on ordinary activities before taxation
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Fimanaialinstruments
IAS 39 Fmancral mstruments Recognition and Measurement requires the dassification of finanaial mstruments into separate categories
for which the accounting requitement is different Rolls-Royce has classified its financial instruments as follows

- Short-term mmvestments are generally classified as available for sale

- Short-term deposits (primcapally comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions), trade recewvables and short-term
mvestments not designated as available for sale are classified as loans and recewvables
Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSAs are classified as other habihhies

+ Derwatives, compnising foreign exchange contracts, mterest rate swaps and commadity swaps are classified as fair value through profit
orloss

Fiancial mstruments are recogmsed at the contract date and rmtially measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends
on thew classification

+ Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in faw value arsing from changes n exchange rates are included in the income
statement All other changes in fair value are taken to reserves On disposal the accumulated changes in value recorded i reserves are
ncluded in the gan or loss recorded in the profit and loss account

Loans and receivables and other habilities are held at amortised cost and not revalued {except for changes 1 exchange rates, which
are mcluded in the income statement) unless they are mcluded in a fair value hedge accounting relationship Where such a relationsip
exists, the mstruments are revalued in respect of the risk being hedged If nstruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally

by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effective, the carrymg values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included

m the income statement

Fair value through profit or loss are held at fair value Changes in fair value are included in the income statement unless the mstrument
15 mcluded in a cash flow hedge If the instruments are included m an effective cash flow hedging relationship, changes in value are taken
to equity When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amaunts previously recorded in equaty are recogmsed in the mcome statement

Financial instruments are derecogmsed on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhgations are transferred
Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply hedge accounting 1n respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures
of forecast future transactions denominated in forexgn currencies

The Company does not apply hedge accounting m respect of commodity swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions i those commaodities

The Company apphes hedge accounting n respect of transactions entered into to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures ofits
bortowings Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denomimated i foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated
as far value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes i the fair values of demivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes m fair value of the related hedged item are
recogmsed directly in the mcome statement

Changes n the fair values of derwvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogmsed directly in reserves
Any meftectiveness n the hedging relationships 1s included m the mcome statement The amounts deferred in reserves are recogmsed
m the income statement to match the recogmition of the hedged item

Hedge accountmg 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or s sold, terrinated, or exercised, or no longer quahfies

for hedge accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable any cumulative gam or loss
on the hedging instrument recogmsed n reserves, 1s retained in reserves until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction
15 o longer expected to accur, the net cumulative gam or loss previously recogmised in reserves 15 transferred to the mcome statement

The portion of a gam or loss on an mstrurnent used to hedge a net investment 1n a foreign operation that 15 determined to be an effective
hedge 15 recagrised directly in reserves The ineffective portion s recogmsed immediately in the mcome statement

Certification costs and parhapation fees

Casts incurred in respect of meeting requlatory certification requitements for new civil engine/aircraft combimations and payments made
to airframe manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carned forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered
out of future sales and are charged to the profit and loss account over the programmie hfe, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry
inte-service of the product

Contractual Aftermarket Rights (CARs)

As described under key judgements on page 121 the Company may sell OE to customers at a price below 1ts cost, on the basis that 1t also
receves valuable aftermarket rights Such a sale 1s considered to give nise to an intangible asset which 1s tecogmsed, i accordance with
1AS 38, at the same time as the revenue at an amount equal to the cash deficit and 1s amortised on a straight-hne basis over the penod that
highly probable aftermarket sales are expected to be earned
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Software
The cost of acquiring software that 1s not specific to anitem of tangible fixed assets 1s classified as an mtangible asset and amortised over
its useful economc hfe, up to @ maximum of five years

Tangible fixed assets and deprecation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any provision for imparments in value

Deprecation 1s provided on a straight-ne basis to write off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value, over the estimated
useful ife Estimated useful hves are as follows

1) land and buildings, as advised by the Company’s professional valuers
a) Freehold buildings — five to 45 years (average 26 years)
b} Leasehold land and buildings — lower of valuers’ estimates or pentod of lease
¢) No depreciation s provided i respect of freehold land

1) Plant and equipment — five to 25 years (average 14 years)

m) Arrcraft and engimes — five to 20 years (average 9 years)

) No depreciation 1s provided on assets m the course of construction

Impairment of non-current assets

Impairment of non-current assets 1s considered in accordance with IAS 36 impairment of Assets Wherte the asset does not generate cash
flows that are mdependent of other assets ympairment 1s considered for the cash-generating umit to which the asset belongs Intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other imtangible assets property plant and equipment and
mvestments are assessed for any mdications of impairment annualty If any imdication of /mpairment 15 identified, an impairment test
15 performed to estimate the recoverable amount

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be below the carrymg value, the carrying value 1s reduced
to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogmsed as an expense The recoverable amount s the lngher of value in use or far
value less costs to sell 1f this 1s readily avaslable The value i use 1s the present value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the nisk speaific to the asset

Operatmg leases
Payments made and rentals receved under operating lease arrangements are charged /credited to the income statement
on a straight-line basis

Inventones

Inventones and work 1n progress are valued at the lower of cost and net reahisable value on a firstin, first-out basis Cost comprises direct
matenals and where apphcable, direct labour costs and those overheads, inctudimg depreciation of property plant and equipment,

that have beenincurred in bringing the wmventories to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated
selimg prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred m marketing, selling and distnbution

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 prabable that the Company
will be requited to settle that obhgation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Post-retirement benefits

Pensions and sumlar benefits (principally healthcare) are accounted for under 14519 Employee Benefits For defined benefit plans,
obhgations are measured at discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value Surpluses in schemes are recogmsed as
assets only 1f they represent economic benefits available to the Companyn the future A habihty 1s recogmsed to the extent that the
rmimmum fundmg requirements m respect of past service will give nise to an unrecogmisable surplus

The service and financing costs of such plans are recogrised separately in the income statement, service costs are spread systematically
over the lves of employees and financing costs are recognised n the penods 1in which they arse

Actuanal gains and losses and movements i unrecogrised surpluses and mimmum fundmg habiibies are recogmsed immediately 1n QCI
Payrnents to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The Company participates 1n Rolls-Royce Holdings plc employee share-based payment arrangements These are equity-settled arrangements
and are measured at fair value {excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fam value 1s expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of shares or options that will eventually vest The costs

of these share-based payments are treated as a capital contnibution from the parent company Any payments made by the Company to1ts
parent company n respect of these arrangements, are treated as a return of this capital contnibution
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The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows
1) ShareSave = using the binormal pricing method

n) Performance Share Plan — using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-entitlement to dividends {or equivalent) and the
Total Shareholder Return market based condition,

m} Annual performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share Incentive Plan — share price on the date of the award

See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans

2 Emoluments of directors

2015 2014

Highest paid Other Highest paid QOther
director directars director directors
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments excluding deferred share plans 826 4,374 1379 3844
Aggregate amounts relating to deferred share plans 395 1,621 2,512 2714
Aggregate value of Company contributions to Company defined contribution pensions schemes - 203 42 391’
Accrued penswon of lighest paid director - - - -
Gans realised on exercise of share options? - - - -
2015 2014
Number Number

Number of directors with accruing retirement benefits
Defined contnibution schermnes 2 2
Defined benefit schemes? 1 1
Number of directors exercising share options - -
Number of directors receiving shares as part of long term incentives schemes 3 4

! tncludes gans under the ShareSave plan
2 One director was a contributing member of both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes (2014 one director)
* There has been an adjustment to the defined pension contributions over 2014 to allow for the 2014 Employer True Up Match contribution paid in March 2015 of £42 000

3 Intangible assets

Certification

Contractual costs and
Oevelopment aftermarket  participation Software
costs nights (CARs) fees and other Total
£m £m im fm £m

Cost
At 1January 2015 959! 1,820 946 635" 4,360
Additions 36 340 46 89 511
Disposals - - - (4} {a)
At 31 December 2015 995 2,160 992 720 4,867
Accumulated amortisation
At 1January 2015 365 796 297 230 1,738
Charge for the year 55 134 56 66 311
Reversal of impairment - {50) - - (50)
Disposals - - - (1) 1)
At 31 December 2015 420 BEO 353 345 1,998
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 575 1,280 639 375 2,869
At 1 January 2015 594 1024 649 355 2,622

! Development costs include £9m which had previously been presented as other intangible assets and ware reclassified an trangition to FRS 101

During the year, followng analysis of the first major overhauls of the Trent 1000 engimes the recoverable amount of certam contractual
aftermarket nghts have been reassessed This analysis demonstrated that the aftermarket cash flows from the engines were better than
originally assumed, anising from both operational and contractual performance improvements As a result of this analysis, the value i use
{based on a pre-tax discount rate of 9%) has mcreased to around £140 million, exceeding the ummpaired carrying value of £72 million
Accordimgly, cumulative impairments prior to 2015 of £50 milkion have been reversed This reversalis ncluded in cost of sales
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4 Property, plant and equipment
Land and Plant and Ancraft and In course of
budings equipment engines  construction Total
£m £m £m im Em
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2015 559 1,753 70 337 2,719
Additions 32 56 11 133 232
Reclassifications 30 144 4 {178) -
Transferred from Assets held for resale - - (4) - {4)
Disposals (16) {56) - - (72)
At 31 December 2015 605 1,897 Bl 2492 2,875
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 193 1,145 33 - 1,371
Charge for the year 20 140 10 - 170
Reclassifications - - 4 - 4
Transferred from ‘Assets held for resale - - (3) - (3)
Disposals (6} {50) - - {56)
At 31 December 2015 207 1,235 44 - 1,486
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 398 662 37 292 1,389
At 1 fanuary 2015 366 608 37 337 1,348
2015 2014
Tangible fixed assets include £m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets 8 9
Non-depreciable land 74 68
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprise
Cost 454 397
Valuation at 31 December 1996 151 162
605 559
On an historical cost basis the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows
Cost 580 533
Depreciation (194) {189)
386 344
Capital expenditure commitments 72 71
5 Investments
Subsidiary Other
undertakings! Joint ventures and associates investments
Shares Shares
atcost? atcost Loans Total
fm £m £m £m
At 1 January 2015 1,724 36 36 72 -
Additions 26 - 6 [ 3
Disposal {12) - - - -
Imparment? (308) - - - {2)
At 31 December 2015 1,430? 36 42 78 1
! The subsidiary and joint venture undertakings are hsted on pages 143 to 149
1 The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share capital of Nightingale Insurance Limited one of its subsadianies At 31 Oecember 2015 this quarantee was £25 rmithon (2014 £25 milhion)
' Theimpairment in the year relates to subsidiary undertakings where the carrying value was found to be less than the recoverable amount of the investment
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6 Inventories

2015 2014
£m £m
Raw matenials 65 58
Work n progress 363 378
Long term contracts work in progress 1 -
Fimished goods 782 793
Payments on account 7 8
1,218 1,237
7 Trade and other recewvables
Current Non-current Total
015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
fm £m fm im £m £m
Trade debtors 344 379 - - 344 379
Amounts recoverable on contracts 6 12 189 115 195 127
Amounts owed by — subsidiary undertakings 3,042 3 646 - - 3,042 3,646
—joint ventures 235 293 - - 235 293
— parent undertaking 2,196 1,311 - — 2,196 1,311
Other debtors 668 431 10 2 678 433
Prepayments and accrued income 88 63 43 50 131 119
6,579 6,141 242 167 6,821 6308
8 Cash and cash equivalents
2015 2014
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 28 -
Money-market funds 739 662
Short-term deposits 1,655 1279
2,422 1941
9 Other fimancial assets and habihties
Details of the Company s policies on the use of finanoal instruments are given in the accounting policies on page 125
The fair values of other financial instruments held by the Company are as follows
Foreign Derivative
exchange Commeodity  Interest rate tinancial Frnancial
contracts contracts contracts mstrumeants RR5As Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2015
Current assets 137 - — 137 - 137
Non current assets 43 - 80 123 - 123
Current labilities (252) (37) - {289) (33} (322)
Non current habilities (1,429) {65) (67) {1,561) {118} {1,679)
(1,501) {102) 13 {1,590} {151} {1,741)
At 31 December 2014
Current assets 103 - - 103 = 103
Non-current assets 59 - 78 137 - 137
Current liabilities (156) (20) - (176) {42) (218)
Non current habilities (545) (23) (27) (595) (158) (753)
{539) (43) 51 (531) 200} 731)
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9 Other financial assets and liabilities continued

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses various financial instruments to manage its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates The Company uses
commodity swaps to manage 1ts exposure to movements 1 the price of commedities (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency nsk
associated with a borrowing denorminated in US dollars, the Company has currency denwvatives designated as part of a fair value hedge
The Company uses mterest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and iterest rate caps to manage 1ts exposure to movements in interest
rates Where the effectiveness of the hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes 1n the fair value that are deemed
effective are included in the hedgmg reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedged item

Movements in the fair values of derivative finanaial instruments werte as follows

Fareign
exchange Commodity  Interest rate
instruments  Instruments instruments Total
£m £&m £m £m
At 1January 2014 497 39) 6) 452
Movements in fair value hedges® 3 - 57 60
Movements 1n other dervative contracts {888) (15} - {943)
Contracts settled (151) 11 - {140}
At 1January 2015 (539) {a3) 51 (531)
Currency options at inception (20} - - (20)
Mavements in fair value hedges' 1 - (36) (35)
Mavements in other dernwvative contracts {(1,016) (88) - {1,104)
Contracts settled 73 29 {2) 100
At 31 December 2015 {1,501) {102) 13 (1,590)

* Gain an related hedged items £35m (2014 £60m loss)

Where apphcable, market values have been used to determme fair values Where market values are not available, fair values have been
calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

FINANCIAL RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAS)

The Company has financial habihites ansing from finanoial RRSAs These financial habihities are valued at each reporting date using the
amortised cost method This involves caleulating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the mternal rate
of return at the mception of the arrangements as the discount rate

The amortised cost values of financial RRSAs were as follows

2018 2014

£m £m
At 1 Januarty (200) (227)
Cash paid to partners 42 41
Financing charge {11) (12)
Exchange adjustments E)] 8
Changes in forecast payments 21 6
At 31 December (151) {200)
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10 Borrowings

Current Non-current
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Unsecured

Overdrafts - 1,045 = -
Bank loans 114 - 243 200
7375% Notes 2016 £200m 200 - - 200
6 55% Notes 2015 USSB3Im? - 55 - -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m? = = 536 547
2 375% Notes 2020 US5500m? - - 333 -
2125% Notes 2021 €750m? - - 576 615
3 625% Notes 2025 US51 000m* = = 6GE -
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m? - - 390 395
314 1100 2,746 1957

Repayable — otherwise than by instalments
Between one and two years - 200
Between two and five years 1,069 747
After five years 1,677 1,010
2,746 1957

! These notas are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of mterest and currency swaps which form a fair value hedge
? These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay fleating rates of interest which form a fair value hedge

11 Trade and other payables

Current Non current
015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m im
Payments recewved on account! 746 386 462 778
Trade creditors 697 622 - -
Amounts owed to —subsidiary undertakings 3,910 4,053 - -
—jotnt ventures 193 230 2 4
— parent undertaking 23 - - - 3
Corporate taxation 95 82 = = %
Other taxation and social secunty 30 35 - - =
Other creditors 1,193 1128 227 305 g
Accruals and deferred income 1,044 1029 520 410 2
7,936 7565 1,211 1497 é
' Includes payments received from jont ventures 79 73 35 99
12 Provisions for habihties and charges
At Unused Charged At
31 December amounts  to profit and 31 December
2014 Transfersin Teversed loss account Utihised 015
£€m £m £m £m £m £m
Warranties and guarantees 28 - (8) B {5) 23
Contract loss 11 - - {2) — 9
Customer financing 45 - (27) 11 (10) 19
Restructuring 66 - (12) 11 (36) 29
Other 24 3 - {11) (7 9
174 3 (a7) 17 (58) 89
Current habihities 96 57
Non-current habilities 78 32

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primanly relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years
Provisions for contract loss and restructuning are generally expected to be utihsed within two years

Customer fimancing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as desenbed i note 19 Timing of utihisation
15 uncertam
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13 Deferred taxation

fm
At 1 January 2015 (479)
Amount credited to income statement 90
Amount credited to statement of comprehensive income 273
Amount charged to equity (5)
At 31 Decemnber 2015 {121)
The analysis of the deferred tax position 1s as follows

2015 2014

£m im
Fixed asset timng differences (67) (76)
Other temporary differences {330) (321)
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits {365) {604)
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and habihties 306 135
Losses 320 373
Advance corporation tax - -
Research and development expenditure credit withholding tax 15 14
(121) (479)

There are other deferred tax assets totalling £162m (2014 £162m} that have not been recognised on the basis that their future econormic
benefit1s uncertain

The Summer budget 2015 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 19% from 1 April 2017 and will reduce further to 18%
from 1 Apnil 2020 These reductions were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015 As the reduction to 18% was substantvely enacted
prior to the year end, the closing deferred tax habhty has been calculated at this rate In 2015, £23m has been charged to the mcome
statement and £3m has been charged directly to equity

The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates, for which a deferred tax hability has
not been recogmsed, aggregate to £347m (2014 £512m) No deferred tax habihity has been recogmsed on the potential withholding tax
due to the rermttance of undistnibuted profits as the Company 15 able to control the timing of such rermttances and 1t 1s probable that
consent will not be given in the foreseeable future

14 Post-retirement benefits

The defined benefit schemes’ assets are held in separate trustee admmistered funds and employees are entitled to retmerment benefits
based on either their final or career average salanes and length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries
to 31 December 2015 The most recent funding valuations of the main schemes werte

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 31 March 2015
Rolls-Royce Group Pens:on Scheme 5 Apnl 2013
vickers Group Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

Discount rate 36% 36%
RPIinflation assumption 32% 3 2%
Rate of increase in salanies 40% 4 2%
Male life expectancy from age 65 — current pensioner 22 8years 22 5years
—future pensigner currently aged 45 24 Byears 24 2 years

* The Consumer Price Index 15 assumed ta be 1 1% lower

132 Rolls-Rayce plc Annual Report 2015




Fmanaal Staterments

14 Post-retirement benefits continued

The discount rates are deterrmined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds The rate 1s determined by using the
profile of forecast benefit payments to denwve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve The chscount rate above 1s the
weighted average of the rate for each scheme, based on the value of their respective habilities

The mortahty assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are derived from the SAP actuanal tables, with future improvements m
hne with the CMI 2015 core projections and long-term improvements of 1 5% Where appropriate, these are adjusted to take account of the
relevant scheme’s actual expenence The resulting range of ife expectancies in the principal schernes are shown in the table above

Other demagraphic assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends i scheme

expenience and other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic actuanal valuaton

of the schemes
2015 2014

Amounts recogmsed n the balance sheet £m £m
Present value of funded obhgations (10,802) {10 505}
Fair value of scheme assets 11,839 12232
Net asset recogmised in the balance sheet 1,037 1,727
Analysed as
Post retirement scheme surpluses 1,052 1727
Post retirement scheme deficits {15) -

1,037 1,727

! Where a sutplus has ansen on a scheme n accordance with 1AS 19 Employee benefits the surplusisrecogmised as an asset only if it represents an unconditional economic benefit
available to the Company in the future Any surplusin excess of this benefit 15 not recognised »n the balance sheet

Changes in present value of defmed benefit obhgatiens o e
At 1January {10,505) {8 970)
Current service cost {154) (141)
Past-service cost 16 18
Finance cost {371) (388)
Contnibutions by employees (3) (3)
Benefits paid out 415 375
Actuanal losses (200) (1 4086)
Disposal of business - 10
At 31 December {10,802 (10,505)
Active participants (4,182 {4073)
Deferred plan participants (1,940) (2,007)
Pensioners (4,681) (4 424)
Weighted average duration of obligations (years} 17 17
Changes m farr value of scheme assets 20{1"5: 20E1n:
At 1January 12,232 9698
Administrative expenses (5) {s)
Financing 436 423
Return on plan assets excluding financing (589) 2241
Contributions by employer 177 247
Contributions by employees 3 3
Benefits paid out {415} (375)
At 31 December 11,839 12,232
Actual return on plan assets (153) 2664
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14 Post-retirement benefits continued
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at 31 December were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

Sovereign debt 7,283 7,282
Dervatives on sovereign debt (5) (2622)
Carporate debt instruments 1,977 2,053
Interest rate swaps 1,868 4218
tnflation swaps {477) {360)
Cash and similar instruments 117 193
LDI portfolio* 10,763 10,764
Longewity swap? (142) 10
Listed equities 788 767
Equities 232 216
Sovereign debt 42 41
Cash 67 160
Other 89 274
11,839 12232

1 A portfalio of g1lt and swap contracts backed by LIBOR generating assets thatis designed to hedge the majonty of the interest rate and inflation nisks assocated
with the schemes obhigations

? Under the longevity swap the scheme has agreed an average hfe expectancy with a counterparty If pensioners Irve longer than ex pected the counterparty will make payments
to the scheme to of fset the additional cost of paying pensions. If the reverse apphes the cost of paying pensions will be reduced but the schermne will be required to make payments
to the counterparty

The scheme assets do not include any financial instruments of the Rolls-Royce Holdings plc group, nor any property occupied by,
or other assets used by the group

Future contnbutions
The Company expects te contribute approximately £170m to 1ts defined benefit schemes in 2016

Sensitivities
The nvestment strategies are designed to hedge the nsks from interest rates and inflation on an econorme basis The impacts of the
principal sensitivities are

2015 2014
£m £m
Defined benefit obhgations — 0 25% reduction in discount rate? (517) (465)
Defined benefit assets - 0 25% reduction im interest rates? 561 586
Defined benefit obhgations — 0 25% increase in inflation (245) (234)
Defined benefit assets — (0 25% increase in inflation 225 204
Defined benefit obhgations —0 25% increase in rate of increase in salaries (87) (86)
Defined benehit obhigations —longevity increases by one year {305) (247)

! The dyfference between the sensitvities on obhgations and plan assets anises largely due to differences m the methods used to value the obhigations for accounting and economic
purposes On an econommic basts the cotrelatian 1s approximately 97% far discount rates and 89% for inflation

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES
The Company operates a number of defined contribution schemes The total expense recogrised m the income statement was £26m (2014 £25m)

15 Share capital

Equity
ordinary shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Milhons £m
Authornsed
At 1 January and 31 December 2015 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January and 31 December 2015 1,631 326
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16 Operating lease annual commitments

2015 2014
£m £m
Leases of land and buildings which expire
within one year 1 -
Between one and five years [ 2
After five years 4 10
Other leases which expire
within gne year 1 1
Between one and five years 3 3
After five years - -
17 Share-based payments
EFFECT OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS ON THE COMPANY’S RESULTS
2015 2014
£m £m
Total expense recogmsed for equity-settled share based payment transactions 7 18

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS IN OPERATION DURING THE YEAR
During the year, the Company participated in the following share-based payment plans operated by Rolls-Royce Holdings plc

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Thas plan mvolves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditions Vesting of the performance shares 1s based
on the achievement of both non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition
(Total Shareholder Return = TSR} over a three year period

ShareSave share ophon plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, ehgible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20%
below the share pnice when the contract is entered into Vesting of the options s not subject to the achievement of a performance target
The plan is HM Revenue & Customs approved

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)

This plan involved the grant of market value share options to participants It terminated in 2009 and no further grants may be made
Remaiing options under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition {growth in EPS) and have a maximum
contractual life of ten years

Anmnual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

A proportion of the APRA annual incentive scheme is dehvered in the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share awards
1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remamn emptoyed by the
Company for two years from the date of the award mn order to retam the full number of shares Durmg the two year deferral peried,
participants are entitled to receive dividends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares

MOVEMENTS IN THE COMPANY'S SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS DURING THE YEAR

ShareSave
weighted
average PSP APRA
Number exercise price Number Number
Milhions Pence [Delete column) [Delete column] Mllions Millions
Outstanding at 1 January 2014 157 646p 68 18
Granted - = 17 07
Additional entitlements anising from TSR perfromance - - 04
Forfeited (05) 757p @7 (01)
Exercrsed (02) 469p (24) (130}
Outstanding at 1 January 2015 150 646p 58 14
Granted B2 617p 18 -
Additional entitlements ansing from TSR perfromance - - 04 -
Additional shares accrued from reinvestment of C Shares - - - -
Forfeited 31) 929p (186) (01)
Exercised (61) 436p {(10) [08)
Qutstanding at 31 December 2015 140 656p 54 05
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17 Share-based payments continued
As share options are exercised throughout the year the weighted average share price during the year of 820p (2014 1013p) 15
representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The closing price at 31 December 2015 was 575p, (2014 870p)

There were no exercisable options as at 31 December 2015

FAIR VALUES OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS
The werghted average fair values per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted duning the year, estimated at the date
of grant are as follows

2015 2014

£m £m

PSP —25% TSR uplift 1,015p 1105p
PSP —50% TSR uphft 1,036p 1227p
ShareSave — 3 year grant 192p nfa
ShareSave — 5 year grant 219p nfa
APRA n/a 984p

Expected volatility 1s based on the histoncal volatility of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc's share price over the seven years prior to the grant
or award date Expected dsvidends are based on Rolls-Royce Holdings plc's payments to shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP s calculated using a pricmg model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends
(or equivalent} during the vesting period and the market-based performance condition based on expectations about volatiity and the
correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 compamies and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency
between share price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the far value of the award relatve to the share price

at the date of grant

ShareSave

The fawr value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calcufated using a binomial pricing model that assumes that participants
will exercise their options at the begimning of the six month window 1f the share price 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwise it
assumes that options are held until the expiration of their contractual term This results 1in an expected hife that falls somewhere between
the start and end of the exercise window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 15 calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends
{or equivalent)

18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

As stated in note 1, the Company adopted FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework from 1 January 2015, and restated its financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2014, which were previously reported under the prevailing relevant UK GAAP

The mam changes ansing as a result of adopting FRS 101 are

- recogmition of intangible assets, whereby certain qualifying costs, n particular related to research and development and contractual
aftermarket nghts, which were wntten off under UK GAAP, are required to be recogmsed and amortised on a systematic bass,

+ due to the recognition of development costs as an intangible asset, cash recewved from nsk and revenue sharing agreements has been
carned forward to match the amortisation of the mtangible asset, and

« thelongewvity swap 15 valued at fair value rather than an actuanal basis and the basis for recogmtion of a surplus in a pension scheme
differs n 1AS 19, compared with the previous basis

Details of the adjustments made n adopting FRS 101 are provided below Reconcihations for the 2014 restated opeming and closing
balance sheets are provided on pages 140 and 141
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18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework continued
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
|AS 38 Intangible Assets requires that all development costs meeting specified cnitena be capitalised as intangible assets

Under previous UK GAAP internally generated development costs were expensed as incurred As part of the transition to FRS 101,
costs relating to development projects which meet strict capitahsation critena, relatmg in particular to techmical feasibility and generation
of future economic benefits, have been recognised

The Company considers that 1t 1s not possible to distinguish rehably between research and development actwities until relatvely late
m the programme

Development costs capitahsed are amortised on a straight-hne basis aver a penod not exceeding 15 years The impact ansing from this
change s summansed as

At Year ended
ljanuary 31 December

2014 2014
£m £im
Income statement
Capitahsation of internal expenditure 67
Amortisation of Intangible asset {42}
Adjustment to loss befare taxation 25
Net assets
Intangible asset —cost 883 959
Intangible asset = accumulated amortisation (323) {365)
560 594
Related taxation effect (112) (217)
Adjustment to net assets 443 477
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The testing process of a fleet leader engine requires that the engine 1s stripped and rebwilt many times The testing process provides data
on the performance and rehabihty of the engme Costs relating to the strip and rebuild process have historically been expensed but as part
of the transition to FRS 101, costs which meet strict capitahsation cnitena, relating in particular to techmcal feasibility and generation

of future econormic benefits, have been recogrmised

Development costs capitahsed are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period not exceeding 15 years The impact anising from this
change 1s summanised as

At Yearended
1January 31 December

2014 2014
£m £m
Income statement
Capitalisation of internal expenditure 30
Amaortisation of intangible asset (5)
Adjustment to loss before taxation 25
Net assets
Intangible asset —cost 57 87
Intangible asset —accumulated amortisation (20) (25)
37 62
Related taxation effect (7) (12)
Adjustment to net assets 30 50
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework continued

CONTRACTUAL AFTERMARKET RIGHTS (CARS}

The Company may sell onginal equipment to customers at a price below 1ts cost, on the basis that this deficit will be recovered from future
aftermarket sales to the onginal customer or to other group companies Where the Company has a contractual nght to supply aftermarket
parts to the custormer and its mtellectual rights, warranty arrangements and statutory arworthiness requirements provide reasonable
control over this supply these arrangements are considered to meet the defimbon of an intangible asset under IAS 38 Intangible Assets
Under UK GAAP the associated revenue and costs of sale were recogmised in the income statement as they arose Under IAS 38 an intangible
asset 1s recogmised at the same tyme as the sale 1s made, with an amount equal to the cash deficit capitahsed in the Company and amortised
on a straight-Tne basis over the period that highly probable aftermarket sales to other group companies are expected to be earned

Under UK GAAP an adjustment was made for a contract to a joint venture customer, where the OF was sold to the customer at a deficit
but the aftermarket sales were on a time and matenals basis As 1t was deemed that there was sufficient control over the supply of the
engmnes to the customer, the amount by which recorded turnover of long-term contracts was n excess of payments on account was
classified as ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ and was separately disclosed within debtors On transition to FRS 101, the adjustment
has been reversed and the deficit recogmsed as a CAR, with the appropnate amortisation apphed

The impact ansing from this change s summarised as follows

At Year ended
lianuary 31 December
2014 2014

£m im

Income statement
Capitalisation of internal expendijure 264
Amortisatian of ntangible asset (109)
Ehmination of related debtor balance previously recognised under UK GAAP 7
Adjustment to loss before taxabon 162
Net assets
Intangible asset —cost 1556 1820
Intangible asset—accumulated amortisation (687) (798)

869 1024
Elimination of related ‘amounts recoverable an contracts balance previously recogrmsed under UK GAAP (75} (68)

794 956
Related taxation effect (159) {191)
Adjustment to net assets 635 765

RISK AND REVENUE SHARING ARRANGEMENTS (RRSAS)

The Company enters imto arrangements with certam workshare partners under which these supphers {1) contribute to the forecast costs
of developing an engime, and (1) supply components for the production phase for which they recewve censideration, which 1s an agreed
proportion of the total programme revenues Cash sums recewved are recogmsed in the income statement to match the expensing of the
Company s related costs —where the cash sums are received in advance of the related costs being expensed or where the related costs are
capitahsed as mtangible assets, the recognition of the cash received 1s deferred to match the recogrution of the related expense or the
amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively The payments to supphers of their shares of the programme revenues for their
production components are charged to the ncome statement as programme revenues anse

Under FRS 101, certain development costs previously written off to the income statement now meet the critena for capatahsation as an
ntangible asset Where cash sums have been recewed n telation to such costs an adjustment has been made to defer the costs and match
them to the amortisation of the intangible asset
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18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework continued
The impact ansmng from this change 1s summansed as follows

At Year ended
1January 31 December

2012 2014

£m im

Income statement

Adjustments to research and development costs 13)

Adjustment toloss before taxation (13)

Net assets

Other creditors falling due within one year 15 5

Other creditors falling due after one year (95) {98}
(80) (93)

Related taxation effect 16 1%

Adjustment to net assets (64) (74)

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Ontransition to FRS 101 the longevity swap held m the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund s treated as a stand-alone financial instrument and in
accordance with IAS 1915 valued at farr value An adjustment has been made to restate the previous valuation under UK GAAP to far
value The bases of recogmsing surpluses on pension funds differs between UK GAAP and IAS 19 Accordingly, an adjustment has been
made to reflect the surplus m line with the requirternents of 1IAS 19

The impact ansing from this change 1s summansed as follows

At Year ended
1January 31 December

2014 2004
im £m
Income statement
Adjustments to operating loss (s}
Adjustments to financing costs 19
Adjustment ta loss before taxation 14
Net assets
Post retirement scheme — surpluses (221) 428
(221) 428
Related taxation effect 7 (344)
Adjustment to net assets (214) 84
INCOME TAXES

The net deferred tax impact of the changes above 15 shown as part of the relevant adjustment

In addition, under 1AS 12 income Taxes certamn temporary differences, for example in respect of fixed assets, which previously were not
recogmsed under UK GAAP, will be recogrused

The impact ansing from this change 15 summansed as follows

At Year ended
1January 31 December

2012 2014
£m im

Net assets

Changes to deferred tax charge resulting from differences in the basis of calculation 1 {15)

Adpustment to net assets 1 {15)
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework continued
Restatement of net assets and equity at 1 January 2014
Risk and
UK GAAP as Other Contractual Revenue Post Restated In
previously  Development mtangible Aftermarket Sharing retirement accordance
reported costs assets Rights Agreements benefits Tax  withFRS 101
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 872 560 37 869 - - - 2 338
Tangible assets 1,270 — - - = - - 1,270
Investments —subsidhary undertakings 1,749 - - — - - - 1,749
—joint ventures 70 - — - _ _ _ 70
—ather - —
Post retirement schemes — surpluses 415 - - - - (222) - 194
4 376 560 37 869 - (221) - 5,621
Current assets
Stocks 1237 = - - - - - 1,237
Debtors
—amounts falling due within one year 3,447 - - = - - - 3447
—amounts falling due after one year 392 {112) (7) (234) 16 7 122 184
Other finanaial assets
—amounts falling due within one year 83 - - = = - = 83
—amounts falling due after one year 687 - - - = - — 687
Short-term deposits 1973 = - - = - - 1,973
Cash at bank and in hand 1,237 - - - ~ - - 1237
Assets held for resale 2 - - - - - - 2
9,058 (112) (7) {234) 16 7 122 8 850
Creditors
—amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings {805) - - - - - - (805)
Other financial hatlities (142) - - - - - - (242)
Cther creditors (6,940) - - - 15 - - (6 925)
(7887) - - - 15 - - (7.872)
Net current assets 1254 (112) 7 {234) 31 (76) 122 978
Total assets less current habilities 5547 448 30 635 31 (214) 122 6,599
Creditors
- amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings {1951) - - - - - - (1,951)
Other financial habihties (403) - - - - - - {203)
Other creditors (1,130) - - - (95) - {121) {1 346)
(3 484) - — - {95) - (121) (3,700)
Provisions for habihties and charges (140) - - - - - - (140)
Net assets 1,923 448 30 635 {64) (214) 1 2759
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 326 = - - - - - 326
Sharte prermium account 631 - - - = - — 631
Revaluation reserve 26 = — = - — = 26
Other reserves 167 - — = - - = 167
Profit and loss account 773 448 30 635 (64) {214) 1 1609
Total shareholders’ funds 1923 448 30 635 (64) (214) 1 2,759
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18 Transition to FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework contmued
Restatement of net assets and equity at 31 December 2014
Risk and
UK GAAP as Other Contractual Revenue Post Restated m
previously  Development intangible Aftermarket Sharing retirement aceordance
repotted costs assets Rights Agresments benefits Tax  withFRS 101
£m £m £fm £m fm £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 951 585 62 1024 - - - 2,622
Tangible assets 1,348 = = - - - - 1348
Investments — subsidiary undertakings 1724 - - - - - - 1724
—Jjoint ventures 72 - - - - - = 72
—other - -
Post retirement schemes ~ surpluses 1,299 - - - - 428 - 1727
5394 585 62 1024 - 428 - 7,493
Current assets
Stocks 1237 - - — - - - 1237
Debtors
—amounts falling due within one year 6,141 - — - - - - 6,141
—amounts falhing due after one year 416 {117) {12) {259) 19 (344) 464 167
Other financial assets
—amounts falling due within one year 103 = = = = = = 103
—amounts falling due after one year 137 - - - - - — 137
Short-term deposits 1,279 - - - - - - 1279
Cash at bank and in hand 662 - - - - - - 662
Assets held for resale = - - - = - — =
9975 (117} (12) {259) 19 (344) 464 9726
Creditors
—amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings (1,100} - - - - - - (1100)
Other financial habilities (218) - - — - - - {218)
Other creditors (7570) - - - 5 - - {7,565)
(8,888) = - - S - - (83883)
Net current assets 1,347 (117) (12) (259) 24 (604) 464 843
Total assets less current habilities 6,481 468 S0 765 24 84 464 81336
Creditors
—amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings {1,957} - - - - - - (1,957)
QOther financial habihties (753) - - - - - - (753)
Other creditors {1,399) - - - (98) - 479) {1976)
{4,109) - - — (98) - (479) {4,686)
Provisions for habihties and charges {174) - - - - - - (174)
Net assets 2,198 468 50 765 (74) 84 (15) 3476
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 326 - - - = - - 326
Share premium account 631 - - - - = = 631
Revaluation reserve 21 - - - - - - 21
QOther reserves 167 - - - - - - 167
Profit and loss account 1,053 468 50 765 {74) 84 {15) 21331
Total shareholders’ funds 2198 468 50 765 {74) 84 {15) 3.476
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19 Contingentliabilities

In connection with the sale of its products the Company will, on some occastons, provide financing support for its customers

The Company's contingent habihities relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers
and a broad product portfolio

Contingent habihties are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directars consider the ikehhood of these contingent liabilities crystallismg
to be remote this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crystalhse However, the amounts are discounted at the
Company's borrowng rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could anise The contingent habihties are
denomimated sn US dollars As the Company does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions,

this amount 1s reported together with the sterhng equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent habilities relating to financing arrangements on all delivered acraft less insurance
arrangements and relevant provisions were

2015 2014

£m Sm £m $m

Gross contingent habilities 269 399 388 605
Value of security’ {136) (201} (245) (382)
Indemmnities {79} (118) (84) (132)
Net commitments 54 80 59 51
Net commitments with security reduced by 20%? 78 115 90 140
! Secunity includes cash coilateral of 35 52 42 66

? Althcugh sensitivity calculations are complex the reduction of the relevant security by 20% llustrates the sensitivity of the contingent iability to this assumption

In connection with the sale of 1ts products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for 1ts customers — generally

m respect of covil amcraft The Company’s commitments relating to these financing arrangements are spread over many years, relate

to a number of customers and a broad product portfolio and are generally secured on the asset subject to the financing These mclude
commtments of US$3 1bn to provide borrowing facihihies to enable customers to purchase aircraft (of which approximately US5322m could
be called in 2016) These facilities may only be used 1f the customer 15 unable to obtain financing elsewhere and are priced at a prermum to
the market rate Consequently the directors do nat consider that there 1s a sigmficant exposure ansing from the provision of these facihties

Contingent habihties exist 1n respect of guarantees provided by the Company m the ordinary course of business for product delivery,
perfarmance and rehiabihty The Company has, 1n the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance,
perfarmance bonds, countertrade obligations and minor miscellaneous items The Company is party to legal actions and claims which
anse in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an nsurer

as previously reported, the Company 1s no longer fully nsured against known and potential claims from employees who worked for certamn
of the Company's UK based busimesses for a pemiod prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Company While the outcome

of some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements legal actions or claims,

after altowing for provisions already made, to result in sigmficant loss to the Company

where the Company enters mto financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the mdebtedness of other companies within its group,

the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the
guarantee contract as a contingent hability until such tirne as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment
under the guarantee At 31 December 2015, these guarantees amounted to £178m

At 31 December 2015, there were Company guarantees i respect of jomt ventures amounting to £9m (2014 £9m)

The Company participates in a Cash Poohng Arrangement Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable
miterest rates than would be available outside of the Poohing Arrangement as well as mare streamhined treasury functions As part of the
Pooking Arrangement, the Company cross-guarantees the borrowings of other pooling participants At 31 December 2015 these
guarantees amounted to £11m (2014 £8m)

20 Related party transactions
The Company s a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 101
not to disclose refated party transactions with 1ts parent company and ether wholly owned group companies

mcluded in sales of goods and services to jomnt ventures and associates are sales of spare engmes amounting to £189m (2014 £138m)
The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 7 and 11

21 Ultimate holding company

The ultimate holding company 15 Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, incorporated in Great Britain The finanoial statements for Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Roils-Royce Holdings plc, 62 Buckingham Cate, London SW1E 6AT
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Other mformation

SUBSIDIARIES

Company name % held Address

A FCwWultex Limited * 90 Derby?

A PE —Allen Gears Lymited * 100 Derby!

Allen Power Engineering Limited * 100 Derby!

Amalgamated Power Engineenng Limited * 100 Derby!

Bergen Engines AS 100 125 Hordvikneset, 5108 Hordwik Bergen 1201 Norway

Bergen Engines Bangladesh Private Limited 100 Plot n S8E, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Dhaka 1213 Bangladesh

Bergen Engines BV 100 Werfdijk 2, 3195HV Permus, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Bergen Engines Denmark A/S 100 23 Varftsve) 9000 Aalborg, Denmark

Bergen Engines India Private bimited 100 52 b Okhla Industnial Estate, Phase 3, New Delhy 110-020 India

Bergen Engines Limited 100 Derby !

Bergen Engines Property Co AS 100 125 Hordvikneset 5108 Hordvik Bergen, 3201, Norway

Bergen Engines S L 100 Calle Drnamarca, 43120 Constants, Farragona, Spain

Bergen Engines Srl 100 13 v1a Castel Morrone 16161 Genoa ltaly

Bristol Energy Limnited 100 Derby*

8nistol Siddeley Engines tmited * 100 Derby*

Brooks Inspection Solutions Lirmited 100 Derby*

Brown Brothers & Company Limited * 100 Taxwway Hillend Industral Estate Dalgety Bay, Dunfermhing, Scotland, KY11 997

C A Parsons & Company Limited * 100 Derby*

Composite Technology and Applications Limited 100 Derby!

Crossley-Premier Engines (Sales) Limited * 100 Derby?

Croydon Energy Lirmited * 100 Derby*

Data Systems & Solutions LLC 100 5959 Shallowford Road, Chattanooga, TN 37421 USA

Deeside Titaniurn Limited 825 Derby?

Derby Cogeneration Limited * 100 Derby?

Deiby Speciabist Fabrications Limited * 100 Derby!

Europea Microfusion Aerospaziah S p A 100 Zona Industriale AS1 83040 Morra De Sanctis Avellino, ltaly

Exeter Power Limited * 100 Derby!

Fluid Mechanics LLC 100 39525 MacKenzie Drive, Novi, Michigan 48377 USA

Gate Leasing Limited 100 London 2

Hartshill ventures Limited 100 Derby!*

Heartlands Power Limited * 100 Derby*

Heaton Power Limited * 100 Derby !

lghn Hastie of Greenock (Holdings) Limited ® 100 Derby!

John Thompson Cochran Limited * 100 Taxway Hillend Industrial Estate Dalgety Bay Dunfermling, Scotland K¥11 9JT

John Thompson Limited * 100 Derby!

Kalvet Engineering {Proprietary} Lirited * 100 Corner Marcony Rd and 3rd St Western Cape 7441, South Africa

Kamewa AB* 100 Box 1010, 5-68129 Kristinehamn Sweden

Kamewa Do Brazil Equipmentos Maritimos Limitada * 100 401 Rua Visconde de Pirgja 433, Rio de Janeiro Brazil

Kamewa Holding AB * 100 Box 1010, 5-68129, Knstinehamn Sweden

Kamewa UK Limmited * 100 Derby!

Karl Maybach-Hilfe GmbH 100 1 Maybachplatz, 88045 Friedrichshafen, Germany

LOrange Unterstutzungkasse GmbH 100 Harteckweg 9, 72293 Glatten, Germany

L'Orange Fuel Injectyon (Ningba) Co Ltd 100 #3 South Qihang Rd 55, Yinzhou Economic Development Zone Ningbo City 315145, China

LOrange Fuel Injection Trading (Suzhou) Co Ltd 100 #399 suhong Middle Rd, Suzhou Industrial Park Suzhou 215000, China

LOrange GmbH 100 30 Porschestrabe, 70435 Stuttgart, Germany

M L Limited 100 Derby*

MTU America lnc 100 39625 Mckenzie Drive, Novi, MI 48377, LISA

MTU Anlagenvermietung GmbH 100 1 Maybachplatz 88045 Friednichshafen, Germany

MTU Asia PTE Limited 100 #05-01, Robinson Rd 112, 068902, Singapare

MTU Benelux BV 100 Merwedestraat 86, 3313 £S Dordrecht, Netherlands

MTU China Company Limited 100 1801-1803, 18/F Ascendas Plaza, No 333 Tian Yao (ao Road Xuhar District Shanghas,
200030, China

MTU Do Brazii Limitada 100 Via Anhanguera KM 29203 05276-000 Sao Paulo SP Brazil

* Dormant Entity
1 Moot Lane Derby Derbyshire England DE24 88)
? 62 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Other information

SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

Company name % held Address

MTU Engineering (Suzhou) Company Limited 100 9 Long Yun Rd Suzhou Industnial Park Suzhou 215024 hang Su, China

MTU France SAS 100 281 Chaussée Jules César 95250 Beauchamp, france

MTU Friedrichshafen GmbH 100 1 Maybachplatz 88045 Friedrichshafen, Germany

MTU Hong Kong Limited 100 1-3 Wing Yip 5t, Kwai Chung New Ternitonies, Hong Kong

MTU Iberica Propulsion ¥ Energia SL 100 26-28 Calle Copermico, 28823 Coslada, Madrid, Spain

MTU indra Private Lmited 100 159/1 Tathawade, Pune Mumbai Highway Pune 411033 India

MTU Israel Lirmted 100 4 Ha"Alon Str Kfar Neter 4059300 lsrael

MTU Haha Sl 100 Via Aureha Nord 328 19021 Arcola (SP) italy

MTU Japan Co bimited 100 2-15-19 Takanawa-Meiko Minato ku Tokyo, 108-0074 Japan

MTU Korea Limited 100 20F Kores First Bank Building, 100 Gongpyung dong, Jongno-gu Seoul, 100702,
Republic of Korea

MTU Middle East FZE 100 Showroom No S3BSSROG Jebel Al Free Zone, PO Box 61141 Dubal Urited Arab Emirates

MTU Motor Turbin Sanayr Ve Ticaret A S 100 113 Ada 3 Parsel No 11, Corly, Tekirdag, 34555, Turkey

MTU Onsite Energy Corporation 100 100 Power Drive Mankato, MIN 56001, USA

MTU Onsite Energy GmbH 100 8 Rotthofer Strale, 94099 Ruhstorfa d Rott, Germany

MTU Onsite Energy Systems GmbH 100 8 Rotthofer Strafie, 94099 Ruhstorfa d Rott, Cermany

MTU Polska SP ZOO 100 Ul Slaska, Nr 9 Raum, Stargard Szczecinsk, 73-110, Potsdam Stargard Szczecinsky, Poland

MTU Reman Technologies GmbH 100 8 Fiednch-List-Strabe, 39122 Magdeburg, Germany

MTU RUS ELC 100 Shabolovka Street 2 119049, Moscow, Russian Federation

MTU South Africa (Pty) Limited 100 Corner Marcony Rd and 3rd 5t, Western Cape, 7441 South Africa

MTU UK Limited 100 Unit 29 The Birches Industriai Estate, East Grinstead England RH19 1XZ

Navrs Consultd oo 75 Ul Bartola Kasica 5/4, HR-51000, Ryeka Croatia

NEIl Allen Limited * 100 Dethy*

NEl Combusticn Engineering Limited * 100 Derby*

NEI International Combustion Lirmted * 100 Derby®

NEI Lirmited * 100 Derby*

NEI Mining Equipment Limited * 100 Derby*

NEI Nuclear Systems Limited * 100 Derby?

NEI Overseas Holdings Lmited 100 Derby?

NEI Parsons Limited * 100 Derby*

NEI Peebles Limited * 100 Derby!

NEI Power Projects Limited * 100 Derby!

NEI Services Limited * 100 Derby?

Nightingale Insurance Limited 100 Maisan Trimty Trimity Square, St Peter Port GY1 4AT Guernsey

Optimized Systems and Solutions {US} LLC 100 Suite S00 54 Monument Circle Indianapolis IN 46204 USA

Optimized Systems and Solutions Limited * 100 Derby*

Oxygenaire Limited * 100 Derby!

PKMJ Technical Services Inc 100 465 Malcolm Dr, Moon Township PA 15108, USA

Powerfield Limited * 100 Derby!

Powerfield Specialist Engines Limited * 100 Derby?

Prokura Diesel Services (pty) Limited 100 Corner Marcony Rd and 3rd St, Western Cape, 7441 South Africa

PT Rolls-Royce 100 Mid Plaza 2 Lanta1 161 lenderal Sudwman 10-11, fakartaPusat, 10220, indonesia

PT MTU Indonesia 100 Secure Building Blok B, Jl Raya Protokol Hahim, Perdanakusuma Jakarta, 13610, Indonesia

Quay Leasing Lirmited 100 London ?

R Brooks Associates, Inc 100 6546 Pound Road Willlamson NY314583, USA

Rallyswift Lirmited * 100 Derby!

Reyralle Belmos Lirmited * 100 Taxmway Hillend Industrial Estate, Dalgety Bay, Dunfermhne, Scotland KY11 9T

Rolls E L Turbofans Limited * 100 Derby?

Rolls-Royce (Ireland)’ 100 1st Floor IFSC House International Financial Services Centre, Custorns House Quay,
Dublin irish Republic

Rolls-Royce (Tharland) Limited 100 900 11th Fl, Tonson Tower, Ploenchit Rd Bangkok, Thailand

Rolls-Royce (Xr'an) Mechamical Manufacturing Co Lumited 100 E-<1 No 5LlanTian Road Xian Yanhang National Aviation Hi Tech Industrial Base,
China

Rolls-Royce AB 100 Box 1010 S 68128, Knistinehamn, Sweden

* Dormant Entrty
! Moor Lane Derby Derbyshire England DE24 8BJ
* 62 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Company name % held Address

Rolls-Royce Aero Engine Services Limted * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Rayce Awrcraft Management Limited 100 Lonhdan 2

Rolls-Royce Austraha imited 100 Suite 102, 2 4 tyonpark Rd, Macquane Park NSW- 2113 Austraha

Rolls-Royce Austraha Services PTY bimited 100 Sutte 102 2-4 Lyonpark Rd Macquarie Park NSW-2113 Australia

Rolls-Royce Brazil Limitada 100 Rua Dr Onamato Braga 47, Planalto Sao Bernando do Campo/SP 09890-800 Brazil

Rolls-Royce Canada Limited 100 9500 Cote De Liesse Rd Lachine QCHBT 1A2 Canada

Rolls-Rayce Capital Limited 100 Derby*

Rolls-Royce Civil Nuclear Canada Limited 100 597 The Queensway, Peterborough ON K9J7)6 Canada

Rolls-Royce Civil Nuctear SAS 100 23 Chermin du Vieux Chene 38240 Meylan France

Rolls Royce Commercial (Betjing) Co Limited 100 2109 China Life Building, 16 Chao Yang Men Wai Street, Beljing 100020 China

Rolls-Rayce Commercial Aero Engines Limited * 100 Derby?

Rolls Rayce Control Systems Holdings Co 100 Sunte 200,1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA 20190, USA

Ralls Royce Controls and Data Services (NZ) imited 100 L7 Bayleys Butlding, 36 Brandon St, Wellington, 6011 New Zealand

Rolls Royce Controls and Data Services (UK) Lirited 100 Derby!?

Rolls Royce Controls and Data Services tnc 100 Surte 200 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls Royce Controls and Data Services imited 100 Derby*

Rolls Royce Corporation 100 2001 S Tibbs Avenue Indianapohs IN 46206, USA

Rolls Royce Cote d'lvorre Sarl 100 7 Boulevard Latrille 25 BP 945 Abidjan Céte d'Ivoire

Rolls-Royce Credit Corporation 100 Surte 200 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls-Royce Crossponte LLC 100 Suite A, 3811 Corporate Rd Petersburg, VA 23805 0848 LISA

Rolls-Royce de Venezuela SA 100 Avernda 3E, entre Calles 78y 79 Torre Empresarnial Claret Piso 10 Oficina 10-3 Sector
Valle Fno, Maracaibo, Venezuela

Rolls-Royce Defense Holdings Inc. 100 2001 5 Tibbs Avenue, Indianapolis, IN 46206, USA

Rolls-Royce Defense Products and Solutions Inc 100 2001 5 Tibbs Avenue, Indianapolis, IN 46206, USA

Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc 100 2001 5 Tibbs Avenue, Indianapolis, IN 46206, USA

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & CoXG 100 11 Eschenweq 15827 Blankenfelde-Mahlow Germany

Rolls-Royce Directorate Limited * 100 Derby*

Rolls-Royce Energy Angola Limitada 100 Rua Re1 Katyavala Entrada B P1so8 Luanda Angola

Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc 100 Suite 200 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls-Royce Engine Contral Systems Pension Trustees Lid 100 Detby!

Rolls Royce Engine Controls Holdings Lirmited 100 Detby !

Rolls Royce Engine Services —Oakland Inc 100 7200 Earhart Road, Oakland CA 64621-4504 USA

Rolls Royce Engine Services Holdings Co 100 Suite 200, 1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA 20190, USA

Rolls Royce Engine Services Limitada inc * 100 Bldg 06 Berthaphil Compound, Jose Abad Santos Avenue, Clark Special Eco Zone,
Pampanga, Phiippines

Rolls Royce Erste Betelligungs GmbH 160 11 Eschenweg, 15827 Blankenfelde-Mahlow, Germany

Rolls Royce Finance Company Limited * 100 Derby*

Rolls Royce Finance Holdings Co 100 Suite 200 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls Royce Fuel Cell Systems Limited 100 Derby*

Rolls Rayce General Partner Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls Royce High Temperature Composites Inc 100 18411 Gothard Street #8 Huntington Beach CA 92648, USA

Rolls Royce Holdings Canada Inc 100 3500 Cote De Liesse Rd Lachine QC H8T 1A2 Canada

Rolls Royce India Lirmited 100 Derby?

Rolls Royce India Private Limited 100 Birla Tower West 25 Barakhamba Rd New Delhy, 110001 India

Rolls Royce Industnal & Marme Gas Turbines * 100 Derby*

Rolls Royce Industrial & Marine Power Limited * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Industrial Power (India) Limited 100 Derby*

Rolls-Royce Industnal Power {Overseas Projects) limited 100 Derby?

Rolls-Royce Industnal Power Engineening (Overseas Projects) 100 Derby?!

Limrted

Rolls-Royce Industrial Power Investments Linmited * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Industrial Power Systems Limited * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Industries Limited * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce International Limited 100 Derby!

* Dormant Entity
! Moor Lane Derby Derbyshire England DE24 881
? 62 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Other information

SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

Company name % held Address

Rolls-Royce Internatonal LLC 100 10 B Sadovaya St, 123001, Moscow Russia

Rolls-Royce International SRO 100 Pobfeim 620/3 18600 Karlin - Prague 8 Czech Republic

Rolls-Royce Investment Co 100 Suite 200 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA20190 USA

Rolis-Royce Italia SRL 100 Via Castel Morrone 13 16161 Genova, Italy

Rolls-Royce Japan Co Limited 100 31 H Kasurmgaseki bldg 3-2-5 Kasurmgaseki Chiyoda-Ku Tokyo 100 6031, Japan

Rolls Royce JSF Holdings Inc 100 2001 S Tibbs Avenue, Indianapolis, IN36206, USA

Rolls-Royce Leasing Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls-Ruyce Malaysia SDN BHD 100 Suite 1303, 13th Fl, Menara Tan & Tan, 207 Jalan Tun Razak 50400 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia

Rolls-Royce Marine A/S 100 Vaerftsve) 23, 2300, Aalborg Denmark

Rolls-Royce Marine AS 100 _Sjogata 80 6065 Ulstewnvik, Norway

Rolls Royce Marine Asia Limited 100 1-3Wing Yip St Kwai Chung New Ternitones Hong Kong

Rolls Royce Marine Austrahia Pty imited 100 Unit 2/8 Wallace Way, Fremantle WA 6160, Australia

Rolls Royce Marine Benefux BV 100 Werfdijk 2 3195HV Permis Rotterdam Netherlands

Rolls-Royce Manne Chile SA 100 Alcantara 200 Office 1303 Las Condes Santiago Chile

Rolls-Royce Marine Deutschland GmbH 100 Fahrstieg 9 21107 Hamburg Germany

Rolls-Royce Manne Electrical Systermns Lirmited 100 Derby®

Rolls-Royce Marine Espana s A 100 Pohigono Industnal de Constanti 43120 Constant, Tarragona Spain

Rolls-Royce Marine France Sarl 100 4 Place Des Etats Unis bmm Monaco Silic 261 Rungis France

Rolls-Royce Marine Hellas S A 100 25 Atki Poseidonos & Maknigianni corner Athens 18344 Creece

Rolls-Royce Marine Hong Kong Limited 100 1-3Wing Yip St Kwai Chung New Terntories, Hong Kang

Rolls-Royce Marine Incha Private Lrmted 100 PLOT D-505 TTC Industnial Area MIDC Sharaya Hyundai Lane Turbhe Navi Mumbai
Maharashtra 400710 India

Rolls-Royce Marine Korea Lirmited 100 197 Noksansaneopbung-ro Gangseogu Busan, Republic of Kotea

Rols-Royce Marine Manufacturing (Shanghai) 100 1 Xuanzhong Rd Xuanglac Town Pudong New Area Shanghai 201399 China

Rolls-Royce Marine North Amenica Inc 100 Suite 200 1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA20190, USA

Rolls-Royce Marnne Power Operations Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Mechanical Test Operations Centre GmbH 100 Kiefernstrasse 1,15827 Blankenfelde-Mahlow Dahlewitz, Germany

Rolls-Royce Mexico Admimistration Sde RLde CV Rolls-Royce 100 Adolfo Ruiz Cortinez 3642-403, Costa de Oro, Veracruz 94299 6, Mexico

Mexico 5 de RLde CV

Rolls-Royce Military Aero Engines Limited * 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Narmbia (Proprietary) Limited 100 Ausspann Plaza, Dr Agostinho Neto Rd, Private Bag 12012 Asspannplatz, Windhoek,
Narmbra

Rolls-Royce New Zealand Limited 100 L7 Bayleys Bullding, 36 Brandon St Wellington 6011 New Zealand

Rolls-Royce Migenia Limited 100 22A Gerrard Street, [koy, Lagos, Nigena

Rolls-Royce North America (USA) Holdings Co 100 Suite 200, 1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA 20190 USA

Rolls-Royce North America Holdings Inc 100 Suite 200, 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls-Royce North America Inc. 100 Swuite 200, 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolis-Royee North Amenca Ventures Inc 100 Suite 200, 1875 Explorer Street Reston VA 20190 USA

Rolls-Royce North Amernican Technologies Inc 100 2059 5 Tibbs Avenueg, Indianapohs IN 46241 USA

Rolls-Royce Nuclear Field Services France SAS 100 ZA Notre-Dame, 84430, Mondragon France

Rolls-Royce Oman LLC 100 PQ Box 686, Ruwt, 112 Oman

Ralls-Royce Operations (India) Private Linnted 100 Whitefield Rd, EPIP Zone, Mahadevapura Bangalore 560066 India

Rolls-Royce Dverseas Holdings Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Overseas Investments Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Overseas Projects Limited 100 Derby!

Rolls-Royce Oy Ab 100 PQ Box 220, Supjantie 5, 26101 Rauma Finland

Rolls-Royce Placements Lirmted 100 Derby?

Rolls-Royce Poland Spzoo 995 GNIEW 83-140, ul Kopermika 1, Poland

Rolls-Royce Power Development Limited 100 Derby?

Rolls-Royce Power Engineering plc 100 Derby*

Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG 100 1 Maybachplatz, 88045 Friedrichshafen Germany

Rolls-Royce Saudi Arabra Limited 100 PO Box 88545 Riyadh 11672, Saudi Arabia

* Dormant Entity
! Moor Lane Derby Derbyshire England, DE24 88)
* 62 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Rolls Royce Secretariat Ltd * 100 Derby!

Rolls Royce Singapore Pte Ltd 160 1 Seletar Aetospace Crescent 797565 Simgapore

Rolls Royce Technical Support Sarl 100 Centreda 1, av Dwhier Daurat, 31700 Blagnac Toulouse, France

Rolly Ruyce Total Care Services Limited 100 Derby?

Rolls Royce Transnission and Distribution Limited * 100 Derby*

Rolls Royce Turkey Power Salutions Industry and Trade Limited 100 Ekernen Han No 1 Kat & Kabatag Beyogly, Istanbul, Turkey

Rolls Royce Vietnam Limited 100 Dong Xuyen Industnal Zone, Rach Dua Ward vung Tau City Ba Ria~Vung Tau
Province Vietnam

Rolls Royce Zweite Betelligungs GmbH 100 11 Eschenweg 15827 Blankenfelde-Mahlow, Germany

Ross Ceramics Limited 100 Derby*

R OV Technologies Inc. 100 49 Bennett Dnive Guitford Vermont, USA

R-R Industrial Controls Limited * 100 Derby?

Scandinavian Electric Gdansk Sp zoo 67 M Reja 3, Gdansk 80-404 Poland

Scandinavian Electric Systemns do Brazil limitada 66 Rua Sac tose 90 salas 1406 07, Riode Janeiro, R), Brazil

Spare IPG {AGL) Urmited Spare IPG (CEL) Limited SpareIPG3 100 Derby!

Lirmited, Spare IPG 4 Limited, Spare IPG 11 Limited, Spare IPG 15

Limited Spare IPG 20 Limited, Spare IPG 22 Limited, Spare IPG

24 irmited Spare IPG 27 Lirmted, Spare IPG 28 Limited Spare

IPG 30 Limsted, Spare IPG 32 Limuted *

Spare IPG 18 Ltd * 90 Derby!

Stone Vickers Limited 100 Derby !

Superstructure Capital Limited 100 Derby*

The Bushing Company Limited * 100 Derby*

Timec 1487 Limited * 100 Derby*

Trigno Energy Sl 100 Zona Industnal San Salvo 66050 taly

Ulstein Holding AS 100 S)egata 80 6065 Ulsteinvik Norway

Ulstein Mantime Limited 100 96 North Bend St, Coquitlam BC V3K 6H1 Canada

Ulstemn Trading Ltd AS * 100 Sj@gata 80, 6065 Ulsteinvik Norway

Vessel Lifts Inc” 100 Swite 102, 9130 S Dadeland Blvd, Miarm, FL 33156 USA

Vickers Pension Trustees Limited * 100 Derby!

Vickers Pressmgs Lirmited * 100 Derby*

Viking Power Limited * 100 Derby!

Vinters Defence Systems Limited * 100 Derby!*

Vinters Engineering Limited 100 Derby?

Vinters International Lirited 160 Derby!

Vinters Limited 100 Derby!

Vinters-Armstrongs (Engineers) Lirmted * 100 Derby!

Vinters-Armstrongs Limited * 100 Derby!

Waultex Machine Company Limited * 100 Derby*

Wultex Machine Company Limited” 100 Derby!

* Dormant Entity
! Moor Lane Derby Derbyshre England DE24 8B)
! 62 Buckingham Gate, London England SW1E 6AT
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Other information

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Class % of Group interest
Company name Address of shares classheld held %
Aero Gearbox International SAS 18 Boulevard Lous Sequin 92700 Colombes, France  Ordinary 50 50
Aerospace Transmission Technologies GmbH Adelheidstrasse 40, © 88046, Friednichshafen, Crdinary 50 50
Germany
Airtanker 1 Limited * One London Wall, London, England EC2Y S5EB Crdinary 20 20
Airtanker Finance Lrmited One London Wall 1ondon England EC2Y SEB Ordinary 20 20
Airtanker Holdings Lirmited One London Wall London England EC2Y SEB Ordinary 20 20
Awrtanker Limited One London Wall London England EC2Y SEB Ordinary 20 20
Arrtanker Services Limited Airtanker Hub, RAF Brize Norton Ordnary 22 22
Carterton Oxfordshire England OX18 3LX
Alpha Leasing Limited, Alpha Leasing (No 4) Limmited, Alpha London 2 Ordinary 100 50
Leasing (N0 9) Lirmted Alpha Leasing (No 10) Limited, Alpha
Leasing (No 11) Lismited Rolls Royce & Partners Finance Limited
Alpha Leasing {US) LLC, Alpha Leasing {US) {No 2} LLC, Alpha Suite 200, 1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA 20190,  Partnerships - 50
Leasing (US} (No 4) LLC, Alpha Leasing (US) {No 5} LLC, Alpha UsA {no equity held)
Leasing (US} (No 6) LLC, Alpha Leasig {US) {No 7) LLC Alpha
Leasing (US) (No 8) LLC, Rolls Royce & Partners Finance {US) LLC
Rolls Royce & Partners Finance {US) (NO 2) LLC
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited Lendon 2 AQrdinary 100 50
Anecom Aerotest GmbH 124/126 Fretheitsstrasse, Wildau 0-15745, Germany Ordinary 249 249
Clarke Chapman Portia Port Services Limited Maritime centre, Port of Liverpool, Liverpool Ordinary 100 50
121 1LAA
Egypt Aero Management Services EgyptAir Engine Workshop, Cairo International Ordinary 50 50
Airport, Cairg, Egypt
EPI Europrop International GmbH Dachauer Strasse 655, 80995 Munich, Germany Ordinary 28 Effectve 355
EPI Europrop International Madrnd S L Edificio Berhin - First Foor, Parque EmpresanalSan - Ordinary 28 Effective 355
Fernando, Aveida Castilla 2, 28830 San Fernando De
Henares, Madnid, Spam
Eurgjet Turbo GmbH Lihenthalstrasse 2b, 85399 Hallbergmoos, Germany  Ordinary 33 Effective 39
GE Rolks-Royce Fighter Engime Team LLC 2001 S Tibbs Avenue, Indianapolrs, IN 46206, USA {noequity held) - 40
Partnership
Genistics Holdings Limited Derby? Qrdinary A 100 50
Gemstics Limited Derby! Ordinary 100 50
Glacier 1p Suite 300, Bank Tower, 66 Wellington Street West,  Ordinary 50 50
Taronto, ON MSK 1E6, Canada
Global Aerospace Centre for laing and Enmvironmental Research 1000 Marie-Victorin Boulevard, Montreal Ordmary S0 50
Inc QCJAG 1A, Canada
_Hong Kong Aero Engine Services imrted 33/F, 2 Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong Ordmnary 45 45
Hovden Klubbhaus AS Stalhaugen 5, Ulsteinvik 6065 Norway Ordinary 69 69
Industria De Turbo Propulsores SA Sutte 300, Parque Technologico, 48170 Zamudio Qrdmary 469 469
Vizcaya Spain
International Aerospace Manufacturing Private Ltd 3 Kempapure Village Bangalore 560037 India Ordmary 50 50
Internationat Engine Component Overhaul Pte Ltd Ng 3 Loyang Way 2 507102 Singapore Ordmary 50 50
LG Fuel Cell Systems Inc. 6065 Stnp Ave, Canton OH 44720-9207 LUSA Common Stock 32 32
bight Helicopter Turbine Engine Company (unincorporated Suite 119, 9238 Madison Boulevard, Madison Partnership (no — 50
partnership) AL 35758, USA equrty held)
Metlase timited Unipart House, Garsington Road Cowley Oxford ~ Ordinary B 100 20
England OX4 2PG
MTU Turbomeca Rolis-Royce GmbH Am Soldnermoos 17, 85399 Hallbergmoos Germany Ordinary 333 333
MTU Turbomeca Rolls-Royee TP GmbH Am Soldnermoos 17, 85399 Hallbergmoos Cermany Oidinary 25 Effectve 26
N3 Engine Overhaul Services GmbH & CoKG 1 Gerhard-Holtje-5tr, D-99310, Arnstadt, Germany  Ordinary 50 S0
N3 Engine OQverhaul Services Verwaltungsgesellschaft Mbh 1 Gerhard-Holtje-Str, D-99310, Arnstadt Germany  Ordinary 50 S0
Northern Engimeening Industries Africa bimited (in hiquidation) * 2nd floor, Ristone Office Park, 15 Sherborne Rd Crdinary 244 244
Parktown 2193, South Africa
Offshore Simulator Centre AS 4 Larsgardsvegen, 6009, Alesund, Norway Ordinary 25 25

* Dormant Entity
! Moocr Lane, Derby Derbyshire England DE24 88)
* 62 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Class % of Groupnterest
Company name Address of shares classheld held %
Omega Leasing Limited Omega Leasing (No 4) brmted Omega  London? Oydinary 100 50
Leasing (No9) irmited Omega Leasing (No 10) Limrted, Omega
Leasing (No 11) Limited
Omega Leasing {US) LLC Omega Leasing (US) (No 2) LLC Omega Swuite 200, 1875 Explorer Street, Reston, VA 20150,  Partnerships — 50
Leasing (US) (Ne 4} LLC Omega Leasing (US) (No5}LLC Omega  USA {no equity held)
Leasing (US) (Ne 6) LLC Omega Leasing (US) (No 7) LLC Omega
Leasing (US) (No B LLC
Rolls Laval Heat Exchangers Limited Derby? Ordmary A 100 50
Ralls-Royce Engine Leasing (tabuan) Lirmited, Rolls-Royee Engine  Umit Level 13{a), Main Office Tower Financial Ordnary 100 50
Leasing (Labuan) (No 2) Uimited ParkLabuan Jalan Merdeka, 87000, Malaysia
Rolls Royce Snecma Limited Derby? OrdmaryB 100 50
RRPF Engine Leasing Limtted, RRPF Engine Leasing (No 2} Limited London ? Ordmary 100 50
RRPF Engmne Leasing (US) LLC, RRPF Engime Leasing (US) (No 2) LLC Suite 200, 1875 Exploter Street Reston VA20190  Ordmary 100 50
USA
RRPF Engine teasing (Singapore) Pte Limited 28-00 1 Manna Boulevard Singapore 018989 Ordmary 100 50
Servicios de Operation y Mantemmiento S A Puerto In Buitrago 804 Casillade Correo CP2900  Ordinary 100 50
Buenos Ares Argentma
Shanxi North MTL Diesel Co Limited 97 Daqing West Rd Datong Shanxi Province China Ordinary 49 49
Sign Assured Limited 8 Jubilee Drive Loughborough England LE11 5XS Ordinary 25 25
Singapore Aero Engine Services Private Limited 11 Calshot Rd 509932, Singapore Ordinary 30 Effective 39
Techjet Aeroforls Limited Tefen Ind Zone, PO Box 16, 24959, Carmiel, israel Ordinary A 50
Ordinary B <0 s0
Texas Aero Engine Services LLC 1209 Orange St Wilrmington DE 19801 USA Partnership - S0
{no equity held)
TRT Uimited Derby! Qrdinary B 100 495
Turbime Surface Technologies Limited Derby* Ordinary B 100 50
Turbo-Umion Limited Derby! Shares A 375 40
40
UK Nuctear Restoration Limited Booths Park, Cheiford Rd, Knutsford, England Qrdinary 20 20
WAl6 8QZ
wviking Reisebyra AS Saunesvn 10, Ulsteinvik, NO-6067 Norway Ordinary 50 50
Xian XR Aero Components Co, Limited Xujiawan, Beijiao, PO Box 13 Xian 710021 Shaanxi  Ordinary 49 49
China
X1an XR Turbme Machiming Components Co Ltd XEPZ 12th Fengcheng Rd X1an 710018 Shaanxi Ordinary 100 49

China

* Dormant Entity
' Moorlane Derby Derbyshire England DE24 8B)
? g2 Buckingham Gate London England SW1E 6AT
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Other information

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of Rolls-Royce plc only

We have audited the financial statements of Rolls-Royce plc for the
year ended 31 December 2015 set out on pages 65 to 149 The
financial reparting framework that has been apphed in the
preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable Jaw and
Internatwonal Financal Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the
EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied n the
preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s
apphicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body

in accordance wath Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006
Our audt work has been undertaken so that we mght state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them
n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihty to
anyone other than the company and the company's members,

as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons

we have formed

Opmion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
set out on pages 62 and 63, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Our respensibility s to audit, and
express an opnion on the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Audrting (UK and
lreland) Those standards requite us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Adescription of the scope of an audit of finanaial statements
15 provided on the Financoal Reporting Counail’s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December
and of the group's profit for the year then ended,

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared
m accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice,

- the financal statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

In our opiion the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Ditectors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of
the audit of the financial statements and from reading the Strateqic
report and the Directors’ report

+ we have notdentified matenal rmsstatements i those reports,
and

+ i our opimon, those reports have been prepared m accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to yourf,
m our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
tecewved from branches not visited by us, ot

« the parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certam disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made or

- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

RICHARD ACKLAND (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITORE=
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

24 February 2016
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Other information

Foreign exchange

Foreign exchange rate movements influence the reported income
statement, the cash flow and closing net cash balance The average
and spot rates for the principal trading currencies of the Group are
shown n the table below

2015 2014 Change
Year end spot rate 148 156 -5%
USD per GBF - erage spotrate 153 165 7%
EUR per GBP Year end spot rate 136 128 +6%
Average spot rate 1138 124 +11%

The Group's approach to managing its tax affairs

The Board 1s mvolved m setting the Group’s tax pohcies which
govern the way 1ts tax affairs are managed In summary this means

(1) the Group manages 1ts tax costs through maxirmsing the tax
efficiency of busimess transactions This mcludes taking
advantage of available tax incentives and exemptions,

{n) this must be done m a way whichis ahigned with the Group's
commercial abjectives and meets 1ts legal obhgations and
ethical standards,

{m) the Group also has regard for the intention of the legislation
concerned rather than just the wording itself,

{(v) the Group 15 commtted to buwlding constructve working
relationshps wath tax authorities based on a pohcy of
full disclosure w order to remove uncertainty in 1ts busness
transactions and to allow the authorities to review
possible nisks,

=

where appropnate and possible, the Group enters into
consultation with tax authonties to help shape proposed
legrslation and future tax pohcy and

{(v1) the Group seeks to price transactions between Rolls-Royce group
companies as 1f they were between unrelated parties n
complhance with the OECD Transfer Pnicing Guidehines and the
laws of the relevant jurisdictions

The Group's global corporate income tax contribution

Around 95% of the Group's underlying profit before tax (excluding
joint ventures and associates) 1s generated in the UK, the US, Germany
Norway, Finland and Singapore The remaining profits are generated
across more than 40 other countmes This reflects the fact that the
majonty of the Group’s business 1s undertaken and employees are
based, in the above countries

In common with most multiational groups the total of all profits
m respect of which corporate income tax s pad is not the same as
the consohdated profit before tax reported on page 65 The mam
reasons for this are

() theconsolhdated income statement 1s prepared under IFRS
whereas tax 1s paid on the profits of each Group company,
which are determned by local accounting rules

(0} accounting rules require certain income and costs relating to
our commerctal activities to be ehminated from, or added to the
aggregate of all the profits of the Group compames when
prepanng the consohdated mncomne statermnent (‘consohdation
adjustments’), and

(m) specific tax rules induding exemptions or incentives as
determined by the tax laws in each country

The Group's total corparation tax paymentsin 2015 were £160m
The level of tax pard in each country 1s impacted by the above

In most cases (1) and (n) are only a matter of tvming and therefore
tax wll be paid in an earher or later year As aresult they only have
a neghgible impact on the Group s undertlying tax rate, which
excluding jomt ventures and associates would be 26 6%

{the underlying tax rate including joint ventures and associates
can be found on page 43) This1s due to deferred tax accounting
detanls of which can be found 1n note 5 to the consohdated fimancial
statements The impact of (in) will often be permanent depending
on the relevant tax law

Further mformation on the tax posthion of the Group can be found
as follows

+ Note 1tothe consohdated finanaial staternents {page 74} —
Details of key areas of uncertamnty and accounting pohicies for tax,

- Note 5 to the consoltdated financial statements {page 86) —
Details of the tax balances in the consohdated finanoal
statements together with a tax reconcihation on continuimg
operations This explains the main drivers of the tax rate

At this stage we expect these itermns to contmue to influence the
underlying tax rate The reported tax rate 1s more difficult to forecast
due to the volatility of sigmficant items 1n reported profits, in particular
the net unreahsed fair value changes to denwvatve contracts

Investments and capital expenditure

The Group subjects all major investments and capital expenditure
to a ngorous examination of nisks and future cash flows to ensure
that they create shareholder value All major investments, including
the launch of major programmes requite Board approval

The Group has a portfoho of projects at different stages of ther
Iife cycles Discounted cash flow analysis of the remaining hife
of projects 1s performed on a reqular basis

Sales of engines in production are assessed against critenan
the onginal development programme to ensure that overall value
1s enhanced
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Other information

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

Fmanaal risk management

The Board has estabhshed a structured approach to financial nisk
management The Financial nsk commttee (Frc) 15 accountable for
managing reporting and mitigating the Group's fimancial risks and
exposures These risks include the Group's principal counterparty,
currency nterest rate commodity price, hquidity and credit rating
nisks guthned i more depth in note 16 The Frc1s chared by the
Chief Financtal Officer The Group has a comprehensive financial
nisk policy that advocates the use of fimancial nstruments to
manage and hedge business operations risks that anse from
movements in financial, commodities, credit or money markets
The Group’'s pohicy 1s not to engage m speculative financial
transactions The Frc sits quarterly to review and assess the key
nisks and agree any mitigating actions required

The Group conducts some of its business through a number of joint
ventures A major proportion of the debt of these jomnt ventures s
secured on the assets of the tespective companies and 1s non-recourse
to the Group This debt 1s further outlined n note 10

Credit rating

Rating Qutlook Grade
Moody's Investors Service A3 Stable Investment
Standard & Poor s A Negative Investment

The Group's holding company Rolls-Royce Holdings ple, subscribes
to both Moody's investors Service and Standard & Poor's for
dependent long-term credit ratings At the date of this report,

1t mantained investment grade ratings from both agencies

As a capital-intensive business making long-term commitments

Operations are funded through vanous shareholders' funds, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes The capital structure of the Group
reflects the judgement of the Board as to the appropnate balance
of funding required

Funding 15 secured by the Group's continued access to the global
debt markets Borrowings are funded in various currencies using
derivatives where appropriate to acheve a required currency and
nterest rate profile The Board's objective 15 to retan sufficient
financial iInvestments and undrawn facilities to ensure that the
Group can both meet its mediurn-term operational commrtments
and cope with unforeseen obhgatwons and opportunities

The Group holds cash and shortterminvestments which together
with the undrawn commtted facilities, enabte 1t to manage its
hquidity risk

On 6 October the Group 1ssued US$500m 2 375% Notes due 2020
and US$1,000m 3 625% Notes due 2025

During the year the Group renegotiated the £1 000m committed
bank borrowing facihity, mereasing the amount to £1,500m and
extending the matunty to 2020 This faciity was undrawn at the
period end A €300m committed borrowing facihty was cancelled
during the penod

At year end, the Group retained aggregate hquidity of £5 0 ilhon,
ncluding cash and cash equivalents of £3 2 bilhon and undrawn
borrowing facilities of £1 8bn In 2016, £419m of the facihties mature

The maturity profile of the borrowing facilities 1s regularly reviewed
to ensure that refinancing levels are manageable in the context of the
buswness and market conditions There are no rating triggers i any
borrowing facility that would require the facility to be accelerated or
repad due to an adverse movement in the Group's credit rating

Capital structure to our customers, the Group attaches sigmficant importance
to mamtaiming or improving the current imvestment grade

£ milian 2015 2032 | credit ratings

Total equity 6,289 5831

Cash flow hedges 100 a1 R

Group capital 6,389 6462 | Accounting

Net funds (111} 666_ | The consohdated Financial Statements have been prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the EU

No new accountings standards had a materal impact in 2015
The impact changes to IFRS which have not been adepted in 2015
15 included within the accounting pohcies im note 1
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GLOSSARY

Other mformation

ABC anti-bnbery and corruption 1ASB International Accounting Standards Board

ADR American Depositary Receipts IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee
AGM Annual General Meeting IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

AMC Approved Maintenance Centre KPls key performance indicators

APRA Annual Performance Related Award plan ktCO.e kilotonnes carbon diexide equivalent

Articles Articles of Association of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc LIBOR Londen Inter-Bank Offered Rate

CShares non-cumulative redeemable preference shares LTSA long term service agreement

C&A commeraal and adrmmistrative NG hquefied natural gas

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate MRO Maintenance repair and overhaul

CARs contractual aftermarket nghts NCI non controiling interest

CEC chief executve officer NO, mtrogen oxides

CFO chief financial officer acl other comprehensive incorne

CGU cash-generating unit CE oniginal equipment

o, carbon dioxide OECD Orgamisation for Economic Cooperation and Development
Company Rolls-Royce plc PBT profit before tax

CPS cash flow per share PSP Performance Share Plan

CRIP € Share Reinvestment Plan R&D research and development

ELY Executive Leadership Team R&T research and technology

EPS earmngs per share REACH Registration, Evaluation Authorisation and restriction
EU European Union of CHemicals

EUR euro Reqistrar Computershare Investor Services PLC

FCA Financial Conduct Authonty RRPS Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG

FCAS Future Combat Air System RRSAs risk and revenue sharing arrangements

FRC Financial Reporting Council SFO Senous Fraud Office

FX foreign exchange sip Share Incentive Plan

GBP Great British pound or pound sterling 50- sulphur oxides

GHG greerhouse gas STEM science technology engineering and mathematics
Global Code  Global Code of Conduct TCA TotalCare agreement

Group Rolls-Royce plc and its subsidiaries the Code UK Corporate Governance Code

HMRC HM Revenue & Customs TRI total reportable injuries

HS&E health, safety and environment T5R total shareholder return

1&C mstrumentation and control USD/US$ United States dollar

1AB International Advisory Board UTCs University Technology Centres

1AS International Accounting Standards
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